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All references to “us,” “we,” “our,” the “Companygnd “Kratos” refer to Kratos Defense & Security 8mins, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation, and its subsidiaries.

FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Rejocontains “forward-looking statements” relatintp our future financial
performance, the market for our services and opaesion plans and opportunities. In some casescgoudentify forwar-looking statements
by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” or “continue,”
the negative of such terms or other comparableiteslogy. These forward-looking statements reflestaurrent beliefs, expectations and
projections, are based on assumptions, and aresstibp known and unknown risks and uncertaintias ¢buld cause our actual results
achievements to differ materially from any futuesults or achievements expressed in or impliedubyasward-looking statements. Many of
these factors are beyond our ability to contropoedict. As a result, you should not place unduieamee on forward-looking statements. The
most important risk and uncertainties that couldi®a our actual results or achievements to diffetemally from the results or achievements
reflected in our forward-looking statements, in@utut are not limited to those specifically addezbsin Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this Annual
Report, as well as those discussed elsewheresritimual Report. These forwelooking statements reflect our views and assumptanly as
of the date such forward-looking statements areen&atcept as required by law, we assume no redpibtysfor updating any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigmye events or otherwise.

PART I.
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a specialized security technology businesgging mission critical products, services antlisons for domestic and
international customers, with our principal custosneeing agencies of the U.S. Government. Our capabilities are sophisticated engineering,
manufacturing, system integration, and test antbatian offerings for national security platformsdgprograms. Our principal products and
services are related to Command, Control, Commtioits, Computing, Combat Systems, Intelligencey&illance and Reconnaissance
(“C5ISR”). We offer our customers products, solotipservices and expertise to support their missitical needs by leveraging our skills
across our core offering areas in C5ISR.

We manufacture and design specialized electronmigoments, subsystems and systems for electroaitkattlectronic warfare, radar,
and missile system platforms; integrated technobagytions for satellite communications; productd aolutions for unmanned systems;
products and services related to cybersecuritycghdrwarfare; products and solutions for ballistissile defense; weapons systems trainers;
advanced network engineering and information teldgyoservices; weapons systems lifecycle suppattsaistainment; military weapon range
operations and technical services; and public gadetical infrastructure security and surveillangystems. We believe our stable client base,
strong client relationships, broad array of coritxahicles, large employee base possessing spedaikills, extensive list of past performance
qualifications, and significant management and atp@nal capabilities position us for continued gtiow

We were incorporated in the state of New York orcddeber 19, 1994 and began operations in March M@5eincorporated in the
state of Delaware in 1998.
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Industry Update

In August 2011, Congress and the Administratiorceththe Budget Control Act of 2011 (the “Budgen@ol Act”) in order to permit
an increase in the federal government's borrowinig While reducing projected net government spegdiver the next ten years. The Budget
Control Act required $900 billion in immediate ctitsdiscretionary spending for 2012-2021. It alstablished a bi-partisan congressional Joint
Select Committee on Deficit Reduction (the “Joimn@nittee”), which was charged with recommendingslkegjon that would reduce net
government spending by $1.2 to $1.5 trillion over hext 10 years, in addition to the $900 billionmmediate discretionary spending reduct
referenced above. The Joint Committee was unahbtetdify the required reductions, thereby trigggra provision of the Budget Control Act
called “sequestration,” which requires very subithautomatic spending cuts, split between defemsknon-defense programs, that start in
2013 and continue over a nine-year period.

In January 2013, Congress enacted the Americanaljaxpgrelief Act of 2012. It addressed a numbeawfdode provisions and certain
spending issues but left in place the sequestidro(aih delaying its implementation to March 1, 204:3d did not address other fiscal matters
such as the debt ceiling. Although debate on budgktctions continued through the first two mordh2013, no resolution was reached prior to
the March 1, 2013 sequester deadline. As a rakelPresident was required by law to issue an aaeceling $85 billion in budgetary resour
across the U.S. Government for the remainder o26%3. The Office of Management and Budget (“OMBY'jts report to Congress of March 1,
2013, entitled ‘'OMB Report to the Congress on the Joint Committegi&stration’ calculated that, over the course of the fiscary¢he order
requires a 7.8 percent reduction in non-exemptaefeliscretionary funding and a 5.0 percent rednéti non-exempt nodefense discretiona
funding. The sequestration also requires reductié’s9 percent to non-exempt defense mandatoryranes. The sequestration report provides
calculations of the amounts and percentages byhatdidous budgetary resources are required todecesl, and a listing of the reductions
required for each non-exempt budget account. Fedgemcies were directed to apply the same pergemeduction to all programs, projects,
and activities within a budget account, as requing&ection 256(k)(2) of Balanced Budget and Emeegdeficit Control Act, as amended
(“BBEDCA"), and to operate in a manner that is éstent with guidance provided by OMB in MemorandL&03, Planning for Uncertainty
with Respect to Fiscal Year 2013 Budgetary Resauacel Memorandum 13-05, Agency Responsibilitiesrfigrlementation of Potential Joint
Committee Sequestration.

The delay in the sequester has left the DoD less to enact 2013 automatic spending cuts and addscertainty from such cuts. The
nation's debt ceiling is currently expected todwched in the first half of 2013. The U.S. Govemnoantinues to face substantial fiscal and
economic challenges that affect funding for itcB§onary and non-discretionary budget. Currer@lgngress has not passed the Fiscal Year
(“FY™) 2013 budget. Congress and the Administrationtinue to debate these issues and the termpadsible national fiscal approach. It is
unclear whether annual appropriations bills willd@esssed during FY 2013 and the U.S. Governmentapasate under a continuing resolution
for all of FY 2013. If this occurs new contractgyogram starts will be restricted for the year.

Despite the sequestration order and the budgetalalia believe that spending on modernization aaiht@nance of defense,
intelligence and homeland security assets will ionetto be a national priority. The vast majorifyoar programs are funded in the DoD Base
budget and not the Overseas Contingency Operdtiathget. We also believe that our business is aligvith mission critical national security
priorities, particularly in the areas of Unmanneetial Vehicles, cybersecurity, ballistic missil€elese, satellite communications, space
programs and science and technology efforts. Negkss, the actual impact of sequestration antetheral budget debates are uncertain at this
time, and we cannot assure you that these evehtsavhave a significant adverse effect on ouriess and results of operations. See the risk
factor entitled “The U.S. Government provides an#igant portion of our revenue, and our businesdd be adversely affected by changes in
the fiscal policies of the U.S. Government and gorental entities.”

Current Reporting Segments

We operate in two principal business segments:asr@&overnment Solutions (“*KGS”) and Public Safetgé&curity (“PSS”). We
organize our business segments based on the wétine services offered. Transactions between seggnage generally negotiated and
accounted for under terms and conditions similarith@r government and commercial contracts anctimsrcompany transactions are
eliminated in consolidation. The financial statetsen this Annual Report are presented in a maoaoesistent with our operating structure. For
additional information regarding our operating segts, see Note 13 of the notes to the Consolidétexhcial Statements. From a customer and
solutions perspective, we view our business astaglated whole, leveraging skills and assets wieengossible.
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Kratos Government Solutions Segment

The KGS segment provides C5ISR products, solumasservices primarily for strategic mission catinational security priorities.
Our primary end customers in the KGS segment a8 Government agencies, including the DoD, classifigencies, intelligence agencies,
civilian agencies, other national security agenais$ homeland security related agencies. Our ChIBRucts, solutions, and services include
following:

Electronic Warfare/Attack and Intelligence, Recassance and Surveillancé/e design and manufacture a wide variety of radio
frequency (“RF”) and microwave component subsystamssystems for use in command and control systifigig instrumentation, weapons
sensors, radar, communication systems, electroaitave and electronic attack systems. Our produetintegrated into many of the DoD's
ground, air, and sea-based electronic warfaregotaf. Certain key programs include the Trident3l Wissile, EA-18G Growler, P-8 Poseidon,
E-2D Hawkeye, RC-135 Rivet Joint, F-15 Eagle, Qrige-16 Falcon, Eurofighter Typhoon, F-18 E/F Sugernet and Firefinder Radar.

Satellite Command and Control, Satellite Commuinecat Support, Signal Monitoring, Interference Déitat, and GeolocationVe
provide integrated solutions for the satellite caiminations and reconnaissance markets. Our prodactsmpass satellite ground systems,
including specialized equipment and proprietaryvsafe for satellite command and control. Our prasiand services are also focused on
assured command and control of satellite linkduiting monitoring links between satellites, basgishs, and mobile assets such as unmanned
vehicles; assuring quality of service; and detggtiocating and defending against interferencecyer attacks. Our solutions are also deployed
in support of many next-generation military, natibsecurity related and civilian satellite systéntduding GPS (OCX), environmental systems
(GOESR, NPP, NPOESS), strategic warning (SBIRS), compatitn systems (AEHF, WGS, MUOS, TDRSS, Iridiuml anmajority of globe
commercial SATCOM systems.

Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (“"UAV”")Ve design, manufacture, test, and operate aerg@ttdrone systems and composite structures,
such as the BQM-167A, BQM-167i, and BQM-177A and\BQ77i. We also supply UAV platforms with sensa@sionics and electronic
components including electro-optical/infrared sesstraining systems and ground shelters. We aluufacture and provide avionics systems
and ground flight control systems for certain UANMtforms. These products and solutions are usdd/n platforms such as the MQ 1C Gray
Eagle, MQ-1C Sky Warrior, Gorgon Stare, MQ-8 Fioo®, RQ-4B Broad Area Maritime Surveillance anel Bersistent Threat Detection
System ISR platform.

Ballistic Missile Defense Test and Evaluatitve have expertise in the area of ballistic missit# and evaluation services, primarily
dedicated to AEGIS Ballistic Missile Defense missioThis includes exclusive rights to the marketifithe Oriole Rocket System for target
services, sounding rockets and suborbital rese®etpossess both the intellectual property andestibjatter expertise in sensors modeling and
simulation associated with a wide range of migsitdhnologies. This area of our business developperduces low-cost ballistic missile
defense targets. These ballistic missile targefs&1S Readiness Assessment VehiclesARAV”) are a key test and evaluation componen
the U.S. AEGIS based Ballistic Missile Defense éarc

Cyber and ITWe provide a variety of cybersecurity products aerices to the DoD and intelligence community. &kfer NeuralStar
®and dopplerVUE our proprietary software based network managenmmeulugts, via software license and maintenance ,satgsh also serve
as a platform for incremental network-based sessgerk. We have extensive experience building cemphd secure networks for the U.S.
Government and possess in-depth experience withonebperations centers. We also scan our customesgorks for cyber threats. We are
involved in a wide range of services, includingafiation, upgrade and maintenance of commandyalrcomputing, and surveillance systems
for customers such as the Department of HomelandrBg (‘DHS”), U.S. State Department and the Spaice Naval Warfare Systems Center.

Learning, Performance and Training Solutiofair learning, performance and training solutionsstst of a broad range of products
and service capabilities. We design, manufactudenaarket full-scale training simulators for fixedag aircraft (Harrier, and Prowler), rotary-
wing aircraft (UH-60 Blackhawk, CH-47 Chinook, aB#i-53 Sea Stallion) and ground combat vehicles Addlams Main Battle Tank, M2/M3
Bradley fighting vehicles and High Mobility Artillg Rocket Systems or HIMARS). We deliver trainirgjusions and web-enabled or satellite-
based interactive distance learning for custonretee DoD, other government agencies, universigscommercial organizations. Our training
solutions include services, product developmerd,tanls addressing a wide range of related digeglithat include deep human performance
and competency-based needs analysis. We spedéialiativering full lifecycle manpower, personneldainaining support for acquisition
programs and a cross-domain analysis program stpgpq@rogram systems integration requirements. iGuovative design and development
group delivers training solutions that span clamsrdfield, e-learning, simulation, mobile and ses@aming delivery modalities as well as
incorporating learning management services in @ur kgarning management platform or client-basedtsmis.




Table of Contents

Missile Range Operations and Technical Serviédsey area of differentiation for us is within th@ssile and gun range and technical
service areas. We have resources stationed at majoy range locations throughout the U.S., inclgditaval Air Warfare Center Pt. Mugui;
Hawaii Pacific Missile Range Facility; Fort Bliskexas; White Sands Missile Range, New Mexico andaN8ervice Warfare Center Dahlgren
Division. Our services include aerial target operat and maintenance, surface and undersea tggettmns and maintenance, missile systems
operations and maintenance, range operations pliguamd support, test and evaluation target laupehations, hazardous materials
management, supply and logistics support, and naatwring.

Weapon Systems Lifecycle Sustainment, Supportxaed€tonWe provide weapons systems lifecycle sustainmeppart, and
extension services for the DoD and foreign govemserhese services focus on maintaining, testimgrepairing certain weapons systems ¢
as the Chaparral and HAWK missile systems and tHe&5® Kiowa helicopter.

Manufacturing of Specialized Tactical Combat PraduShelters and Enclosures for C5ISR Systems, UA®apons Systems and
Warfighters.We provide tactical combat vehicle shelters for&F®kystems, UAVs, weapons systems and Warfigh@enstactical military
facilities and products include lightweight, higinemgth enclosures for widely recognized militarggrams and platforms such as the Littoral
Combat Ship and the DDG-1000 Destroyer, as welliggedized and readily transported enclosures. Mé&oyr products include high altitude
electromagnetic pulse protection and other typedesftromagnetic, electronic warfare and othergmtiins. Our product design approach
focuses on highly engineered enclosures and fasilihat have the flexibility to be modified to yamique customer specifications. We routir
design, integrate and install other componentssgatéms into our standard products, such as comrmanttol and communication systems
infrastructure, racks and cabinets and power digion and lighting.

Public Safety & Security Segment (Critical Infrasicture Security)

Our PSS segment provides independent integratatisw for advanced homeland security, public gafaitical infrastructure, and
security and surveillance systems for governmenistrial and commercial customers. Our solutianBide designing, engineering, installing
and servicing physical security systems and teduies$ that protect people, critical infrastructsteategic assets, and property and make
facilities more secure and efficient. We provideigons in such areas as the design, engineeridgparation of command and control centers;
the design, engineering, deployment and integradfaccess control; building automation and conttommunications; digital and closed circ
television security and surveillance; fire and B&dfety; maintenance and services and product supgvices.

We provide solutions for customers in the criticdtastructure, power generation, power transpuartlear energy, financial, IT,
healthcare, education, transportation and petrmagts industries, as well as certain governmentraililary customers. For example, we
provide biometrics and other access control teadgies to customers such as pipelines, electriédd gmunicipal port authorities, power plants,
communication centers, large data centers, govarnmstallations and other commercial enterpsid&/e have comprehensive experience
providing engineering and design services at amgetof a project lifecycle, including program masragnt, engineering design, system
engineering, operations and maintenance, and atgdjtelecommunications.

Security Systems IntegratioWe have broad experience integrating security sesvand solutions across a number of network and
communications platforms. In particular, our nodd&al business has extensive experience and hakged significant customer relationships
by providing best-in-class systems integrationises/on a variety of platforms including digitaPfIsurveillance and security, building
automation systems and controls, fire and lifetgafgstems, access control and perimeter protediu service and maintenance of the
aforementioned systems.

Competitive Strengths

We believe we have robust intellectual propertpatilities, customer relationships, platform pasi§ and past performance
qualifications in our respective business areaduding a work force that is experienced with tlagious programs we service and the customers
we serve. We believe the following key strengttstidguish us competitively:

Significant and highly specialized experientlrough existing customer engagements and the gmet-focused
acquisitions we have completed over the past skyeaas, we have amassed significant and highlgiafiged experience in areas
directly related to C5ISR, including cybersecuriyberwarfare, information assurance and situatiawareness; military range
operations and technical services; missile, rockad, weapons systems test and evaluation; missimth services; modeling and
simulation; UAV products and technology; advancetiork engineering and IT services; and publictyafecurity and
surveillance systems integration. We also produodyzts and provide solutions and services refaeartain C5ISR platforms,
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unmanned system platforms, weapons systems, nbsiecarity related assets and Warfighter systematiding electronic attack
and electronic warfare systems. This collectiveegigmce, or past performance qualifications, isquirement for the majority of
our contract vehicles and customer engagementsy lgfaour approximately 4,300 employees have speeidinational security
expertise. Many of the products that we produckig@eor contain our intellectual property. Manytloé program positions we ha
are on a “sole source” basis. We believe theseacharistics represent a significant competitivergjth and position us to win
renewal or follow-on business.

Specialized national security focus aligned witkssiun-critical national security prioritiesContinued concerns related to
the threats posed by certain foreign nations amdrists have caused the U.S. Government to idenéfional security as an area of
functional and spending priority. Budget pressupasticularly related to DoD spending, have plaagatemium on developing and
fielding relatively low-cost, high-technology sdhts to assist in national security missions. Qimary capabilities and areas of
focus, listed below, are strongly aligned with tigectives of the U.S. Government:

. Intelligence, surveillance and reconnaiss

. Satellite communications and radio frequency dite
. Command, control and combat syst

. Unmanned syster

. Ballistic missile defen:

. Electronic warfare and atta

. Cybersecurity and information assure

Diverse base of key contracts with low concentratidany of our contracts are single-award, where Kg#&dhe only
awardee by the customer. Additionally, as a resfultur business development focus on securing keyracts, we are also a
preferred contractor on numerous multi-year, govenmt-wide acquisition contracts (“GWACs”) and npli award contracts. Our
preferred contractor status provides us with thgoainity to bid on billions of dollars of businesach year against a discrete
number of other pre-qualified companies. We hakghly diverse base of contracts with no contrapresenting more than 4% of
2012 revenue. Our fixed-price contracts, almospfalhich are production contracts, represent apprately 73% of our 2012
revenue. Our cost-plus-fee contracts and time aatenmals contracts represent approximately 15%1284 , respectively, of our
2012 revenue. We believe our diverse base of ketracts and low reliance on any one contract pesvigs with a stable, balanced
revenue stream.

In-depth understanding of client missioW¢e have a reputation for providing mission-critipabducts, services and
solutions to our clients. Our long-term relatiomshivith the U.S. Air Force, U.S. Army, and U.S. Mand other national security
related customers enable us to develop an in-demthrstanding of their missions and technical ndadsddition, the majority of
our employees are located at our customer sitegcatre manufacturing facilities or at criticalrastructure locations, all of which
provides valuable strategic insight into our clglingoing missions and future program requiremdittis understanding of our
clients' missions, in conjunction with the stratelgication of our employees, enables us to offereal solutions tailored to our
clients' specific requirements and evolving missibjectives. In addition, once we are on-site wittustomer, we have historically
been successful in winning recompete business.

Significant cash flow visibility driven by stabladklog.As of December 30, 2012, our total backlog was @xiprately
$1.3 billion , of which approximately $674.0 milfiavas funded backlog. The majority of our salesfiame orders issued under
long-term contracts, typically three to five yearsluration. Our contract backlog provides vistiinto stable future revenue and
cash flow over a diverse set of contracts.

Highly skilled employees and an experienced manageteaamWe deliver our services through a skilled workfoofe
approximately 4,300 employees. Our senior managmrs significant experience with U.S. Governmeminages, the U.S. military
and U.S. Government contractors. Members of ourag@ment team have experience growing businessestyznically and
through acquisitions. We believe that the cumudatixperience and differentiated expertise of ousgrenel in our core focus are
coupled with our sizable employee base allows wgisdify for and bid on larger projects in a pricantracting role.
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Our Strategy

Our strategy is to continue to grow our business leading provider of highly differentiated teclogy. products, solutions and
services in our core areas of focus, as noted almyveelivering comprehensive, high-end engineeseyices, technical solutions, product
manufacturing, and IT solutions to U.S. Governnaggncies while improving our margin rates, oveuedfitability and operating cash flows.
achieve our objective, we intend to focus on irdégrowth and to eliminate costs where possible.

Accelerate Internal Growtt

We are focused on accelerating our internal graatid by capitalizing on our current contract basd @ustomer relationships,
expanding product, solution and service offerings/jgled to our existing clients, and expanding dignt and contract base.

Expand Product, Solution and Service Offerings Rle to Existing ClientdVe are focused on expanding the products, solutiads
services we provide to our current clients by lagérg our strong relationships, technical capaediand past performance record, and by
offering a wider range of comprehensive productssolutions as we make select investments in spesigoroducts and solutions we believe
can be growth areas for us. In regard to new arkeggecialization, our recent acquisitions haveaexied our product and service offerings to
include manufacturing of specialized defense ed@dts products, integrated technology solutionssédellite communications and specialized
unmanned aerial targets and unmanned aerial vehidle believe our understanding of client missipngcesses and needs, in conjunction with
our C5ISR offerings, including cybersecurity, cylvarfare and situational awareness, positions eafture new work from existing clients.
Moreover, we believe our strong past performancertepositions us to expand the level of servicegvovide to our clients.

Capitalize on Current Contract Basé&/e are pursuing new program and contract opporésnénd awards as we build the business with
our expanding customer base, contract portfolid, @oduct, solution and service offerings. We aygrassively pursuing task orders under
existing contract vehicles to maximize our reveand strengthen our client relationships. We haweldped several internal tools that facilitate
our ability to track, prioritize and win task ordarnder these vehicles. Combining these tools evititechnical expertise, our strong past
performance record and our knowledge of our cliersds should position us to win additional taslecs.

Expand Client and Contract Bad#/e are also focused on expanding our client baeeaireas with significant growth opportunities by
leveraging our capabilities, industry reputati@and-term client relationships and diverse contbaste. We anticipate that this expansion will
enable us both to pursue additional higher valugwaaod to further diversify our revenue base actbed).S. Government.

Improve Operating MargindVe believe that we have opportunities to increaseoperating margins and improve profitability by
capitalizing on our corporate infrastructure inveshts and internally developed tools, improvingcedhicies and reducing costs, and
concentrating our efforts on increasing the peagmbf revenues generated from high value-addetamis

Capitalize on Corporate Infrastructure Investmeihtstecent periods, we have made significant investsiin our senior management
and corporate infrastructure in anticipation ofifetrevenue growth. These investments includeddsenior executives with significant
experience in the national security industry, giteaening our internal controls over financial repa and accounting staff in support of public
company reporting requirements, and expanding acklbg and bid and proposal pipeline. We will Headting additional resources in our
pursuit of new and larger contract opportunitiesgtaging our increased scale and robust pastrpefee qualifications. We believe our
management experience and corporate infrastruatereore typical of a company with a much largeeneie base than ours. We therefore
anticipate that, to the extent our revenue groveswill be able to leverage this infrastructure baise increase our operating margins.

Strategic Acquisitions
We have acquired and are integrating businessemtiet our primary strategic objectives of expagdiar customer relationships,
enhancing our current portfolio, increasing ourrallgpast performance qualifications and furtherg strategic positioning on national sect

priority programs. Our senior management team lgasfisant acquisition experience. See Note 3 efltotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements contained within this Annual Reporfdiother information regarding our acquisitions.
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Acquisitions in the KGS segment

On July 2, 2012, we completed the acquisition afnfosite Engineering, Inc. (“CEI") for approximatei§64.2 million . The purchase
price including an adjustment for working capitatiacash to be paid to the shareholders for theh3@&)) election includes $135.0 million in
cash, and 4.0 million shares of the Company's comstuck, valued at $5.94 per share on July 2, 20M$23.8 million . $10.7 million of the
cash paid was placed into an escrow account asityefou CEl's indemnification obligations as setth in the CEI purchase agreement and will
be reduced by $1.0 million to pay the working calpgidjustment owed to us in July 2013. In additiva,paid $2.5 million to retire certain pre-
existing CEI debt and settle pre-existing accourtgivable from CEI at its carrying and fair vahfe3.0 million . We plan to make an election
under Section 338(h)(10) of the Internal RevenudeCwhich will result in tax deductible goodwilllaged to this transaction and as a result we
will pay an estimated $1.7 million in additionak téability incurred by the shareholders of CEl this election. We estimate that the tax
deductible goodwill and intangibles, which is sabj® change based upon the final fair value oétssacquired and liabilities assumed, will be
approximately $141.8 million and can be deducteddderal and California state income taxes oveb-gear period.

In connection with the CEI acquisition certain Giersonnel entered into long-term employment agre&meith us. On July 2, 2012,
we granted restricted stock units (“RSUs”) for ggr@gate 2.0 million shares of common stock as-teng retention inducement grants to
certain employees of CEl who have joined Krato® Ri$Us had an estimated value of $11.9 milliorhengrant date, cliff vest on the fourth
anniversary of the closing of the CEI acquisitiongarlier upon the occurrence of certain evemis,aae being accounted for as compensation
expense over this four year period.

To fund the acquisition of CEI, on May 14, 2012, seéd 20.0 million shares of our common stock ptiechase price of $5.00 per sh
in an underwritten public offering. We received gg@roceeds of approximately $100.0 million andpmeteeds of approximately $97.0 million
after deducting underwriting fees and other offgxpenses. We used the net proceeds from thisngff® fund a portion of the purchase price
for the acquisition of CEIl. In addition, we borraiv40.0 million from our revolving line of creda partially fund the purchase price of CEL.

CEl is a vertically integrated manufacturer andedeper of unmanned aerial target systems and cdtestaictures used for national
security programs. Its drones are designed toaaplisome of the most lethal aerial threats faditagfighters and strategic assets. CEl's
customers include U.S. and foreign governments.

On November 15, 2011, we acquired Securelnfo Catjmr (“Securelnfo”) for $20.3 million in cash, vehi included a $1.5 million
earn-out payment made in the first quarter of 2@H&ed in northern Virginia, Securelnfo is a legdigbersecurity company specializing in
assisting defense, intelligence, civilian governtrem commercial customers to identify, understalodument, manage, mitigate and protect
against cybersecurity risks while reducing inforimatsecurity costs and achieving compliance witpliapble regulations, standards and
guidance. Securelnfo offers strategic advisoryraenal cybersecurity and cybersecurity risk mamagnt services and is a recognized lead
the rapidly evolving fields of cloud security, contous monitoring and cybersecurity training. Costes include the DoD, DHS and large
commercial customers, including market-leading dloamputing service providers.

On July 27, 2011, we acquired Integral Systems,(Ifategral”) in a cash and stock transaction ealat $241.1 million. As
consideration for the acquisition of Integral, etaiegral stockholder (i) received $5.00 per stwrimtegral common stock, in cash, for an
aggregate payment of approximately $131.4 milliod @i) was issued 0.588 shares of our common dimckach share of Integral common
stock held by each such stockholder, for an ag¢eeafaapproximately 10.4 million shares of our coomstock valued at $108.7 million. The
cash portion of the acquisition was substantiallydied with the gross proceeds from the sale ol0% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 in the
aggregate principal amount of $115.0 million issoaduly 27, 2011.

In addition, upon completion of the merger (i) eaditstanding Integral stock option with an exergigee less than $13.00 per share
was, if the holder thereof had so elected in wgiticanceled in exchange for an amount in cash égulé product of the total number of shares
of Integral common stock subject to such in-the-ayooption, multiplied by the aggregate value ofékeess, if any, of $13.00 over the exercise
price per share subject to such option, less treuatof any tax withholding, (ii) each outstandintegral stock option with an exercise price
equal to or greater than $13.00 per share andlasegral in-the-money option the holder of whicldreot made the election described in
(i), above, was converted into an option to puref@s common stock, with the number of shares stibjesuch option adjusted to equal the
number of shares of Integral common stock subgestith out-of-the-money option multiplied by 0.95&8unded up to the nearest whole share,
and the per share exercise price under each sticim @gljusted by dividing the per share exerciseepunder such option by
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0.9559, rounded up to the nearest whole cent,ighdgch outstanding share of restricted stockiggad under an Integral equity plan or
otherwise, whether vested or unvested, was caneel@donverted into the right to receive $13.085 lhe amount of any tax withholding.

Integral is a global provider of products, systemd services for satellite command and contraéntelry and digital signal processing,
data communications, enterprise network managearehtommunications information assurance. Integpatializes in developing, managing
and operating secure communications networks, &attlite and terrestrial, as well as systems andces to detect, characterize and geolocate
sources of radio frequency interference. Integcalgomers include U.S. and foreign commercialggoment, military and intelligence
organizations. For almost 30 years, customers tediezl on Integral to design and deliver innovatteenmerciallybased products, solutions €
services that are cost-effective and reduce dgliseinedules and risk.

On March 25, 2011, we acquired Herley Industries, (“Herley”) in a cash tender offer to purcha®fthe outstanding shares of
Herley common stock. The shares of Herley commaocksivere purchased at a price of $19.00 per shamrdingly, we paid total aggregate
cash consideration of $270.7 million in respedhefshares of Herley common stock and certainerptioney options, which were exercised
upon the change in control of Herley. In additioppn completion of the merger, all unexercisedamtito purchase Herley common stock were
assumed by us and converted into options to pueah@scommon stock, entitling the holders thereakteive 1.3495 shares of our common
stock for each share of Herley common stock undgglthe options. Herley is a leading provider otraivave technologies for use in command
and control systems, flight instrumentation, weapsensors, radar, communication systems, electwani@re and electronic attack systems.
Herley has served the defense industry for appratain 45 years by designing and manufacturing naiexe devices for use in high-technology
defense electronics applications. It has estaldisbtionships, experience and expertise in thitamyi electronics, electronic warfare and
electronic attack industry. Herley's products repret key components in the national security effofthe U.S., as they are employed in mission
critical electronic warfare, electronic attack,attenic warfare threat and radar simulation, comanaamd control network, and cyber
warfare/cybersecurity applications.

Acquisition in the PSS segment

On December 30, 2011, we acquired selected adsatsritical infrastructure security and publicetgfsystem integration business (the
“Critical Infrastructure Business”) for approximbt&18.8 million which includes a final agreementtbe working capital adjustment.  The
Critical Infrastructure Business designs, engineggploys, manages and maintains specialty seay#egms at some of the United States' most
strategic asset and critical infrastructure locaticAdditionally, these security systems are typidategrated into command and control system
infrastructure or command centers. Approximatel%o1df the revenues of the Critical InfrastructuresiBess are recurring in nature due to the
operation, maintenance or sustainment of the sga@ystems once deployed.

Customers

A representative list of our customers in our K@greent during 2012 included the U.S. Air Force,.lABny, U.S. Navy, U.S.
Marines, Missile Defense Agency, the DHS, NASA, dign Military Sales (“FMS”), the U.S. Southern Cowamd, U.S. Intelligence Community
and certain classified customers. In 2012, reptaiga customers in the PSS segment included Paxrg Beach, Port Authority of New York
& New Jersey, Prudential, New York University, Hitle Scripps Clinic, PNC Bank, Halliburton, AT&TGhevron, Mellon Bank, Calpine Power
Plants, Capital Health, DuPont Fabros, BP Ametitayersity of Houston, Meridian Health and Memotttdrmann Hospital System.

Revenue from the U.S. Government (which includesSMcludes revenue from contracts for which wetheeprime contractor as w
as those for which we are a subcontractor andltimeate customer is the U.S. Government. Reverges £J.S. Government agency customers
in aggregate accounted for approximately 87% , @#65% of total revenues in 2010, 2011 , and 20&8pectively.

Backlog

As of December 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 hacklog was approximately $1.1 billion and $1I8dn , respectively, of which
$472.0 million was funded in 2011 and $674.0 milligas funded in 2012Backlog is our estimate of the amount of revernaeexpect to realiz
over the remaining life of awarded contracts as#t xders that we have in hand as of the measutatagn Our total backlog consists of fun
and unfunded backlog. We define funded backlogtmated future revenue under government conteaigask orders for which funding has
been appropriated by Congress and authorized fagraditure by the applicable agency, plus our eséirofithe future revenue we expect to
realize from our commercial contracts that are vfid® orders. Our funded backlog does not incltieefull potential value of our contracts
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because Congress often appropriates funds to loebysen agency for a particular program of a cattoa a yearly or quarterly basis even
though the contract may call for performance oveumber of years. As a result, contracts typicatly only partially funded at any point during
their term, and all or some of the work to be penfed under the contracts may remain unfunded ualegsintil Congress makes subsequent
appropriation and the procuring agency allocatagifig to the contract.

Unfunded backlog reflects our estimate of futureereie under awarded government contracts and tdsksdfor which either funding
has not yet been appropriated or expenditure hiagatdeen authorized. Our total backlog doesm@tde estimates of revenue from
government-wide acquisition contracts or Generalies Administration schedules beyond awardedindéd task orders, but our unfunded
backlog does include estimates of revenue beyorualdma or funded task orders for other types offinde delivery, indefinite quantity
contracts based on our experience under such ctsyarad similar contracts. Unfunded backlog alstuites priced options, which consist of the
aggregate contract revenues expected to be easreetkeault of a customer exercising an option gethat has been specifically defined in the
original contract award.

Contracts undertaken by us may extend beyond aare Aecordingly, portions are carried forward frome year to the next as part of
backlog. Because many factors affect the schedolipgojects, no assurance can be given as to whamue will be realized on projects
included in our backlog. Although funded backlogresents only business that is considered to tve fire cannot guarantee that cancellatior
scope adjustments will not occur. The majoritywfded backlog represents contracts with termsatbatd entitle us to all or a portion of our
costs incurred and potential fees upon cancelldtyotihe customer.

Management believes that year-to-year comparisbbaaklog are not necessarily indicative of futteeenues. The actual timing of
receipt of revenues, if any, on projects includedacklog could change because many factors dffeccheduling of projects. In addition,
cancellation or adjustments to contracts may od®acklog is typically subject to large variatiomsrh quarter to quarter as existing contracts
renewed or new contracts are awarded. Additionally).S. Government contracts included in backlegether or not funded, may be
terminated at the convenience of the U.S. Goverhmen

Employees

As of December 30, 2012 , we had a work force pfaximately 4,300 full-time, part-time and on-cathployees, many of whom hold
an active national security clearance.

Competition

Our market is competitive and includes the fullgaof companies in the U.S. defense industry aadniormation, services and
security integration industries. Many of the comiparthat we compete against have significantlytgrdaancial, technical and marketing
resources and generate greater revenues than \@@uhpetition in the federal business segment ireduer one, large U.S. Government
contractors such as Northrop Grumman, LockheediMdseneral Dynamics, SAIC, ITT Systems, Computgeisces Corporation, ARINC,
Raytheon, BAE Systems, and CACI. While we view gawgent contractors as competitors, we often teatm thhese companies in joint
proposals or in the delivery of our services fastomers. Tier two competitors include smaller andHier government contractors such as
AeroVironment, Anaren, API Technologies, Dynamies®&arch Corporation, iRobot and Mercury Computstedys. Intense competition and
long operating cycles are both key characteristicsur business within the defense industry. &tdsxmon in the defense industry for work on
major programs to be shared among a number of auegad company competing to be a prime contrast@ubcontractor on an award may,
upon final award of the contract to another comipetbecome a subcontractor for the final primetimtor. It is not unusual to compete for a
contract award with a peer company and, simultasigpperform as a supplier to or be a customehatf same competitor on other contracts, or
vice versa. The nature of major defense prograomjucted under binding contracts, allows compathiasperform well to benefit from a level
of program continuity not frequently found in otliedustries. Competition in the PSS segment indugiemens Building Technology, Johnson
Controls, Diebold, and Convergint Technologies.

We believe that the principal competitive factar®iur ability to win new business include past perfance qualifications, customer
relationships, domain and technology expertise]lgttual property positions, the ability to re@amntract vehicles, the ability to deliver results
within budget (time and cost), reputation, accohbitity, staffing flexibility, including the large umber of personnel with government security
clearances, and project management expertise. Wésdeur ability to compete also depends on a remobadditional factors, including the
ability of our customers to perform the servicemntiselves and competitive pricing for similar seggicThere is intense competition among n
companies in the IT and services markets, whictganerally more labor intensive with highly compe# margin rates and contract
performance periods of shorter duration. Competitothe IT and services markets include the defémdustry participants mentioned
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above as well as many other large and small entitith specialized expertise. Our ability to susfalyy compete in the IT and services markets
depends on a number of factors. The most impoféatdr is the ability to deploy skilled professitgianany of whom require national security
clearances, at competitive prices across the divegrsctrum of these markets.

In the U.S. defense industry, IT, and services etarkhe U.S. Government has stressed competitidmifiordability in connection wil
its future procurement of products and servicess Titay lead to fewer sole source awards, as wellae emphasis on cost competitiveness. In
addition, the DoD has announced several initiatteeémprove efficiency, refocus priorities, modifgntract terms, and enhance DoD best
practices including those used to procure goodssandces from defense contractors. See the IndBsttkground section in Item 7
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan€athdition and Results of Operations” and Iltem 1AskR-actors” contained within this
Annual Report. These initiatives, when implementedether with planned reductions in defense spenidivels, are likely to result in fewer n
opportunities for our industry as a whole with mdesmanding terms. A reduced opportunity set idylike intensify competition within the
industry as companies compete for a more limité@seew programs.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@ission (“SEC”). We make available on our webaitéer “Investor
Relations/SEC Filings,” free of charge, our anmegbrts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@ Gurrent reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports as soon as reasomabticable after we electronically file such madéxiwith or furnish them to the SEC. Our
website address 8ww.kratosdefense.com

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following riskttas and all other information contained hereinvesll as the information included
this Annual Report and other reports and filingsdaavith the SEC in evaluating our business andgeots. Risks and uncertainties, in addition
to those we describe below, that are not presémibyvn to us or that we currently believe are immatenay also impair our business
operations. If any of the following risks occury tsiness and financial results could be harmed e price of our common stock could
decline. You should also refer to the other infaiioracontained in this Annual Report, including @mnsolidated Financial Statements and
related notes.

Risks Related to Our Business

The U.S. Government provides a significant portiohour revenue, and our business could be adversdfgcted by changes in the fiscal
policies of the U.S. Government and governmentafiges.

In fiscal 2010, 2011 and 2012 , we generated 87284 and 65% , respectively, of our total reverfua® contracts with the U.S.
Government (including all branches of the U.S. tianili), either as a prime contractor or a subcotdraVe expect to continue to derive most of
our revenues from work performed under U.S. Govemtraontracts. As a result, any reductions or aglogernment budgetary constraints and
any changes in government contracting policiesccadlversely affect our financial performance.

With the passage of the Budget Control Act of 20Budget Control Act”), current projections of tibeD indicate that government
spending is expected to decrease. Part | of thg@&udontrol Act provided for a reduction in defespending by at least $487 billion over a ten
year period. Part Il provided the potential for stalntial additional automatic reductions split betw defense and r-defense programs, throu
a process known as "sequestration."”

In January 2013, Congress enacted the AmericanaljaxiRelief Act of 2012. It addressed a numbeawfdode provisions and certain
spending issues but left in place the sequestiro(aih delaying its implementation to March 1, 20413d did not address other fiscal matters
such as the debt ceiling. Although debate on budggtctions continued through the first two moradh2013, no resolution was reached prior to
the March 1, 2013 sequester deadline. As a rakelRPresident was required by law to issue an aaeereling $85 billion in budgetary resour
across the U.S. Government for the remainder o26%3. The Office of Management and Budget (OMBjsneport to Congress of March 1,
2013, entitled ‘'OMB Report to the Congress on the Joint Commitsegistration; calculated that, over the course of the fiscalryéhe order
requires a 7.8 percent reduction in non-exemptdefeiscretionary funding and a 5.0 percent redndti non-exempt nodefense discretiona
funding. The sequestration also requires reductidi’s9 percent to non-exempt defense mandatoryranaes. The sequestration report provides
calculations of the amounts and percentages byhwladous budgetary resources are required todecesl, and a listing of the reductions
required for each non-exempt budget account. Fedgeacies were directed to apply the same pergemeluction to all programs, projects,
and activities within a budget account, as requing&ection 256(k)(2) of Balanced Budget and Emaegdeficit Control Act, as amended
(BBEDCA), and to operate in a manner
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that is consistent with guidance provided by OMB/iemorandum 13-03, Planning for Uncertainty wittspect to Fiscal Year 2013 Budgetary
Resources and Memorandum 13-05, Agency Respotisibilor Implementation of Potential Joint Comneteequestration.

The delay in the sequester has left the DoD less to enact 2013 automatic spending cuts and addscertainty from such cuts. The
nation's debt ceiling is currently expected todmched in the first half of 2013. The U.S. Govermnnwentinues to face substantial fiscal and
economic challenges that affect funding for itciionary and non-discretionary budget. Currer@ligngress has not passed the Fiscal Year
(“FY”) 2013 budget. Congress and the Administraiontinue to debate these issues and the termpagsible national fiscal approach. It is
unclear whether annual appropriations bills willggssed during FY 2013 and the U.S. Governmentapayate under a continuing resolution
for all of FY 2013. If this occurs new contractgyogram starts will be restricted for the year.

The continuing resolution and pending decisionateel to sequestration and the debt ceiling mayedseroverall government funding
for defense and homeland security, result in delayise procurement of our products and servicestduack of funding, cause the U.S.
Government and government agencies to reducegheihases under existing contracts, or cause thexetrcise their rights to terminate
contracts at-will or to abstain from exercisingiops to renew contracts, any of which would havadwerse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

If we fail to establish and maintain important reteonships with government agencies and prime comtas, our ability to successfull
maintain and develop new business may be adverafgcted.

Our reputation and relationship with the U.S. Gawegnt, and in particular with the agencies of tl2nd the U.S. intelligence
community, are key factors in maintaining and depilg new business opportunities. In addition, fterpact as a subcontractor or in “teaming”
arrangements in which we and other contractorsdgdther on particular contracts or programs feruhS. Government or government
agencies. We expect to continue to depend onaakitips with other prime contractors for a portadur revenue for the foreseeable future.
Negative press reports regarding conflicts of edérpoor contract performance, employee misconéormation security breaches or otl
aspects of our business, regardless of accuraald barm our reputation. Additionally, as a subcactor or team member, we often lack cor
over fulfillment of a contract, and poor performaran the contract could tarnish our reputationnevieen we perform as required. As a result,
we may be unable to successfully maintain ourimeiahips with government agencies or prime contractand any failure to do so could
materially adversely affect our ability to maintaiar existing business and compete successfullgdar business.

If our subcontractors or suppliers fail to perforrtheir contractual obligations, our performance angputation as a contractor and our abili
to obtain future business could suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely upon other pames as subcontractors to perform work we arigatield to perform for our client
As we secure more work under certain of our cobhtrahicles, we expect to require an increasingllefsupport from subcontractors that
provide complementary and supplementary servicesitofferings. We are responsible for the workigrened by our subcontractors, even
though in some cases we have limited involvemetttabwork. If one or more of our subcontractoikttasatisfactorily perform the agreegbor
services on a timely basis or violate U.S. Govemtneentracting policies, laws or regulations, ohitity to perform our obligations as a prime
contractor or meet our clients' expectations magdmpromised. In extreme cases, performance or défeiencies on the part of our
subcontractors could result in a client terminating contract for default. A termination for defacbuld expose us to liability, including liability
for the agency's costs of re-procurement, couldadgnour reputation and could hurt our ability tmpete for future contracts.

We also are required to procure certain materiadsparts from supply sources approved by the Udse@ment. The inability of a
supplier to meet our needs or the appearance otedeit parts in our products could have a matedaerse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

We face intense competition from many competitdratthave greater resources than we do, which cowddult in price reductions, reduced
profitability or loss of market share

We operate in highly competitive markets and gdhlyeeacounter intense competition to win contrdoben many other firms, includir
mid-tier federal contractors with specialized calitids and large defense and IT services providémnpetition in our markets may increase as
a result of a number of factors, such as the ecgrafnew or larger competitors, including thoserfed through alliances or consolidation, or
reduction in the overall number of government caets. We may also face competition from prime @rors for whom we currently serve as
subcontractors or teammates if those prime comtrachoose to offer client services of the type Weare currently providing. Recently,
procurement awards have been
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based on lowest price, technically acceptable maigoIn addition, we may face competition from swibcontractors who, from time-to-time,
seek to obtain prime contractor status on contfactahich they currently serve as a subcontraftars.

Many of our competitors have greater financialhtecal, marketing and public relations resourcasydr client bases and greater brand
or name recognition than we do. These competitoutdc among other things:

« divert sales from us by winning very largeale government contracts, a risk that is enhabgéde recent trend in governm
procurement practices to bundle services into tazgetracts and the recent trend of awards on asoprice, technically
acceptable basis;

« divert sales from us by the award of governnoenitracts to our competitors who may be willindid at substantially lower
prices;

« force us to charge lower prices

« adversely affect our relationships with currelignts, including our ability to continue to wiompetitively awarded
engagements in which we are the incumbent.

If we lose business to our competitors or are fibtodower our prices, our revenue and our opeyatiofits could decline.
Our business is dependent upon our ability to kegegze with the latest technological changes.

The market for our services is characterized bidrepange and technological improvements. Failomespond in a timely and cost
effective way to these technological developmerdald/result in serious harm to our business andatipg results. We have derived, and we
expect to continue to derive, a substantial portibour revenues from providing innovative engitegiservices and technical solutions that are
based upon today's leading technologies and thategrable of adapting to future technologies. Aesalt, our success will depend, in part, on
our ability to develop and market service offeritigat respond in a timely manner to the technokdgidvances of our customers, evolving
industry standards and changing client preferences.

Loss of our GSA contracts or GWACs would impair caipility to attract new busines:

We are a prime contractor under several GSA castaatd GWAC vehicles. We believe that our abilityptovide services under these
contracts will continue to be important to our Inesis because of the multiple opportunities for aegagements each contract provides. If we
were to lose our position as prime contractor o @nmore of these contracts, we could lose sutistaevenues and our operating results could
suffer. GSA contracts and other GWACs typically dvavone or two-year initial term with multiple apis exercisable at the government client's
discretion to extend the contract for one or marary. We cannot be assured that our governmentsliéll continue to exercise the options
remaining on our current contracts, nor can wedserad that our future clients will exercise opgiom any contracts we may receive in the
future.

Government contracts differ materially from stand&icommercial contracts, involve competitive biddiagd may be subject to cancellation
delay without penalty.

Government contracts frequently include provisitha are not standard in private commercial traitsas and are subject to laws and
regulations that give the U.S. Government rights medies not typically found in commercial cootsaincluding provisions permitting the
U.S. Government to:

« terminate our existing contrac

¢ reduce potential future income from our existingtcacts

« modify some of the terms and conditions in our taxiscontracts

e suspend or permanently prohibit us from doing bessrwith the U.S. Government or with any specifieegnment agenc

e impose fines and penalti

e subject us to criminal prosecuti

» suspend work under existing multiple year cartand related task orders if the necessary farelaot appropriated by
Congress;

» decline to exercise an option to extend an existindiple year contract; a

« claim rights in technologies and systems invendestieloped or produced by

In addition, government contracts are frequentharasd only after formal competitive bidding proeesssvhich have been and may

continue to be protracted and typically impose jsions that permit cancellation in the event thetassary funds are unavailable to the public
agency. Competitive procurements impose substartgbs and managerial time and effort
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in order to prepare bids and proposals for corgrdizit may not be awarded to us. In many caseacoessful bidders for government agency
contracts are provided the opportunity to formaligtest certain contract awards through variousieige, administrative and judicial channels.
The protest process may substantially delay a sstdebidder's contract performance, result in ellatton of the contract award entirely and
distract management. We may not be awarded costi@ctvhich we bid, and substantial delays or chaben of purchases may follow our
successful bids as a result of such protests.

Certain of our government contracts also contaigdoizational conflict of interest” clauses thatikcblimit our ability to compete for
certain related follow-on contracts. For exampleewwe work on the design of a particular solutiee,may be precluded from competing for
the contract to install that solution. While weiaely monitor our contracts to avoid these condljate cannot guarantee that we will be able to
avoid all organizational conflict of interest issue

We may not receive the full amounts estimated unthe contracts in our backlog, which could reducararevenue in future periods below tl
levels anticipated and which makes backlog an urtaeér indicator of future operating results.

As of December 30, 2012 , our total backlog was@pmately $1.3 billion , of which $674.0 millionas funded. Funded backlog is
estimated future revenue under government conteactgask orders for which funding has been appataat by Congress and authorized for
expenditure by the applicable agency, plus ounedé of the future revenue we expect to realizen foor commercial contracts that are under
firm orders. Although funded backlog representy dmisiness which is considered to be firm, cantieia or scope adjustments may still occur.
The remaining $635.0 million of our total backlagaf December 30, 2012 unfunded. Unfunded backlog reflects our estinodfeture revenu
under awarded government contracts and task ofaewghich either funding has not yet been apprdpdar expenditure has not yet been
authorized. Unfunded backlog does not include egésof revenue from GWAC or GSA schedules beyarat@ed or funded task orders but
does include estimates of revenue beyond awardiohded task orders for other types of indefinigdiveery, indefinite quantity contracts. The
amount of unfunded backlog is not exact or guaeghged is based upon, among other things, manageregperience under such contracts
similar contracts, the particular clients, the tgbevork and budgetary expectations. Our managemegtnot accurately assess these factors or
estimate the revenue we will realize from thesdreats, and our unfunded and total backlog mayreftect the actual revenue ultimately
received from these contracts.

Backlog is typically subject to large variationerfr quarter to quarter and comparisons of backiog foeriod to period are not
necessarily indicative of future revenues. The et comprising our backlog may not result in acteavenue in any particular period or at all,
and the actual revenue from such contracts magrdifdm our backlog estimates. The timing of reteffrevenues, if any, on projects included
in backlog could change because many factors afiectcheduling of projects. Cancellation of ouatipents to contracts may occur.
Additionally, all U.S. Government contracts incldde backlog, whether or not funded, may be terteitat the convenience of the U.S.
Government. The failure to realize all amountsun leacklog could adversely affect our revenuesginds margins. As a result, our funded and
total backlog as of any particular date may noab@ccurate indicator of our future earnings.

A preference for minorit-owned, small and small disadvantaged businessesdcmpact our ability to be a prime contractor arertain
governmental procurement:

As a result of the SBA set-aside program, the fdgsvernment may decide to restrict certain precwents only to bidders that qualify
as minority-owned, small, or small disadvantagesiesses. As a result, we would not be eligibleetdorm as a prime contractor on those
programs and in general would be restricted to ncerthan 49% of the work as a subcontractor oretposgrams. An increase in the amount of
procurements under the SBA set-aside program mpgdtrour ability to bid on new procurements asim@icontractor or restrict our ability to
recompete on incumbent work that is placed in #teside program.

U.S. Government in-sourcing could result in loss lefisiness opportunities and personnel.

The U.S. Government has continued to reduce theeptage of contracted services in favor of morerf@demployees through an
initiative called “in-sourcing.” Over time, in-sating could have a material adverse affect on asgiress, financial condition and results of
operations. Specifically, as a result of in-stngdederal procurements for services could be feamel smaller in the future. In addition, work
we currently perform could be in-sourced by theefatigovernment and, as a result, our revenues tmuteduced. Moreover, our employees
working on contracts could also be hired by theegoment. This loss of our employees would necssihe need to retain new employees.
Accordingly, the effect of in-sourcing, or the tiomation of in-sourcing at a faster than expectgd, could have a materially adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations over time.
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Our business could be negatively impacted by sdgutfireats, including cybersecurity threats, anchet disruptions.

Many of the systems we develop, install and maintaiolve managing and protecting information irwea in intelligence, national
security and other sensitive or classified U.S. &poment functions. We face various security thréatduding cybersecurity threats, to gain
unauthorized access to this sensitive informatida.also face threats to the safety of our directffgcers, and employees; threats to the sec
of our facilities and infrastructure; and threats terrorist acts. Although we utilize various gedures and controls to monitor these threats
mitigate our exposure to such threats, there carlessurance that these procedures and contiblsevgufficient in preventing security threats
from materializing. If any of these events werenaterialize, they could lead to the loss of sevesitiformation, critical infrastructure, personnel
or capabilities essential to our operations angereus from being eligible for further work on séive or classified systems for U.S.
Government clients. Further, any losses we in@mfsuch a security breach could exceed the patiaysl under our errors and omissions and
product liability insurance. Any losses we incury @amage to our reputation or any limitations aneligibility for additional work resulting
from a security breach could materially reducerevenue and could have a material adverse effestipbusiness, financial condition and
results of operations.

Cybersecurity attacks in particular are evolving arclude, but are not limited to, malicious softesaattempts to gain unauthorized
access to data, and other electronic security besahat could lead to disruptions in mission @aitsystems, unauthorized release of confide
or otherwise protected information and corruptibdata. We have experienced cybersecurity attacisyaay experience them in the future.
These events could damage our reputation and defatbincial losses from remedial actions, lossudibess, loss of proprietary and trade secret
information or potential liability.

If we experience systems or service failure, oupuéation could be harmed and our clients could agsglaims against us for damages
refunds.

We create, implement and maintain IT solutions #natoften critical to our clients' operations. Wae experienced, and may in the
future experience, some systems and service fajlsoledule or delivery delays and other problent®innection with our work. If we
experience these problems, we may:

* lose revenue due to adverse client reac

« be required to provide additional services to entlat no charg

e cause clients to postpone, cancel or fail to recemtracts

* receive negative publicity, which could damage reutation and adversely affect our ability toattror retain clients; a
« suffer claims for substantial damag

While many of our contracts limit our liability fmonsequential damages that may arise from negi@inrendering services to our
clients, we cannot ensure that these contractoaigions will be legally sufficient to protect Udsaie are sued. In addition, our errors and
omissions and product liability insurance coveragg not be adequate, may not continue to be alaitabreasonable terms or in sufficient
amounts to cover one or more large claims, orrterer may disclaim coverage as to some typesufdelaims. The successful assertion of
any large claim against us could seriously harmbasiness. Even if not successful, these claimkigesult in significant legal and other costs,
may be a distraction to our management and may barmeputation.

Our financial results may vary significantly fromwprter to quarter.

We expect our revenue and operating results tofvany quarter to quarter. Reductions in revenug jrarticular quarter could lead to
lower profitability in that quarter because a rieflly large amount of our expenses are fixed insth@rtterm. We may incur significant operati
expenses during the start-up and early stagesg® @ntracts and may not be able to recognizesponding revenue in that same quarter. We
may also incur additional expenses when contraetseaminated or expire and are not renewed.

In addition, payments due to us from U.S. Goverrtragencies may be delayed due to billing cyclessar result of failures of
government budgets to gain congressional and asiration approval in a timely manner. The U.S. Goweent's fiscal year ends September 30.
If a federal budget for the next federal fiscalryleas not been approved by that date in each geaclients may have to suspend engagements
that we are working on until a budget has beenagat. Any such suspensions may reduce our reverthe ifourth quarter of the federal fiscal
year or the first quarter of the subsequent yelae. 0.S. Government's fiscal year end can alsodriggreased purchase requests from clien
equipment and materials. Any increased purchaseests|we receive as a result of the U.S. Governsifistal year end would serve to increase
our
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third or fourth quarter revenue, but will generallscrease profit margins for that quarter, as theteities generally are not as profitable as our
typical offerings.

Additional factors that may cause our financialtesto fluctuate from quarter to quarter includege addressed elsewhere in these
Risk Factors and the following, among others:

« the terms of customer contracts that affect thentinof revenue recognitio

« variability in demand for our services and solusi

« commencement, completion or termination of congrdctring any particular quart

e timing of shipments and product deliver

« timing of award or performance incentive fee njce

« timing of significant bid and proposal co:

» variable purchasing patterns under GSA Schetlileontracts, GWACS, blanket purchase agreemedtsther indefinite
delivery/indefinite quantity contracts;

« restrictions on and delays related to the expodedénse articles and servic

« costs related to government inquir

» strategic decisions by us or our competitorshsas acquisitions, divestitures, spiffis and joint venture

« strategic investments or changes in business g,

« changes in the extent to which we use subcontis

« seasonal fluctuations in our staff utilization &

» changes in our effective tax rate including demin our judgment as to the necessity of theat@n allowance recorded
against our deferred tax assets; and

« the length of sales cycli

Significant fluctuations in our operating results & particular quarter could cause us to fallafidompliance with the financial
covenants related to our debt, which if not waivemld restrict our access to capital and caude take extreme measures to pay down our
under the credit facility. In addition, fluctuat®m our financial results could cause our stodé&epto decline.

Our margins and operating results may suffer if vegperience unfavorable changes in the proportionaafst-plus-fee or fixedprice contract:
in our total contract mix.

Although fixed-price contracts entail a greatek 1§ a reduced profit or financial loss on a cocttigmpared to other types of contracts
we enter into, fixed-price contracts typically pide higher profit opportunities because we mayMtie # benefit from cost savings and
operating efficiencies. In contrast, cost-plusdeatracts are subject to statutory limits on proférgins, and generally are the least profitable of
our contract types. Our U.S. Government custonygisdlly determine what type of contract we entéoi Cost-plus-fee and fixed-price
contracts in our federal business accounted forcegipately 24% and 65% , respectively, of our fedleusiness revenues for the year ended
December 30, 2012 . To the extent that we entemirdre cost-plus-fee or less fixed-price contrattgroportion to our total contract mix in the
future, our margins and operating results may suffe

Our cash flow and profitability could be reducedéikpenditures are incurred prior to the final req#iof a contract.

We provide various professional services, spe@édljroducts, and sometimes procure equipment atetiaia on behalf of our U.S.
Government customers under various contractuahgeraents. From time to time, in order to ensurewleasatisfy our customers' delivery
requirements and schedules, we may elect to mifiedcurement in advance of receiving final auttaiibon from the government customer or a
prime contractor. If our government or prime coatna customers' requirements should change oeifjtivernment or the prime contractor
should direct the anticipated procurement to arestdr other than us or if the equipment or matetacome obsolete or require modification
before we are under contract for the procurementjrvestment in the equipment or materials mighabrisk if we cannot efficiently resell
them. This could reduce anticipated earnings arlr@sa loss, negatively affecting our cash flomdarofitability.

We have incurred and may continue to incur goodwitipairment charges in our reporting entities, whiaould harm our profitability.
As of December 30, 2012 , goodwill represented @pprately 46% of our total assets. In accordandh Rinancial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Cimdifion (“ASC”) Topic 350 Intangibles-Goodwill ardther (“Topic 3507), we

periodically review the carrying values of our gadltito determine whether such carrying values extcthe fair market value. Our acquired
companies are subject to annual review for goodmitlairment. If impairment
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testing indicates that the carrying value of a répg unit exceeds its fair value, the goodwilltbé reporting unit is deemed impaired.
Accordingly, an impairment charge would be recogdifor that reporting unit in the period identified

The identification and measurement of impairmenbives the estimation of the fair value of repagtimits. Accounting for impairme
contains uncertainty because management must dge@nt in determining appropriate assumptions todeel in the measurement of fair val
The estimates of fair value of reporting units laased on the best information available as of #te df the assessment, incorporate managemer
assumptions about expected future cash flows anigcplate other valuation techniques. Future dasysfcan be affected by changes in
industry or market conditions among other things.

In 2012, as a result of our annual review, we dedra goodwill impairment charge of $82.0 milli@hated to our KGS segment, to
reflect the declining market valuations and thenecoic uncertainty in the U.S. defense industry eesalt of uncertainty in our business
environment due to the substantial fiscal and esvachallenges facing the U.S. Government. Givencilirrent market conditions and
continued economic uncertainty in the U.S. deféndestry, including sequestration and issues sading the national debt ceiling, our future
revenues, profits and cash flows could be substéntower than our current projections. In additionarket-based inputs to the calculations in
the impairment test, such as weighted averageofa@stpital, and market multiples, could also beatiegly impacted. Such circumstances may
result in the future deterioration of the fair valof our KGS reporting unit and an additional inpegnt of our goodwill within that unit. Due to
continual changes in market and general businesdittms, we cannot predict whether, and to whétmx our goodwill and long-lived
intangible assets may be impaired in future peridahy resulting impairment loss could harm our gedfility and financial condition.

Failure to properly manage projects may result id@itional costs or claims.

Our engagements often involve large scale, higbigmlex projects. The quality of our performancesanh projects depends in large
part upon our ability to manage the relationshighwiur customers and to effectively manage theept@nd deploy appropriate resources,
including third-party contractors and our own persal, in a timely manner. Any defects or erroréailure to meet clients' expectations could
result in claims for substantial damages againgDus contracts generally limit our liability foathages that arise from negligent acts, error,
mistakes or omissions in rendering services toccbents. However, we cannot be sure that theseac@l provisions will protect us from
liability for damages in the event we are suedaddition, in certain instances, we guarantee custetimat we will complete a project by a
scheduled date. If the project experiences a pegoce problem, we may not be able to recover tbgiadal costs we will incur, which could
exceed revenues realized from a project. Findllyei underestimate the resources or time we needrtplete a project with capped or fixed
fees, our operating results could be seriously bdrm

We use estimates when accounting for contracts ang changes in such estimates could have an adveffect on our profitability and our
overall financial performance.

When agreeing to contractual terms, our managemakés assumptions and projections about futureitiomsland events, many of
which extend over long periods. These projectiazess the productivity and availability of labamnplexity of the work to be performed, cost
and availability of materials, impact of delayedfpemance and timing of product deliveries. Contiazcounting requires judgment relative to
assessing risks, estimating contract revenues@sid,and making assumptions for schedule anditsdhissues. Due to the size and nature of
many of our contracts, the estimation of total reses and costs at completion is complicated angatuio many variables. For example,
assumptions are made regarding the length of tinceinplete a contract since costs also includea&géncreases in wages, prices for mate
and allocated fixed costs. Similarly, assumptiaesraade regarding the future impact of our efficiemitiatives and cost reduction efforts.
Incentives, awards or penalties related to perfogaan contracts are considered in estimating revand profit rates and are recorded when
there is sufficient information to assess anti@ggterformance. Suppliers' assertions are alsssss@and considered in estimating costs and
profit rates.

Because of the significance of the judgment anichasion processes described above, it is posdiblenaterially different amounts
could be obtained if different assumptions werelusef the underlying circumstances were to cha@gnges in underlying assumptions,
circumstances or estimates may have a materialrsele#fect upon the profitability of one or moretloé affected contracts, future period
financial reporting and performance. See the Gilithkccounting Policies and Estimates section imlig“Management's Discussion and Anal
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsfitained within this Annual Report.
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Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carigrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

Federal and state income tax laws impose restngtm the utilization of net operating loss (“NOlahd tax credit carryforwards in the
event that an “ownership change” occurs for tayppses, as defined by Section 382 of the InternaéRee Code of 1986, as amended
(“Section 382"). In general, an ownership changeuog when shareholders owning 5% or more of a ‘tosporation” (a corporation entitled to
use NOL or other loss carryovers) have increaseid thivnership of stock in such corporation by mibien 50 percentage points during any 3-
year period. The annual base Section 382 limitaiaalculated by multiplying the loss corporatiowalue at the time of the ownership cha
by the greater of the long-term tax-exempt ratemeined by the Internal Revenue Service in the mohthe ownership change or the two
preceding months. In March 2010, an “ownership ge&occurred that will limit the utilization of tHess carryforwards. Additionally, in May
2012 , another “ownership change” was triggereda Assult of this change in May, the Company'sri@dnnual utilization of NOL
carryforwards will be limited to $28.1 million agefor the five years succeeding the initial owhgrshange and $11.6 million per year
thereafter. If the entire limitation amount is mtitized in a year, the excess can be carried fahaad utilized in future years. For the year er
December 30, 2012 , there was no impact of sudlaliimns on the income tax provision since the amaidi taxable income did not exceed the
annual limitation amount. In addition, future eguifferings or acquisitions that have equity asmponent of the purchase price could also
result in an “ownership change.” If and when arfyeot‘'ownership change” occurs, utilization of th@INor other tax attributes may be further
limited. As discussed elsewhere, deferred tax sisskdting to the NOL and credit carryforwards @fifset by a full valuation allowance. In
addition, utilization of state tax loss carryfordsiis dependent upon sufficient taxable income djgmed to the states.

Risks Related to Our Operations
We may need additional capital to fund the growthaur business, and financing may not be availalde favorable terms or at all.

We currently anticipate that our available capiéslources, including our credit facility and oprgicash flow, will be sufficient to
meet our expected working capital and capital edjiere requirements for at least the next 12 moritosvever, these resources may not be
sufficient to fund the long-term growth of our uesss. If we determine that it is necessary to r&ilsitional funds, either through an expansion
or refinancing of our credit facility or throughlgic or private debt or equity financings, addi@bfinancing may not be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. Disruptions in the talp@nd credit markets may continue indefinitelyraensify, which could adversely affect our
ability to access these markets. Limitations onbmrowing base contained in our credit facilityyntianit our access to capital, and we could
out of compliance with financial and other covesardntained in our credit facility which, if not ivad, would restrict our access to capital and
could require us to pay down our existing debt urlde credit facility. Our lenders may not agre@xéend additional or continuing credit under
our credit facility or waive restrictions on ourcass to capital. If we were to conduct a publiprivate offering of securities, any new offering
would be likely to dilute our stockholders' equitiwnership. If adequate funds are not available®mnat available on acceptable terms, we may
not be able to take advantage of available oppitiesndevelop new products or otherwise resporabtopetitive pressures and our business,
operating results or financial condition could batemially adversely affected.

Recent acquisitions and potential future acquisti® could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt odyusiness, dilute stockholder value a
strain our resources

During 2011 and 2012, we acquired five companieshé future, we may acquire additional businetisatswe believe could
complement or expand our business or increaseustiommer base. Integrating the operations of acdiusinesses successfully or otherwise
realizing any of the anticipated benefits of acitjaiss, including anticipated cost savings and toldal revenue opportunities, involves a nun
of potential challenges. The failure to meet thiesegration challenges could seriously harm ouadirial condition and results of operations.
Realizing the benefits of acquisitions dependsairt pn the integration of operations and persorifedse integration activities are complex and
time-consuming, and we may encounter unexpectéidudtfes or incur unexpected costs, including:

« our inability to achieve the operating synergiescgrated in the acquisitior

« diversion of management attention from ongoing tess concerns to integration mat

« difficulties in consolidating and rationalizing fatforms and administrative infrastructu

« complexities associated with managing the gguycaseparation of the combined businesses andldating multiple
physical locations where management may deterngnsatidation is desirable;

« difficulties in integrating personnel from difnt corporate cultures while maintaining focugpooviding consistent, high
quality customer service;

« difficulties or delays in transitioning U.S. Goverant contracts pursuant to federal acquisition legiguns
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« challenges in demonstrating to customers of Kratabsto customers of acquired businesses that thesion will not result i
adverse changes in customer service standardssimrelss focus;

« possible cash flow interruption or loss of revease result of change of ownership transitionatenstan:

< inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetuisition cost

Acquired businesses may have liabilities or advepsrating issues that we fail to discover throdga diligence prior to the
acquisition. In particular, to the extent that pavners of any acquired businesses or propeditsifto comply with or otherwise violated
applicable laws or regulations, or failed to fulfileir contractual obligations to the U.S. Goveemtnor other clients, we, as the successor owner
may be financially responsible for these violatiansl failures and may suffer reputational harmtbewise be adversely affected. Acquisitions
also frequently result in the recording of goodwitid other intangible assets which are subjecotenpial impairment in the future that could
harm our financial results. In addition, if we fire acquisitions by issuing convertible debt oritycgecurities, our existing stockholders may be
diluted, which could affect the market price of stwck. Acquisitions and/or the related equity ficiags could also impact our ability to utilize
our NOL carryforwards. As a result, if we fail tooperly evaluate acquisitions or investments, wg mat achieve the anticipated benefits of
such acquisitions, and we may incur costs in exatshat we anticipate. Acquisitions frequently ahwe benefits related to integration of
operations. The failure to successfully integratedperations or otherwise to realize any of thizigated benefits of the acquisition could
seriously harm our results of operations.

If we are unable to manage our growth, our businessd financial results could suffer

Sustaining our growth has placed significant demsardour management, as well as on our adminigtratperational and financial
resources. For us to continue to manage our grawghmust continue to improve our operational, fesiahand management information systems
and expand, motivate and manage our workforce. tiadilly, our future financial results depend intgan our ability to profitably manage our
growth on a combined basis with the businessesawve acquired and those we may acquire in the fuimee are unable to manage our growth
while maintaining our quality of service and prafirgins, or if new systems that we implement gisa$nh managing our growth do not produce
the expected benefits, our business, prospectsdial condition or operating results could be askly affected.

The loss of any member of our senior managementlddampair our relationships with U.S. Governmentiehts and disrupt the management
of our business.

We believe that the success of our business andbility to operate profitably depends on the awntid contributions of the members
of our senior management. We rely on our senioragement to generate business and execute proguacessfully. In addition, the
relationships and reputation that many membersiogenior management team have established andamaivith U.S. Government personnel
contribute to our ability to maintain strong clieetationships and to identify new business opptites. The loss of any member of our senior
management could impair our ability to identify aseture new contracts, to maintain good clientiogla and to otherwise manage our busir

If we fail to attract and retain skilled employees employees with the necessary national securigatances, we might not be able to perfo
under our contracts or win new business.

The growth of our business and revenue dependsde bart upon our ability to attract and retaiffigent numbers of highly qualified
individuals who have advanced IT and/or engineeskilis. These employees are in great demand antikaty to remain a limited resource in
the foreseeable future. In addition, certain U.8v&nment contracts require us, and some of out@mes, to maintain national security
clearances. Obtaining and maintaining national rigotlearances for employees involves a lengtlocess, and it is difficult to identify, recruit
and retain employees who already hold nationalrgalearances. Further, some of our contractsainmprovisions requiring us to staff an
engagement with personnel that the client conskkgyso our successful performance under the contirmthe event we are unable to provide
these key personnel or acceptable substitutioas;libnt may terminate the contract. As a resiitigl are unable to recruit and retain a sufficient
number of qualified employees, we may lose revemgeour ability to maintain and grow our businessid be limited.

Moreover, in a tight labor market, our direct lalbosts could increase or we may be required togmigaige numbers of subcontractor
personnel, which could cause our profit marginsufer. Conversely, if we maintain or increase staffing levels in anticipation of one or more
projects and the projects are delayed, reduceermitated, we may underutilize the additional pengd, which would increase our general and
administrative expenses, reduce our earnings asgllgp harm our results of operations.
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Risks Related to Our International Operations
Revenues derived from our international businesg aubject to global economic downturn and hardst

Our international business represents 12% of dal tevenue, which may be impacted by changesr&idn national priorities and
government budgets and may be further impacteddiyageconomic conditions and fluctuations in fgrecurrency exchange rates. Continued
international economic uncertainty and reductionsdnsumer spending may result in reductions imrevenue. Additionally, disruptions in
international credit markets may materially limitnsumer credit availability and restrict credit igadaility of our customers. Any reduction in
international sales of our solutions, resultingrfreeductions in consumer spending or continuedigisyn in the availability of credit to retaile
or consumers, could materially and adversely affectousiness, results of operations and finarcadition.

Our international business exposes us to additioniaks.

Our operations outside of the United States argestibo risks that are inherent in conducting bestgnunder nobiited States law
regulations and customs, including those related to

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuationseptilly reducing the United States dollars we irecéor sales denominated in
foreign currency;

« the possibility that unfriendly nations or groumsild boycott our solution

e political conditions in the markets in which we cgte

e potential increased costs associated with oventgpiaix structure

« importexport contro

« more limited protection for intellectual propertghrts in some countrie

« difficulties and costs associated with staffing amehaging foreign operatiol

* unexpected changes in regulatory requirem

« the difficulties of compliance with a wide variatf foreign laws and regulatiol

* longer accounts receivable cycles in certairifpr countries, whether due to cultural differeneashange rate fluctuation or
other factors;

« technology transfer restrictions; ¢

« changes to our distribution netwot

These risks, individually or in the aggregate, dduhve an adverse effect on our results of operstod financial condition. For
example, we are subject to compliance with the ééh@tates Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and siraitéirbribery laws, which generally
prohibit companies and their intermediaries fronkimg improper payments to foreign government officifor the purpose of obtaining or
retaining business. While our employees and ageptsequired to comply with these laws, we caneddure that our internal policies and
procedures will always protect us from violatiorishese laws, despite our commitment to legal céampk and corporate ethics. The
occurrence or allegation of these types of riskg awversely affect our business, performance, pispvalue, financial condition, and results
of operations. In addition, our international caets may include industrial cooperation agreemejsiring specific in-country purchases,
investments, manufacturing agreements or othendiahobligations, known as offset obligations, gmndvide for penalties if we fail to meet
such requirements. The impact of these factor#fisudt to predict, but one or more of them coualdversely affect our financial position, res
of operations, or cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Outstanding Indebtedness

We significantly increased our leverage in connextiwith the financing of recent acquisitions and weave substantial indebtedness, which
could adversely affect our cash flow, financial cdition and business.

In connection with the acquisition of Herley antelgral, we incurred $285.0 million and $115.0 roitliof indebtedness, respectively.
As of December 30, 2012 , we had approximately $560llion of total indebtedness outstanding, whitiudes $18.7 million of unamortized
debt premium, and $0.9 million of capital leasegdiions. As a result of this increased indebtesin@sr interest payment obligations have
increased significantly. The degree to which wel@veraged could have adverse effects on our bssingcluding the following:

e it may limit our flexibility in planning for, or racting to, changes in our business and the inésstiwhich we opera
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e it may require us to dedicate a substantialipomf our cash flow from operations to paymentoanindebtedness, thereby
reducing the availability of our cash flow to fumdrking capital, capital expenditures and otheregahcorporate purposes;

« it may restrict us from making strategic acquisii®@r exploiting business opportunit

« it may place us at a competitive disadvantage coedpi@ our competitors that have less ¢

* it may limit our ability to borrow additional fung

« it may prevent us from raising the funds necgstarepurchase our outstanding Notes tendered tbthere is a change of
control, which would constitute a default under ithdenture governing such notes and under ourtdaality; and

« it may decrease our ability to compete effectivapperate successfully under adverse economiinaiadtry condition:

Our higher level of indebtedness increases thethiskwe may default on our debt obligations. We i@ unable to generate sufficient
cash flow to pay the interest on our debt. If wee@mable to service our indebtedness, we will beefibto adopt an alternative strategy that may
include actions such as reducing capital experehiigelling assets, restructuring or refinancingimdebtedness or seeking additional equity
capital. These alternative strategies may not feet@d on satisfactory terms, if at all, and thegymot yield sufficient funds to make required
payments on our indebtedness.

If, for any reason, we are unable to meet our dehtice and repayment obligations, we would beefiawlt under the terms of the
agreements governing our debt, which would allowareditors at that time to declare certain outditagnindebtedness to be due and payable,
which would in turn trigger crossicceleration or crosslefault rights between the relevant agreementaditition, our lenders could compel us
to apply all of our available cash to repay ourbwaings or they could prevent us from making payts@m our indebtedness. If the amounts
outstanding under any of our indebtedness were tacbelerated, our assets may not be sufficieneipay in full the money owed to the lenders
or to our other debt holders.

We and our subsidiaries may incur more debt, whitlay increase the risks associated with our substreverage, including our ability to
service our indebtednes

The agreements governing our debt permit us, uswlae circumstances, to incur certain additionagleldness or obligations. To the
extent that we incur additional indebtedness ohsiher obligations, the risks associated withsulrstantial leverage described above, inclt
our possible inability to service our debt, wouldrease.

The agreements governing our debt impose significaperating and financial restrictions on us and ogubsidiaries that may prevent us ai
our subsidiaries from pursuing certain business appunities and restrict our ability to operate odonusiness.

The indenture and the amended credit and secuigeanent governing our credit facility subjectarsd our subsidiaries, to several
financial and other restrictive covenants, inclgdimitations on liens or indebtedness, paymertivflends, transactions with affiliates, and
mergers, sales or other dispositions of our assets.

Our credit facility also requires us to comply wapecified financial ratios, including a borrowibgse availability and minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio. Many factors, including ¢&véeyond our control, may affect our ability torguy with these covenants and financial
ratios. We cannot be sure we will meet our delztegl obligations or that lenders will waive anyuee to meet those obligation. Any failure to
meet those debt related obligations could reswdhievent of default under our other indebtednedgtze acceleration of such indebtedness.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property
We may be unable to protect our intellectual profyerights.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarkgyights, trade secrets and nondisclosure agresn@protect our proprietary
intellectual property. Our efforts to protect ontellectual property and proprietary rights may metsufficient. We cannot be sure that our
pending patent applications will result in the esce of patents to us, that patents issued taemdied by us in the past or in the future will lme
challenged or circumvented by competitors or thasé patents will remain valid or sufficiently bdda preclude our competitors from
introducing technologies similar to those covergabr patents and patent applications. In additiam,ability to enforce and protect our
intellectual property rights may be limited in @t countries outside the United States, whichadcoudke it easier for competitors to capture
market position in such countries by utilizing teologies that are similar to those developed @nléed by us. Competitors also may harm our
sales by designing products that mirror the cajtigsilof our products or technology without infring our intellectual property rights. If we do
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not obtain sufficient protection for our intelleatyproperty, or if we are unable to effectively @k our intellectual property rights, our
competitiveness could be impaired, which wouldimir growth and future revenue.

Some of the technology that is developed by ug¥®kbped under contract for our DoD customers. Adiogly, such intellectual
property and rights to technology development areenl by the U.S. Government.

We may be harmed by intellectual property infringent claims.

We may become subject to claims from our emplogedkird parties who assert that software and dibrens of intellectual property
that we use in delivering services and solutionsuioclients infringe upon intellectual propertghts of such employees or third parties. Our
employees develop some of the software and othersfof intellectual property that we use to prowide services and solutions to our clients,
but we also license technology from other vendbiur employees, vendors, or other third partieseat claims that we or our clients are
infringing on their intellectual property rightseveould incur substantial costs to defend thosensldf any of these infringement claims are
ultimately successful, we could be required to eesdling or using products or services that incmate the challenged software or technology,
obtain a license or additional licenses from oupleryees, vendors, or other third parties, or regesur products and services that rely on the
challenged software or technology.

Disclosure of trade secrets could cause harm to business

We attempt to protect our trade secrets by enténitogconfidentiality and intellectual property Egsnent agreements with third parti
our employees and consultants. However, these agrés can be breached and, if they are, there wiadyenan adequate remedy available to us.
In addition, others may independently discovertoagle secrets and proprietary information, andushsases we could not assert any trade
secret rights against such party. Enforcing a claiat a party illegally obtained and is using gade secret is difficult, expensive and time
consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. lareeunable to protect our intellectual property, @mpetitors could market services or
products similar to our services and products, Whimuld reduce demand for our offerings. Any litiga to enforce our intellectual property
rights, protect our trade secrets or determinev#ifieity and scope of the proprietary rights ofethcould result in substantial costs and divel
of resources, with no assurance of success.

Risks Related to Regulatory, Environmental and Legilssues
Our failure to comply with complex procurement lavasid regulations could cause us to lose businesd aunbject us to a variety of penalties.

We must comply with laws and regulations relatioghte formation, administration and performanc&&. Government contracts,
which affect how we do business with our clienténe contractors, subcontractors and vendors arydimaose added costs on us. New
regulations or procurement requirements (includiogexample regulations regarding counterfeit emdupt parts, supply chain diligence and
cyber security) or changes to current requirementsid increase our costs and risk of non-compéa@ur role as a contractor to agencies and
departments of the U.S. Government results in eingoroutinely subject to investigations and reéeelating to compliance with various laws
and regulations, including those associated wigfaoizational conflicts of interest, procuremenedgrity, bid integrity and claim presentation,
among others. These investigations may be condudtedut our knowledge. Adverse findings in theseaistigations or reviews can lead to
criminal, civil or administrative proceedings and would face civil and criminal penalties and adstiative sanctions, including termination of
contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payts, fines and suspension or debarment from dnismess with U.S. Government agencies.
In addition, we could suffer serious harm to oyoutation and competitive position if allegationdrapropriety were made against us, whethe
not true. If our reputation or relationship withSJ Government agencies were impaired, or if the G&ernment otherwise ceased doing
business with us or significantly decreased thewarhof business it does with us, our revenue ardating profit would decline.

Our contracts and administrative processes and syt are subject to audits and cost adjustmentsieyd.S. Government, which could
reduce our revenue, disrupt our business or othesaviadversely affect our results of operations.

U.S. Government agencies, including the Defensdar@anAudit Agency (“DCAA”"), routinely audit and wtestigate government
contracts and government contractors' adminisggiiocesses and systems. These agencies revigerfommance on contracts, pricing
practices, cost structure and compliance with apple laws, regulations and standards. They alsewehe adequacy of our compliance with
government standards for our accounting and manageoh internal control systems, including: coneolironment and overall accounting
system, general IT system, budget and planningsygturchasing system, material management andiaticg system, compensation system,
labor system, indirect and other direct
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costs system, billing system and estimating systeed for pricing on government contracts. Both icatibrs and the U.S. Government agencies
conducting these audits and reviews have come uncerased scrutiny. The current audits and revigav® become more rigorous, and the
standards to which contractors are being held @irggbmore strictly interpreted, increasing thellikgod of an audit or review resulting in an
adverse outcome. During the course of its curredits, the DCAA is closely examining and questigngeveral of our established and disclosed
practices that it had previously audited and a@kphcreasing the uncertainty as to the ultimatekision that will be reached. In addition,
based on a DCAA audit, the U.S. Department of dass currently investigating whether one of oursidiaries violated the federal False Cle
Act by overstating its labor and material costa itontract with the Department of Defense prichtoCompany's acquisition of the subsidiary.
Under the False Claims Act, the Department of dastan seek civil penalties plus treble damages.

A finding of significant control deficiencies in paystem audits or other reviews can result inelmented billing rates to our U.S.
Government customers until the control deficienaiescorrected and our corrections are accept&IA. Government audits and reviews
may conclude that our practices are not consistéhtapplicable laws and regulations and resuétdjustments to contract costs and mandatory
customer refunds. Such adjustments can be apgieshctively, which could result in significant taisier refunds. Our receipt of adverse audit
findings or the failure to obtain an “approved” el@ination of our various accounting and managenméetnal control systems, including our
changes to indirect cost and direct labor estingagistems, from the responsible U.S. Governmemt@geould significantly and adversely
affect our business, including our ability to bid mew contracts and our competitive position inkftgling process. A determination of non-
compliance with applicable contracting and procweetiaws, regulations and standards could alsdtriesthe U.S. Government imposing
penalties and sanctions against us, including witlihg of payments, suspension of payments aneéased government scrutiny that could
delay or adversely affect our ability to invoicedaeceive timely payment on contracts, perform i@t or compete for contracts with the U.S.
Government.

While we have submitted incurred cost claims thioR@11, the actual indirect cost audits by the DG#s&e not been completed for
fiscal 2006 and subsequent fiscal years. Althougtheave recorded contract revenues subsequent#éd 2806 based upon costs that we believe
will be approved upon final audit or review, wemlat know the outcome of any ongoing or future auditreviews and, if future adjustments
exceed our estimates, our profitability would bgeadely affected.

Our employees or others acting on our behalf mayage in misconduct or other improper activities, iwh could cause us to lose contracts.

We are exposed to the risk that employee fraudt@ranisconduct from our employees or others aaimgur behalf could occur.
Misconduct by employees or others could includeritibnal failures to comply with U.S. Governmentqurement regulations, engaging in
unauthorized activities or falsifying time recortiisconduct by our employees or others acting arbethalf could also involve the improper |
of our clients' sensitive or classified informatievhich could result in regulatory sanctions agairss serious harm to our reputation, a loss of
contracts and a reduction in revenues. It is neaps possible to deter misconduct, and the premasitive take to prevent and detect this activity
may not be effective in controlling unknown or unmaged risks or losses, which could cause us toclsgacts or cause a reduction in rever
In addition, alleged or actual misconduct by empésyor others acting on our behalf could resufastigations or prosecutions of persons
engaged in the subject activities, which could ltéewnanticipated consequences or expenses andgament distraction for us regardless of
whether we are alleged to have any responsibility.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of intesl controls, we may not be able to accurately repaur financial results or prevent fraud

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtvide reliable financial reports. If we cannabyide reliable financial reports, our
operating results could be misstated, our reputatiay be harmed and the trading price of our stockd be negatively affected. Our
management has concluded that there are no materdinesses in our internal controls over finanmgpbrting as of December 30, 2012.
However, although we continue to devote substatitied and resources to the documentation and tesfiour controls, there can be no
assurance that our controls over financial proceard reporting will be effective in the futuretbat material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in our internal controls will not bisebvered in the future. Any failure to remediatg &uture material weaknesses or implement
required new or improved controls, or difficultiescountered in their implementation, could harmaperating results, cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations or result in material stégements in our financial statements or othelipdisclosures. Inferior internal controls could
also cause investors to lose confidence in ourrtegdinancial information, which could have a niagaeffect on the trading price of our stock.
In addition, from time to time we acquire businasaéich could have limited infrastructure and systef internal controls.
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We are subject to environmental laws and potengaposure to environmental liabilities. This may afft our ability to develop, sell or rent ¢
property or to borrow money where such propertyaguired to be used as collater:

We use hazardous materials common to the industrighich we operate. We are required to followefied, state and local
environmental laws and regulations regarding thelhiag, storage and disposal of these materiatdting the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water
Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery AetCtbmprehensive Environmental Response, CompensatibLiability Act (“CERCLA”),
and the Toxic Substances Control Act. We coulduigest to fines, suspensions of production, altenadf our manufacturing processes or
interruption or cessation of our operations if \&i to comply with present or future laws or regigas related to the use, storage, handling,
discharge or disposal of toxic, volatile or othesgvhazardous chemicals used in our manufacturogepses. These regulations could require us
to acquire expensive remediation equipment ordarisignificant other expenses to comply with emwvinental regulations. Our failure to
control the handling, use, storage or disposabiofdequately restrict the discharge of, hazardabstances could subject us to liabilities and
production delays, which could cause us to misscaatomers' delivery schedules, thereby reducimgales for a given period. We may also
have to pay regulatory fines, penalties or othstx(including remediation costs), which could matly reduce our profits and adversely affect
our financial condition. Permits are required far operations, and these permits are subject @&l modification and, in some cases,
revocation.

In addition, under environmental laws, ordinancegegulations, a current or previous owner or oferaf property may be liable for
the costs of removal or remediation of some kirfdsetroleum products or other hazardous substamtesnder, or in its property, adjacent or
nearby property, or offsite disposal locationshwitt regard to whether the owner or operator knewracaused, the presence of the
contaminants, and regardless of whether the pescti@t resulted in the contamination were legtietime they occurred. We have incurred,
and may incur in the future, liabilities under CHRCand other environmental laws at our currentasnfer facilities, adjacent or nearby
properties or offsite disposal locations. The castociated with future cleanup activities thatmay be required to conduct or finance may be
material. The presence of, or failure to remedatgperly, hazardous substances may adversely #ffeetbility to sell or rent the property or to
borrow funds using the property as collateral. Addally, we may become subject to claims by tipiagties based on damages, including
personal injury and property damage, and costdtiegdirom the disposal or release of hazardoustuites into the environment.

New regulations related t“conflict minerals” may cause us to incur additioia@xpenses and could limit the supply and incredise cost of
certain metals used in manufacturing our products.

On August 22, 2012, the SEC adopted a new ruldniegudisclosures of specified minerals, known asflict minerals, that are
necessary to the functionality or production ofdarcts manufactured or contracted to be manufactoyqaliblic companies. The new rule, wh
is effective for calendar 2013 and requires a d&ale report to be filed by May 31, 2014, will regicompanies to diligence, disclose and re
whether or not such minerals originate from the Deratic Republic of Congo or an adjoining countiie will have to apply diligence to
discover whether such minerals are used in the faeture of our products. The new rule could affemircing at competitive prices and
availability in sufficient quantities of certain narals used in the manufacture of our productdjdirg tantalum, tin, gold and tungsten. The
number of suppliers who provide conflict-free madermay be limited. In addition, there may be mateosts associated with complying with
the disclosure requirements, such as costs reatetermining the source of certain minerals usenlr products, as well as costs of possible
changes to products, processes, or sources ofysappl consequence of such verification activi#sce our supply chain is complex, we may
not be able to sufficiently verify the origins it relevant minerals used in our products throbgtdtie diligence procedures that we implement,
which may harm our reputation. In addition, we neagounter challenges to satisfy those customersreduire that all of the components of
products be certified as conflict-free, which copldce us at a competitive disadvantage if we aeble to do so.

Litigation may distract us from operating our busass.

Litigation that may be brought by or against usld@ause us to incur significant expenditures asttatt our management from the
operation of our business. Furthermore, there eamobassurance that we would prevail in such titigeor resolve such litigation on terms
favorable to us, which may adversely affect ouafficial results and operations.

Natural disasters or severe weather conditions @bdisrupt our business and result in loss of revenar higher expense:

Our business depends on maintaining operationgrdtoilities and being able to operate at our@ustr facilities and project locatior

A serious, prolonged interruption or damage dugotmer outage, telecommunications outage, terratiatk, earthquake, hurricane, fire, floot

other natural disaster, or other interruption cdwdgle a material adverse effect on
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our business and financial results. While we ingg&inst certain business interruption risks, snstirance may not adequately compensate us
for any losses incurred as a result of naturatloerodisasters.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Some of our contracts with the U.S. Government atassified, which may limit investor insight intogotions of our business

We derive a portion of our revenues from prograrite the U.S. Government that are subject to secuestrictions (classified
programs) that preclude the dissemination of infdiom that is classified for national security pasps. We are limited in our ability to provide
details about these classified programs, theisrigkany disputes or claims relating to such progtaAs a result, you might have less insight
our classified programs than our other businessestherefore, less ability to fully evaluate tieks related to our classified business.

The market price of our common stock may be vokatil

The price of our stock has been in the past, aficc@ritinue to be, subject to fluctuations as altesf a number of factors, including:
our operating results fail to meet market or artalyexpectations; general fluctuations in the stoekket; actual or anticipated fluctuations in
operating results based on reduced and/or delayegtigment spending or the threat thereof; fluctuntiin the stock prices of companies in our
industry; changes in earnings estimated by seesr@nalysts or our ability to meet those estimatied;domestic and foreign economic
conditions. Such volatility has had a significaffeet on the market prices of many companies' seéesifor reasons unrelated to their operating
performance and, in the past, has led to secudléss action litigation. Securities litigation aga us could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of our management's attention and regsusghich could have an adverse effect on our basin

Certain provisions in our restated certificate afgorporation and seventh amended and restated bglaand of Delaware law, may prevent or
delay an acquisition of our company, which couldatease the trading price of our common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmatiur second amended and restated bylaws and/@reldaw contain provisions tt
are intended to deter coercive takeover practindsraadequate takeover bids by making such practicéids unacceptably expensive to the
raider and to encourage prospective acquirersgdotize with our board of directors rather thaattempt a hostile takeover. These provisions
include, among others:

. the inability of our stockholders to callesial meeting;

* rules regarding how stockholders may present paipas nominate directors for election at stockkolteeting:
the right of our board to issue preferredktwithout stockholder approval;

. a super-majority requirement to amend outifezate of incorporation or bylaws; and

the ability of our directors, and not stocklers, to fill vacancies on our board of directors.

Delaware law also imposes some restrictions on emetand other business combinations between uargnldolder of 15% or more of
our outstanding common stock.

We believe these provisions may help protect moks$tolders from coercive or otherwise unfair talexaactics by requiring potential
acquirers to negotiate with our board of direcamd by providing our board of directors with mdreed to assess any acquisition proposal. T
provisions are not intended to make our companyunmerfrom takeovers. In addition, although we belithese provisions collectively provide
for an opportunity to receive higher bids by reopgrpotential acquirers to negotiate with our bo#indy would apply even if the offer may be
considered beneficial by some stockholders. Thesdgions may also frustrate or prevent any attsrbgtour stockholders to replace or remove
our current management team by making it moreatiffifor stockholders to replace members of ourdoahich is responsible for appointing
the members of our management.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
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At December 30, 2012 , we owned or leased apprdgignd.2 million square feet of floor space at apjimately 84 separate locations,
primarily in the U.S., for manufacturing, warehaggiresearch and development, administration aridusother uses. At December 30, 2012 ,
we leased to third parties approximately 103,16&sg feet of our leased facilities, and had vaftaat space of approximately 115,141 square
feet. We continually evaluate our current and fispace capacity in relation to current and pregetiture staffing levels. We maintain our
properties in good operating condition and belignat the productive capacity of our propertiesdecuate to meet current contractual
requirements and those for the foreseeable future.
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We have major operations at the following locations

Kratos Government Solutions: Huntsville, AL; San Diego and Sacramento, CA;datlo Springs, CO; Fort Walton Beach and
Orlando, FL; Woburn, MA; Lanham, MD; Lancaster dalastown, PA; Charleston and Walterboro, SC; atlgren, Alexandria and
Chantilly, VA. Locations outside the U.S. includefce, Israel and the United Kingdom.

Public Safety and Security: Fullerton, CA; Newport, DE; Fairlawn, NJ and Hturg TX.
Corporate and other locations: San Diego, CA.

The following is a summary of our floor space atBmaber 30, 2012:

Square feet (in thousands) Owned Leased Total
Kratos Government Solutions 621 1,35¢ 1,97¢
Public Safety and Security — 15t 15¢
Corporate (includes San Diego operations of KGSR®E segments) — 34 34
Total 621 1,544 2,16¢

See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Finand&tke8ients contained within this Annual Report omi&0-K for information
regarding commitments under leases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated FiabStatements contained within this Annual ReporForm 10-K for a further
discussion of our legal proceedings

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
PART I
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skiwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market Information
Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Globale8eMarket and is traded under the symbol “KTOS.”

The following table sets forth the high and lowesaprices for our common stock for the periodscatdid, as reported by NASDAQ:
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High Low

Year Ended December 30, 2012:

Fourth Quarter $ 59t % 4.2
Third Quarter $ 6.04 $ 4.71
Second Quarter $ 5.9C$ 4.77
First Quarter $ 7.5¢ $ 5.9(
Year Ended December 26, 2011

Fourth Quarter $ 7.8¢$ 4.6t
Third Quarter $ 12.3t% 7.51
Second Quarter $ 14.2: % 10.4¢
First Quarter $ 145:% 12.9:

Holders of Record

On March 8, 2013, the closing sale price of our cmm stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Seleatkdt was $4.47 per share.
On March 8, 2013, there were 427 shareholderscofdeof our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not declared any cash dividends since bhagaarpublic company. We currently intend to retairy future earnings to finance
the growth and development of the business antkfthre, do not anticipate paying any cash dividéndke foreseeable future. In addition, our
ability to pay dividends is restricted by both thdenture entered into in connection with the issgsof our 10% Senior Secured Notes due 2017
and our amended credit and security agreement,asadiscussed in the section entitled “Liquidityl &apital Resources” in Item 7
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” and Note thefNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements contained within this Annual Report. Artyre determination to pay cash dividends wilklb¢he discretion of our board of directors
and will be dependent upon our future financialdition, results of operations and capital requireteegeneral business conditions and other
relevant factors as determined by our board otthrs.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans
The information required by Item 201(d) of RegudatiS-K is incorporated by reference to our defieitproxy statement filed in

connection with our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stocklesk or an amendment to this Annual Report tolbd fiiith the SEC within 120 days after
the close of our fiscal year ended December 302201
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” av be “filed” with the SEC, nor
shall such information be incorporated by refereirde any future filing under the Securities Actlo83, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or
the Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the “Exchawctj¢, except to the extent that we specificallyarporate it by reference into such filing.

The following performance graph presents a comparig the five year cumulative stockholder retunmooir common stock against the
cumulative total return of a broad equity marketeir, the Russell 2000 Stock Index, and an industtgx, including an old peer group
composed of AeroVironment Inc., CACI Internatiotrad., General Dynamics Corp., L3 Communicationsditajs Inc., Lockheed Martin Corj
Mantech International Corp., NCI Inc., SAIC IncRA& International Inc., and WPCS International Iremd a new peer group of AeroVironme
Anaren, API Technologies, Dynamics Research CotjporaRobot, and Mercury Computer Systems forghgod commencing December 31,
2005 and ending December 25, 2011. The new peapgsdlects the change in products and solutionsffeg as a result of our acquisitions in
2011. The performance graph assumes an initiastment of $100 in our common stock and in each@®Russell 2000 Stock Index and the
peer groups, and further assumes that all dividerede reinvested and all returns are market-caghted. The historical information set forth
below is not necessarily indicative of future stpeice performance.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN™

Among Kratos Defense & Security Sclutions, Inc, the Russell 2000 Index, and a Peear Group
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sida e S g TR
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—=— Km@atos Defense & Security Scolutions, Inc — =— Russell 2000 ——-i=—-- Peer G roup

=100 inwvested on 1243107 in =tock orindex, including reinwvestment of dividends.
Fiscal wear ending December 31.

Copyright® 20132 Russell Inwestmsent Group. All rights reserved.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
None.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial deftauld be read in conjunction with our Consoliddtethncial Statements and related
notes thereto and with Item 7 “Management's Disonsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaoft©perations” contained within this
Annual Report. Our historical results are not neagly indicative of operating results to be expéddn the future.

December 28, December 27, December 26, December 25, December 30,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Consolidated Statements of
Operations Data:
Revenues $ 286.2 $ 334t % 408.t  $ 713.¢ % 969.2
Gross profit 51.2 63.€ 84.: 191.2 257.2
Operating income (loss) (93.9) (27.0) 23.1 29t (49.7)
Provision (benefit) for income
taxes (0.7) 1.C (22.9) 1.¢ (2.6
Income (loss) from continuing
operations (104.0) (38.9) 14.€ (23.5) (112.9)
Loss from discontinued
operations (7. (3.2 0.3 0.7) (1.5
Net income (loss) $ (1112.) % 415 $ 145 $ (242) $ (114.9
Income (loss) from continuing
operations per common share
Basic $ (1119 $ (2.7¢) $ 08¢ $ 0.8¢) $ (2.4)
Diluted $ (1119 $ (2.7¢) $ 081 $ 0.8¢) $ (2.4)
Loss from discontinued
operations per common share
Basic $ ©0.77) $ 0.29) $ (0.00) $ 0.029) $ (0.09)
Diluted $ 0.7 $ 0.29) $ 0.0 $ 0.02 $ (0.09)
Net income (loss) per common
share
Basic $ (1195 $ (299 $ 087 $ 0.8t $ (2.49
Diluted $ (11.95) ¢ (299 $ 0.8 $ 0.8¢) $ (2.49)
Weighted average shares:
Basic ©).2 13.¢ 16.€ 27.2 46.€
Diluted 9.2 13.¢ 16.¢ 27.4 46.€
December 28, December 27, December 26, December 25, December 30,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Data:
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 37 % 9€ $ 108 $ 69.6 $ 49.C
Working capital 35.C 37.1 65.¢ 207.2 176.¢
Total assets 312.¢ 241.¢ 535.7% 1,216.( 1,284.(
Short-term debt 6.1 4.7 0.€ 1.€ il
Long-term debt 76.¢ 51.¢ 226.1 631. 630.1
Long-term debt premium — — — 22.¢ 18.7
Total stockholders' equity $ 146¢ % 124¢ % 169.¢ $ 312 $ 324.1
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The 2010, 2011 and 2012 Consolidated Statemer@pefations And Comprehensive Income (Loss) DataCorgolidated Balance
Sheet Data have been impacted by the acquisitiensompleted in those periods. See Note 3 to ous@islated Financial Statements for a
discussion of these acquisitions. The Consolid&tatements of Operations And Comprehensive Incdimes] Data reflects the results from
operations for each of the acquired companies ffandate of acquisition and forward, which contidnlian aggregate $104.8 million, $375.1
million, and $287.3 million increase in revenuemir2009 to 2010; from 2010 to 2011; and 2011 td22@4spectively. We incurred acquisition
related expenses of $3.1 million and $12.5 milfienfiscal 2010 and 2011 and a benefit of $2.7iomlrelated to acquisition items for fiscal
2012, respectively. In 2012, we incurred an impaintrof goodwill and intangible assets of $96.6 iomill.

In addition to the goodwill impairment charge dissed above, the 2010, 2011 and 2012 Consolidatedd&aSheet Data reflects the
impact of our acquisitions as well as the issuaic&625 million in Senior Secured Notes and thaasse of approximately 39.3 million
common shares which were used to fund the acauisitiSee Notes 2, 3 and 5 of our Consolidated Eiab8tatements for a further discussion
of these items.

ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forward-looking statemends #ine subject to risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ substdhtitom those referred to herein due to a numkfdiactors, including but not limited to risks
described in this Item 7, Item 1A Risk Factors alsgwhere in this Annual Report. These forwardilupktatements reflect our views and
assumptions only as of the date such forward-lapktatements are made. Except as required by lavgssume no responsibility for updating
any forward-looking statements, whether as a resfuftew information, future events or otherwise.

The following discussion should be read in conjiamctvith our audited Consolidated Financial Stateseand the related notes and
other financial information appearing elsewherehis Annual Report and other reports and filingsdmavith the SEC.

Overview

We are a specialized security technology businessding mission critical products, services antlisons for domestic and
international customers, with our principal custosneeing agencies of the U.S. Government. Our capabilities are sophisticated engineering,
manufacturing, system integration, and test antlatian offerings for national security platformsdgprograms. Our principal products and
services are related to Command, Control, Commtioits, Computing, Combat Systems, Intelligencey&illance and Reconnaissance
(“C5ISR”). We offer our customers products, solnfipservices and expertise to support their missiiical needs by leveraging our skills
across our core offering areas in C5ISR.

We manufacture and design specialized electronmigpoments, subsystems and systems for electroaitkattlectronic warfare, radar,
and missile system platforms; integrated technobagytions for satellite communications; productd aolutions for unmanned systems;
products and services related to cybersecuritycghdrwarfare; products and solutions for ballistissile defense; weapons systems trainers;
advanced network engineering and information teldyyoservices; weapons systems lifecycle suppattsaistainment; military weapon range
operations and technical services; and public gadetical infrastructure security and surveillangystems.

Our primary end customers are U.S. Government &ggrincluding the DoD, classified agencies, iigelhice agencies, other national
security agencies and homeland security relatedcéege We also conduct business with local, statfareign governments and domestic and
international commercial customers. In fiscal 2@ 1 and 2012, we generated 87% , 74% and 658pectvely, of our total revenues from
contracts with the U.S. Government (including adliches of the U.S. military), either as a primet@rtor or a subcontractor. We believe our
stable client base, strong client relationshipsabirarray of contract vehicles, large employee passessing specialized skills, extensive list of
past performance qualifications, and significanhagement and operational capabilities positiorousdntinued growth.

We were incorporated in the state of New York orcddeber 19, 1994 and began operations in March M@5eincorporated in the
state of Delaware in 1998.
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Industry Background

In August 2011, Congress and the Administratiorctththe Budget Control Act of 2011 (the “Budget’At order to permit an
increase in the federal government's borrowingthmtiile reducing projected net government spendivey the next ten years. The Budget
Control Act required $900 billion in immediate ctitsdiscretionary spending for 2012-2021. It alstablished a bi-partisan congressional Joint
Select Committee on Deficit Reduction (the “Joimn@nittee”), which was charged with recommendingslkegjon that would reduce net
government spending by $1.2 to $1.5 trillion over hext 10 years, in addition to the $900 billionmmediate discretionary spending reduct
referenced above. The Joint Committee was unahbtetdify the required reductions, thereby trigggra provision of the Budget Control Act
called “sequestration,” which requires very subithautomatic spending cuts, split between defemsenon-defense programs, that start in
2013 and continue over a nine-year period.

In January 2013, Congress enacted the Americanajaxpgrelief Act of 2012. It addressed a numbeawfdode provisions and certain
spending issues but left in place the sequestidro(aih delaying its implementation to March 1, 204:3d did not address other fiscal matters
such as the debt ceiling. Although debate on bucdgktctions continued through the first two mordh2013, no resolution was reached prior to
the March 1, 2013 sequester deadline. As a rakelPresident was required by law to issue an aaeceling $85 billion in budgetary resour
across the U.S. Government for the remainder o26%3. The Office of Management and Budget (OMBjsmeport to Congress of March 1,
2013, entitled OMB Report to the Congress on tliet Joommittee Sequestration, calculated that, dwvercourse of the fiscal year, the order
requires a 7.8 percent reduction in non-exemptaefeliscretionary funding and a 5.0 percent rednéti non-exempt nodefense discretiona
funding. The sequestration also requires reductié’s9 percent to non-exempt defense mandatoryranes. The sequestration report provides
calculations of the amounts and percentages byhatdidous budgetary resources are required todecesl, and a listing of the reductions
required for each non-exempt budget account. Fedgemcies were directed to apply the same pergemeduction to all programs, projects,
and activities within a budget account, as requing&ection 256(k)(2) of Balanced Budget and Emeegdeficit Control Act, as amended
(BBEDCA), and to operate in a manner that is caestswith guidance provided by OMB in MemorandumQB3 Planning for Uncertainty with
Respect to Fiscal Year 2013 Budgetary Resourcedangorandum 13-05, Agency Responsibilities for lempéntation of Potential Joint
Committee Sequestration.

Despite the sequestration order and the budgetalala believe that spending on modernization aaiht@nance of defense,
intelligence and homeland security assets will iooetto be a national priority. The vast majorifyoar programs are funded in the DoD Base
budget and not the Overseas Contingency Operdtiathget. We also believe that our business is aligvith mission critical national security
priorities, particularly in the areas of Unmanneetial Vehicles, cybersecurity, ballistic missildeflese, satellite communications, space
programs and science and technology efforts. Negkss, the actual impact of sequestration antetheral budget debates are uncertain at this
time, and we cannot assure you that these evehtsavhave a significant adverse effect on ouriess and results of operations. See the risk
factor entitled ‘The U.S. Government provides a significant portibour revenue, and our business could be adveedtdgted by changes in
the fiscal policies of the U.S. Government and guwental entities.”

Current Reporting Segments

We operate in two principal business segments:dsr&overnment Solutions and Public Safety & Seguite organize our business
segments based on the nature of the services @fferansactions between segments are generallyiaegband accounted for under terms and
conditions similar to other government and comnamdntracts and these intercompany transactianslaminated in consolidation. The
Consolidated Financial Statements in this AnnugddReare presented in a manner consistent wittoperating structure. For additional
information regarding our operating segments, sete N4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeontained within this Annual Report.
From a customer and solutions perspective, we vigwbusiness as an integrated whole, leveraginig skid assets wherever possible.

Kratos Government Solutions Segment

Our KGS segment provides products, solutions andcgs primarily for mission critical national seity priorities. KGS customers
primarily include national security related agescitaie Department of Defense ("DoD"), Departmertiofeland Security ("DHS"), intelligen
agencies and classified agencies. Our work inclugegpon systems sustainment, lifecycle supporeatehsion; C5ISR services, including
related cybersecurity, cyberwarfare, informatiosusance and situational awareness solutions; nyiliemge operations and technical services;
missile, rocket, and weapons systems test and ai@h) mission launch services; modeling and sitrda UAV products and technology;
advanced network engineering and IT services; ahtigsafety, security and surveillance systemsgrdtion. We produce products, solutions
and services related to certain C5ISR platformmammed system platforms, weapons systems, nasenatity related assets and
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Warfighter systems. The results of our acquisitioh€omposite Engineering, Inc., Securelnfo Corpora Integral Systems, Inc., and Herley
Industries, Inc., are included in this segment.

Public Safety & Security Segment

Our PSS segment provides independent integratatisw for advanced homeland security, public gafgitical information, and
security and surveillance systems for governmedtcammmercial applications. Our solutions includsigieing, installing and servicing building
technologies that protect people, critical infrasture assets, information and property and matitias more secure and efficient. We provide
solutions in such areas as the design, engineandgperation of command and control centers, ¢isgyd, engineering, deployment and
integration of access control, building automatoa control, communications, digital and closedugirtelevision security and surveillance, fire
and life safety, maintenance, services and praglymport services. We provide solutions for cust@nethe critical infrastructure, power
generation, power transport, nuclear energy, firrdnd’, healthcare, education, transportation petto-chemical industries, as well as certain
government and military customers. For examplepwmeide biometrics and other access control teagies to customers such as pipelines,
electrical grids, municipal port authorities, povpdgints, communication centers, large data cergersgrnment installations and other
commercial enterprises. The results of our acgoisitf selected assets of the Critical InfrastreetBusiness are included in this segment.

2012 and 2011 Strategic Acquisitions

We have supplemented our organic growth by identffyacquiring and integrating businesses that meeprimary objective of
providing us with enhanced capabilities to pursbecader cross section of the DoD, Department oheland Security (‘DHS”) and other
government and critical infrastructure markets, ptament and broaden our existing client base apdrekour primary service offerings. Our
senior management team has significant acquisiétiperience. Since March 2011, we have acquireccfivepanies and selected assets of a
critical infrastructure security and safety sysiategration business, each as discussed below.

Acquisitions in the KGS segment

On July 2, 2012, we completed the acquisition aih@osite Engineering, Inc. (“CEI”) for approximate$§64.2 million . The purchase
price, including an adjustment for working cap#al cash to be paid to the shareholders for théhy3®) election, includes $135.0 million in
cash, and 4.0 million shares of the Company's comstack, valued at $5.94 per share on July 2, 200$823.8 million . $10.7 million of the
cash paid was placed into an escrow account asityefon CEl's indemnification obligations as setth in the CEI purchase agreement and will
be reduced by $1.0 million to pay the working calpgidjustment owed to us in July 2013. In additiva,paid $2.5 million to retire certain pre-
existing CEl debt and settle pre-existing accouetgivable from CEI at its carrying and fair vabfe$3.0 million . We plan to make an election
under Section 338(h)(10) of the Internal RevenudeCavhich will result in tax deductible goodwilllaged to this transaction and as a result we
will pay an estimated $1.7 million in additionak téability incurred by the shareholders of CEl this election. We estimate that the tax
deductible goodwill and intangibles, which is sulbj® change based upon the final fair value oésacquired and liabilities assumed, will be
approximately $141.8 million and can be deducteddderal and California state income taxes ovEs-gear period.

In connection with the CEI acquisition certain Qrsonnel entered into long-term employment agreésneith us. On July 2, 2012,
we granted restricted stock units (“RSUs”) for ggr@gate 2.0 million shares of our common stodb@ag-term retention inducement grants to
certain employees of CEl who have joined Kratoe Ri$Us had an estimated value of $11.9 milliorhengrant date, cliff vest on the fourth
anniversary of the closing of the CEIl acquisitiongearlier upon the occurrence of certain evemis,sae being accounted for as compensation
expense over this four year period.

To fund the acquisition of CEI, on May 14, 2012, se¢d 20.0 million shares of our common stock ptiechase price of $5.00 per sh
in an underwritten public offering. We received sg@roceeds of approximately $100.0 million andometeeds of approximately $97.0 million
after deducting underwriting fees and other offgrmxpenses. We used the net proceeds from thisnoffeo fund a portion of the purchase price
for the acquisition of CEIl. In addition, we borradv$40.0 million from our revolving line of credi partially fund the purchase price of CEl.

CEl is a vertically integrated manufacturer andedeper of unmanned aerial target systems and cdtestaictures used for national

security programs. Its drones are designed toaaplisome of the most lethal aerial threats faditagfighters and strategic assets. CEl's
customers include U.S. and foreign governments.
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On November 15, 2011, we acquired Securelnfo Catjmor (“Securelnfo”) for $20.3 million in cash, vehi included a $1.5 million
earn-out payment made in the first quarter of 2@E&ed in northern Virginia, Securelnfo is a legdigbersecurity company specializing in
assisting defense, intelligence, civilian governtreard commercial customers to identify, understadodument, manage, mitigate and protect
against cybersecurity risks while reducing inforimrtsecurity costs and achieving compliance witpliapble regulations, standards and
guidance. Securelnfo offers strategic advisoryratenal cybersecurity and cybersecurity risk mamagnt services and is a recognized lead
the rapidly evolving fields of cloud security, contous monitoring and cybersecurity training. Costes include the DoD, DHS and large
commercial customers, including market-leading dloamputing service providers.

On July 27, 2011, we acquired Integral Systems,(Ifategral”) in a cash and stock transaction ealat $241.1 million. As
consideration for the acquisition of Integral, etiegral stockholder (i) received $5.00 per stwdri@tegral common stock, in cash, for an
aggregate payment of approximately $131.4 milliod @i) was issued 0.588 shares of our common dimckach share of Integral common
stock held by each such stockholder, for an aggeeafaapproximately 10.4 million shares of our coomstock valued at $108.7 million. The
cash portion of the acquisition was substantiallyded with the gross proceeds from the sale ol0%s Senior Secured Notes due 2017 in the
aggregate principal amount of $115.0 million issoaduly 27, 2011.

In addition, upon completion of the merger (i) eacitstanding Integral stock option with an exergigee less than $13.00 per share
was, if the holder thereof had so elected in wgiticanceled in exchange for an amount in cash egulaé product of the total number of shares
of Integral common stock subject to such in-the-ayooption, multiplied by the aggregate value ofdkeess, if any, of $13.00 over the exercise
price per share subject to such option, less thmuatrof any tax withholding, (ii) each outstandingegral stock option with an exercise price
equal to or greater than $13.00 per share andlategral in-the-money option the holder of whicldhreot made the election described in
(i), above, was converted into an option to purel@ag common stock, with the number of shares stibjesuch option adjusted to equal the
number of shares of Integral common stock subgestith out-of-the-money option multiplied by 0.9588unded up to the nearest whole share,
and the per share exercise price under each sticim @aljusted by dividing the per share exerciseepuinder such option by 0.9559, rounded up
to the nearest whole cent, and (iii) each outstapdhare of restricted stock granted under an fakegjuity plan or otherwise, whether vested or
unvested, was canceled and converted into the togieiceive $13.00, less the amount of any taxheitding.

Integral is a global provider of products, systemd services for satellite command and contrantekry and digital signal processing,
data communications, enterprise network managearghtommunications information assurance. Integpatializes in developing, managing
and operating secure communications networks, $attlite and terrestrial, as well as systems amndces to detect, characterize and geolocate
sources of radio frequency interference. Integcal&omers include U.S. and foreign commercial egoment, military and intelligence
organizations. For almost 30 years, customers feiegl on Integral to design and deliver innovatteenmerciallybased products, solutions &
services that are cost-effective and reduce dglisenedules and risk.

On March 25, 2011, we acquired Herley Industries, (“Herley”) in a cash tender offer to purcha®gthe outstanding shares of
Herley common stock. The shares of Herley commaocksivere purchased at a price of $19.00 per shamrdingly, we paid total aggregate
cash consideration of $270.7 million in respedhefshares of Herley common stock and certainénptioney options, which were exercised
upon the change in control of Herley. In additioppn completion of the merger, all unexercisedamstito purchase Herley common stock were
assumed by us and converted into options to pueatascommon stock, entitling the holders thereakteive 1.3495 shares of our common
stock for each share of Herley common stock undeglthe options. Herley is a leading provider otraiave technologies for use in command
and control systems, flight instrumentation, weapsensors, radar, communication systems, electwani@re and electronic attack systems.
Herley has served the defense industry for appratéiy 45 years by designing and manufacturing miexe devices for use in high-technology
defense electronics applications. It has estaldlisblationships, experience and expertise in tHigamyi electronics, electronic warfare and
electronic attack industry. Herley's products repre key components in the national security effoftthe U.S., as they are employed in mission
critical electronic warfare, electronic attack,attenic warfare threat and radar simulation, comanamd control network, and cyber
warfare/cybersecurity applications.

Acquisition in the PSS segment

On December 30, 2011, we acquired selected adsihs Gritical Infrastructure Business for approaiely $18.8 million, which
includes a final agreement on the working capitistment. The Critical Infrastructure Businessgies, engineers, deploys, manages and
maintains specialty security systems at some oblttigeed States' most strategic asset and critiedstructure locations. Additionally, these
security systems are typically integrated into canchand control
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system infrastructure or command centers. Approteéind 5% of the revenues of the Critical Infrasttwe Business are recurring in nature due
to the operation, maintenance or sustainment ofelearity systems once deployed.

Key Financial Statement Concepts
As of December 30, 2012 , we consider the followfangjors to be important in understanding our feiahstatements.

KGS' business with the U.S. Government and prinmgraotors is generally performed under cost reirsdlble, fixed-price or time and
materials contracts. Cost reimbursable contractthioU.S. Government provide for reimbursemertdasits plus the payment of a fee. Some
reimbursable contracts include incentive feesd@hatawarded based on performance on the contraderime and materials contracts, we are
reimbursed for labor hours at negotiated hourllrigjlrates and reimbursed for travel and otherafliexpenses at actual costs plus applied
general and administrative expenses. In accoufaingur long-term contracts for production of protiiand services provided to the U.S.
Government and provided to our PSS segment cussaumneler fixed price contracts, we utilize both dostost and units produced measures
under the percentage-of-completion method of adiogiim accordance with the provisions of Finanéiatounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASCTppic 605, Revenue Recognitiodnder the units produced measure of the percerakgompletior
method of accounting, sales are recognized asriteare accepted by the customer generally usilgg yalues for units in accordance with the
contract terms. We estimate profit as the diffeegnetween total estimated revenue and total estthwist of a contract and recognize that p
over the life of the contract based on deliverieasocomputed on the basis of the estimated firetage unit costs plus profit. We classify
contract revenues as product sales or service uegetepending upon the predominant attributeseofdlevant underlying contracts.

We consider the following factors when determinifngpllection of a receivable is reasonably assucethprehensive collection histo
results of our communications with customers; tineent financial position of the customer; anditilevant economic conditions in the
customer's country. If we have had no prior expegewith the customer, we may review reports framows credit organizations to ensure that
the customer has a history of paying its crediimis reliable and effective manner. If the finahciandition of our customers were to deteriorate
and adversely affect their financial ability to reghayments, additional allowances would be requiéeditionally, on certain contracts whereby
we perform services for a prime/general contra@apecified percentage of the invoiced trade atsaeceivable may be retained by the
customer until we complete the project. We perialfijcreview all retainages for collectability aretord allowances for doubtful accounts when
deemed appropriate, based on our assessmentaddbeiated risks.

We monitor our policies and procedures with respeciur contracts on a regular basis to ensureistens application under similar
terms and conditions as well as compliance witlajgilicable government regulations. In additiorstsancurred and allocated to contracts with
the U.S. Government are routinely audited by thieRse Contract Audit Agency.

We manage and assess the performance of our bsessrieased on our performance on individual costieanti programs obtained
generally from government organizations with coaesidion given to the Critical Accounting Principkesd Estimates. Due to the Federal
Acquisition Regulation rules that govern our bussenost types of costs are allowable, and we téonos on individual cost groupings (such
as cost of sales or general and administrativesgastmuch as we do on total contract costs, warieta key factor in determining contract
operating income. As a result, in evaluating owerafing performance, we look primarily at changesales and service revenues, and operating
income, including the effects of significant chas@eoperating income. Changes in contract estisrate reviewed on a contract-by-contract
basis, and are revised periodically throughoutifeef the contract such that adjustments to presulting from revisions are made cumulative
to the date of the revision in accordance with GABRnificant management judgments and estimatekding the estimated costs to complete
the project, which determine the project's perggtaomplete, must be made and used in connectibrilvé revenue recognized in any
accounting period. Material differences may resuthe amount and timing of our revenue for anyiqabif management makes different
judgments or utilizes different estimat
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Results for the Year Ended Decembers? 2011 to the Year ended December 30, 2012

RevenuesRRevenues by operating segment for the years endedniiber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 are aw/$o{lo millions):

2011 2012 $ Change % Change
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues $ 2388 $ 264.0 % 25.2 10.€%
Product sales 362.¢ 519.2 156.% 43.1%
Total Kratos Government Solutions 601.% 783.2 181.F 30.2%
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 112.2 186.( 73.€ 65.8%
Product sales — — —
Total Public Safety & Security 112.2 186.( 73.€ 65.8%
Total revenues $§ 713<¢ § 969 § 255.¢ 35.6%

Revenues increased $255.3 million from $713.9 amilin 2011 to $969.2 million in 2012. Included mr 2012 revenues are net
aggregate increased revenues of $287.3 millionrgéea:from the businesses we acquired in 2011 @hd. 2Approximately $245.0 million of
the increase in the KGS segment was related teeggt® net increased revenues from the acquireddasss. In addition, an increase of
approximately $7.0 million was related to orgamgenue growth in our ballistic missile defense bess, our business in which we provide
specialty support services at certain weapons gr@gel our learning and training business. Thegeeggte increases were partially offset by
reductions of $37.4 million in our legacy governinservice revenues, which have continued to betivedjaimpacted by increased competitive
pricing pressures, the completion of the remaisimgll business contracts from companies we acqaindccontinued in-sourcing of our
employees by the U.S. Government, as well as redoiciers and timing on shipments in our ground@gent business and legacy weapons
systems sustainment business, resulting in an gagreet reduction of approximately $33.1 milliBsS segment revenue increased by $73.8
million , which was primarily due to the acquisitiof the Critical Infrastructure Business on Decentk0, 2011 as well as organic growth in our
legacy PSS business.

Product sales, which are all from the KGS segmeateased $156.3 million from $362.9 million foetiiear ended December 25, 2011
to $519.2 million for the year ended December 81,22 As a percentage of total revenue, productwg® were 50.8% for the year ended
December 25, 2011 as compared to 53.6% for thegreted December 30, 2012. The increase in prodiles was primarily related to the
acquisitions of Integral, Herley and CElI, partiadffset by the reduced orders and timing on shigminour ground equipment business. Sel
revenues increased by $99.0 million from $351.0ionilfor the year ended December 25, 2011 to $480ln for the year ended December
30, 2012. The increase was primarily related toattwpuisitions of Integral, Securelnfo and the Caitinfrastructure Business, partially offset by
the reductions in service revenue in other businags in the KGS segment as discussed above.

As described in the “Critical Accounting Principlasd Estimates” section of Item 7 “Management'slssion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” anthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememt$ained within this Annual Report, we
utilize both the cost-to-cost and units produce@snees under the percentage-of-completion methadazfunting for recognizing revenue as
provided for inTopic 605. When revenue is calculated using the percent&geropletion method, total costs incurred to dage@mpared to
total estimated costs to complete the contracts@estimates are reviewed monthly on a contracteogract basis, and are revised periodically
throughout the life of the contract such that aiiests to profit resulting from revisions are madenulative to the date of the revision.
Significant management judgments and estimatelsidimy the estimated costs to complete projectschviietermine the project's percentage of
completion, must be made and used in connectidntivé revenue recognized in any accounting pehitaderial differences may result in the
amount and timing of our revenue for any perioth@agement makes different judgments or utilizBsreéint estimates. During the reporting
periods contained herein, we did experience revandemargin adjustments of certain projects baseti®aforementioned factors, but the
effect of such adjustments, both positive and negatvhen evaluated in total were determined tonbeaterial to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Cost of revenues.Cost of revenues increased from $522.7 milliarilie year ended December 25, 2011 to $712.0 mifbo the year
ended December 30, 2012. The $189.3 million iner@asost of revenues was primarily a result ofaxquisitions partially offset by reductions
in cost of revenues in our KGS segment as a refdiecreased revenue as discussed above.

Gross margin remained fairly flat at 26.8% for ylear ended December 25, 2011 compared to 26.5%dgrear ended December 30,
2012. Margins on services decreased from 25.7%&year ended December 25, 2011 to 22.0% forehe gnded December 30, 2012, due
primarily to a reduction in profit of $3.2 milliorelated to a close-out settlement on a previousiyiged contract, the acquisition of the Critical
Infrastructure Business, as well as the continuatgim pressure experienced in our service busiidagyins on products increased for the year
ended December 25, 2011 as compared to Decemb20BD from 27.8% to 30.4% , respectively, as alteguhe acquisitions of CEl, Integral
and Herley. Margins in the KGS segment increasemh £26.2% for the year ended December 25, 2011 .&%26or the year ended December 30,
2012 primarily as a result of the higher gross nmarfrom our CEl, Integral, Herley, and Securelaéguisitions. Margins in the PSS segment
decreased from 30.0% for the year ended Decemhe@023. to 26.5% for the year ended December 3@ a81a result of the mix of revenue
and due to the acquisition of the Critical Infrasture Business, for which cost reduction actioesawnot fully implemented until the fourth
quarter of 2012.

Selling, general and administrative expense&elling, general and administrative expenses &8%increased $52.5 million from
$140.6 million for the year ended December 25, 201#193.1 million for the year ended December281,2. The increase was primarily a
result of the acquisitions of Securelnfo, Integkdrley, the Critical Infrastructure Business ariel.GAs a percentage of revenues, SG&A
increased from 19.7% for fiscal 2011 to 19.9% fscdl 2012. Excluding amortization of intangibléss88.0 million for the year ended
December 25, 2011 and amortization of intangibfe®8.9 million for the year ended December 30,2@G&A increased as a percentage of
revenues from 14.4% to 15.4% for the year endectdber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012, respectiedlgcting the SG&A of our
acquisitions of Securelnfo, Integral, Herley, th#i€al Infrastructure Business and CEI, which haigher SG&A as a percentage of revenues
and corresponding higher gross margin percentages.

Merger and acquisition related itemsMerger and acquisition expenses decreased $liBi@nfrom $12.5 million to a benefit of $2.7
million for the years ended December 25, 2011 aacdehber 30, 2012, respectively. Acquisition expsrase related primarily to our
acquisitions of Herley and Integral in 2011. Expeneelated to our acquisitions of the Critical &istructure Business and CEl in 2012 were
offset by a reduction in liabilities of $4.5 millicas a result of reaching an agreement over prelyiaiisputed fees, a change in estimate of our
indemnity obligations related to former directonsl @fficers of Integral as a result of the settlatrad the matter against one of the officers in
November 2012 and an adjustment to the estimatetihgent acquisition consideration owed to SCT. Setes 3 and 15 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a furthecudision of contingent consideration and our indéroiiligations.

Research and development expensBesearch and development expenses increased®&6@million for the year ended December 25,
2011 to $17.8 million for the year ended Deceml@gr2B12 primarily related to the acquisitions oflJBtegral and Herley, as well as due to
select investments we are making to enhance cesasdtlite and electronic warfare/electronic attposducts.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assdts2012, as a result of reduced defense spendiaghteat of sequestration and a decrease
in current market multiples and our stock price #relcorresponding negative impact on the fairealithe KGS reporting unit, we incurred a
non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $82.0 millid/Ve also incurred a non-cash intangible assagehof $14.6 million related to the
decision to minimize the use of the Charleston Maontainers, Inc. and Henry Bros. Electronics, (tHBE"), trade names as part of our
overall branding strategy. For a further discussibimpairment charges, see Note 2 of the Notéed¢dConsolidated Financial Statements and
the Application of Critical Accounting Policies éaitin this section.

Unused office space and oth@he expense of $2.1 million for the year ended Ddur 30, 2012 was a result of an increase in our
excess facility accrual due to consolidation ofcaffspace at our Lanham, Maryland and HuntsvillapAma administrative facilities.

Other expense, netOther expense, net increased from $51.1 millio$64.8 million for the years ended December 23,12ehd
December 30, 2012, respectively. The increasepemrse of $13.7 million is primarily related to acriease in interest expense as a result of the
Notes issued in March 2011 and July 2011, primawoilfund the Herley and Integral acquisitions. 012, the interest expense was parti
offset by other income of $1.3 million primariljlaged to foreign currency transaction gains.
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Provision (benefit) for income taxekne provision for income taxes decreased from @erese of $1.9 million on a loss $21.6 millior
from continuing operations before income taxedtieryear ended December 25, 2011 to a benefit.6fi@illion on a loss before income taxes
of $114.5 million for the year ended December 30,22 The provision for the year ended DecembeR@%]1 was primarily comprised of taxes
of $3.1 million and $0.4 million for state and faye current taxes, respectively, partially offsgtebtax refund settlement of $2.1 million. The
benefit for the year ended December 30, 2012 wiasapity due to the impairment of goodwill and in¢iple assets offset by state income taxes.
See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fimatatements for a further discussion of our inedaxes.

Loss from discontinued operatioh@ss from discontinued operations increased frori $llion to $1.5 million for the year ended
December 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012, resplgctine?011 and 2012 the loss was primarily duthtooperations of the non-core
businesses from the Integral acquisition that Hseen classified as held for sale. Revenues geddrgitthese businesses were approximately
$9.2 million and $18.5 million for the year endedd@mber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012, respsctivads before income taxes was $1.3
million and $1.8 milliorfor the years ended December 25, 2011 and Dece36h@012, respectively. Included in the loss foc&aber 30, 201
is a goodwill impairment charge of 1.5 million .rRbe year ended December 25, 2011 and Decemb@03Q, we recognized a tax benefit of
$0.6 million and $0.3 million , respectively, prinig related to the expiration of the statute aofiiations for certain domestic and foreign tax
contingencies.

The following table presents the results of disitw@d operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 25, December 30,
2011 2012
Revenue $ 92 $ 18.F
Loss before taxes 1.9 (1.9
Benefit for income taxes (0.€) (0.9
Net loss $ 0.7 % (1.5

See Note 9 of the Notes to the Consolidated FiaaStatements for a further discussion of discamtthoperations.
Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December6?2 2010 to the Year ended December 25, 2011

RevenuesRRevenues by operating segment for the years endedniber 26, 2010 and December 25, 2011 are aw/éo{lo millions):

2010 2011 $ Change % Change
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues 248.k 238.¢ (9.7 (3.9%
Product sales 123.7 362.¢ 239.2 193.2%
Total Kratos Government Solutions 372.2 601.7 229.5 61.7%
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 36.2 112.2 75.¢ 209.1%
Product sales — — —
Total Public Safety & Security 36.° 112.2 75.¢ 209.1%
Total revenues 408. 713.¢ 305.4 74.£%

Revenues increased $305.4 million from $408.5 amilin 2010 to $713.9 million in 2011. The increaseevenue from 2010 to 2011
a result of our acquisitions was $375.1 millionthe KGS segment, our acquisitions contributed $284dllion in increased revenue from 2010
to 2011. This increase, which in 2011 includesliaykar of revenue for the acquisitions we mad2da0, was offset by a reduction of
$70.2 million in revenue from our existing busiressas a result of increased competitive pricingquree experienced in our legacy services
businesses, resulting in the reduction of reverauad to a lesser extent expected reductions ofl fmsihess set aside contract work from
companies we previously acquired and in-sourcinguofemployees by the U.S. Government. Certairuobosinesses were also impacted by
the Continuing Resolutions for the U.S. Governnseriscal 2011 and 2012 budgets, as well as cordveatd delays caused by competitor
contract protests. In the PSS segment, the adquisit HBE contributed $75.4 million of the $75.9llilon increase.
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Product sales, which are all from the KGS segmeateased $239.2 million from $123.7 million foetiiear ended December 26, 2010
to $362.9 million for the year ended December 28,12 As a percentage of total revenue, productwg® were 30.3% for the year ended
December 26, 2010 as compared to 50.8% for thegreted December 25, 2011. This increase was phjmatated to the acquisitions of Her
and Integral. Service revenue decreased in the $&g8ient by $9.7 million from $248.5 million for thear ended December 26, 2010 to
$238.8 million for the year ended December 25, 20hE decrease in service revenue was primarigsalt of our acquisition of Integral, which
had service revenue of $48.6 million offset by dases in revenue of $58.2 million due to increasedpetitive pricing pressures experience
our legacy services businesses, resulting in tthecteon of revenues, and to a lesser extent expeetkictions of small business set aside
contract work from companies we previously acquagad in-sourcing of our employees by the U.S. Gawent in certain of our businesses in
the KGS segment. The increase in revenue in thesB@®ent is a result of the acquisition of HBE.

As described in the “Critical Accounting Principlasd Estimates” section of Item 7 “Management'sdsion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” anthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement$éained within this Annual Report, we
utilize both the cost-to-cost and units produce@suees under the percentage-of-completion methadanfunting for recognizing revenue as
provided for inTopic 605. When revenue is calculated using the percent&geropletion method, total costs incurred to dage@mpared to
total estimated costs to complete the contracts@ lestimates are reviewed monthly on a contraceioyract basis, and are revised periodically
throughout the life of the contract such that ajents to profit resulting from revisions are madenulative to the date of the revision.
Significant management judgments and estimatelsdimg the estimated costs to complete projectschvtietermine the project's percentage of
completion, must be made and used in connectidntivé revenue recognized in any accounting pekitaderial differences may result in the
amount and timing of our revenue for any perioth@#nagement makes different judgments or utilizBeréint estimates. During the reporting
periods contained herein, we did experience revandenargin adjustments of certain projects bagsati®@ aforementioned factors, but the
effect of such adjustments, both positive and negatvhen evaluated in total were determined tarbeaterial to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Cost of revenuegost of revenues increased $198.5 million, from4$32nillion for the year ended December 26, 2010 to
$522.7 million for the year ended December 25, 20he increase in cost of revenues from 2010 td 2&la result of our acquisitions was
$251.6 million. In the KGS segment, our acquisisi@ontributed $199.6 million of increased costesfenues from 2010 to 2011. This increase,
which in 2011 includes a full year of revenue toe icquisitions we made in 2010, was offset bydaaton of $49.3 million in cost of revenue
from our existing businesses as a result of theatizhs in our services revenue described prewousithe PSS segment, the acquisition of
contributed $52.0 million of the $53.8 million imerse in cost of revenues.

Gross margin increased from 20.6% for the year @imrember 26, 2010 to 26.8% for the year ende@mber 25, 2011. This was
primarily the result of the increase in margin eaduct sales from 16.7% to 27.8% for the years émkrember 26, 2010 and December 25,
2011, respectively. This increase was due priméoithe acquisitions of Herley and Integral in 20Gtoss margins on service revenues
increased for the year ended December 26, 2016mgared to December 25, 2011 from 22.3% to 25.@%factively, primarily due to the
planned reductions of lower margin pass througrkvaad the acquisition of Integral. Margins in tt&SPsegment decreased from 32.0% for the
year ended December 26, 2010 to 30.0% for thegmded December 25, 2011 as a result of lower maagirour larger projects in tl
southwest division.

Selling, general and administrative expenS$5&A increased $83.3 million from $57.3 million$440.6 million for the years ended
December 26, 2010 and December 25, 2011, resplgcfiv@s increase is primarily a result of our aisifions, which had an increase in SG&A
of $83.3 million and in 2011 includes a full yedrSI3&A for the acquisitions we made in 2010. In@ddn the SG&A expenses for 2010 and
2011 are amortization of purchased intangibles9a? $nillion and $38.0 million, respectively. Thesirase in amortization year over year was a
result of a full year of amortization for our 2046quisitions as well as our 2011 acquisitions. pe@entage of revenues, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased from 14.0% i©2019.7% in 2011. Excluding the impact of the aimation of purchased intangibles,
SG&A expenses increased from 11.8% to 14.4%wénues for 2010 and 2011, respectively, reflgdtigher SG&A margins in our acquisitic
as a result of their allocations of costs betwe@&& and cost of revenues which was partially offsgieverage on our corporate SG&A as a
result of increased revenues.

Research and development expenResearch and development expenses increased $of fnom $2.2 million for the year ended

December 26, 2010 to $8.6 million for the year ehBecember 25, 2011. The increase is primarilysalt®f our acquisitions of Herley and
Integral, which have higher research and developeféorts due to their expanded product mix.
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Recovery of unauthorized issuance of stock opt&insk option investigation and related fees, atighltion settlementn
September 2010, we reached a settlement with oaerdd&O insurance carriers to cover costs relédeour completed stock option and DOJ
investigations. The settlement received, net ddllegpenses, was $1.4 million.

Merger and acquisition expenséderger and acquisition expenses for the year ebdm@mber 26, 2010 were $3.1 million, primarily
related to the acquisitions of Gichner Holdings, I®DEI Services Corporation, Southside Containérré&iler, LLC, and HBE. Merger and
acquisition expenses were $12.5 million for theryaled December 25, 2011, primarily related toamguisitions of Herley and Integral.

Other expense, nekor the year ended December 26, 2010, net othensepvas $21.2 million compared to net other expehs
$51.1 million for the year ended December 25, 20hk increase in other expense of $29.9 milligorisarily related to an increase in interest
expense of $28.8 million as a result of the $28&illlon in aggregate principal amount of 10% Sersecured Notes issued in March 2011
primarily used to fund the Herley acquisition, tegeuance of $115.0 million in aggregate principabant of 10% Senior Secured Notes in
July 2011 to fund the acquisition of Integral, ahe full year impact of the $225 million in aggrégarincipal amount of 10% Senior Secured
Notes issued in May 2010, to fund the Gichner aition and to refinance our existing indebtedn

Provision (benefit) for income taxekne provision for income taxes increased from afieaf $12.7 million on income of $1.9 million
from continuing operations before income taxedtieryear ended December 26, 2010 to a provisi&i & million on a loss before income
taxes of $21.6 million for the year ended Decen#tr2011. The benefit for the year ended DecemBe2@10 was primarily related to the
acquisitions of Gichner and DEI. In accordance Wi##8B ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations (“Topt)8@ve established deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $18.2 million for thiecrease in the financial statement basis of tlygiaed assets of Gichner, and DEI, respectively.
As a result of our ability to recognize deferrex aasets for certain of these deferred tax liagdjtwe released the valuation allowances against
our deferred tax assets and recognized an incontgetgfit of $13.6 million. The provision for thear ended December 25, 2011 was primarily
comprised of taxes of $3.1 million and $0.4 millimn state and foreign current taxes, respectiyagytially offset by a tax refund settlement of
$2.1 million.

Loss from discontinued operatioh@ss from discontinued operations increased frori $@llion to $0.7 million for the year ended
December 26, 2010 and December 25, 2011, respigctine2010, the loss was primarily due to a redhrcin liabilities as a result of the final
settlement of sales and use tax liabilities relédenur discontinued wireless deployment businesgglly offset by losses in the Southeast
Division. In 2011, the loss was primarily due te tiperations of the nazere businesses from the Integral acquisitiontiaae been classified
held for sale. Revenues generated by these busgegse approximately $2.2 million and $9.2 millfonthe year ended December 26, 2010
and December 25, 2011, respectively. Loss befawrstevas a loss of $1.0 million for the year endeddnber 26, 2010 and a loss of
$1.3 million for the year ended December 25, 2Ftt.the year ended December 26, 2010 and Decerbb2021, we recognized a tax benefit
of $0.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively, prarily related to the expiration of the statutdimitations for certain domestic and foreign tax
contingencies. In August 2010, we divested our IS=agt Division for approximately $0.1 million caginsideration and the assumption of
certain liabilities.

The following table presents the results of distw@d operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 26, December 25,
2010 2011
Revenue $ 22 % 9.2
Loss before taxes (0.9 (1.9
Benefit for income taxes (0.9 (0.6)
Net loss $ 0.1 $ (0.7)

See Note 9 of the Notes to the Consolidated FiaaStatements for a further discussion of discamtthoperations.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 30, 2012 , we had cash and cashaeots of $49.0 million compared with cash anchaeguivalents of $69.6 million
as of December 25, 2011 , which includes $15.4anilhnd $14.2 million , respectively, of cash aaditequivalents held by our foreign
subsidiaries. We are not presently aware of aryicgens on the repatriation of these funds, alioa portion may be considered permanently
invested in these foreign subsidiaries. If theselfuvere
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needed to fund our operations or satisfy obligatiorthe U.S. they could be repatriated, and ttegiatriation into the U.S. may cause us to incur
additional U.S. income taxes or foreign withholdtages. Any additional taxes could be offset, irt pain whole, by foreign tax credits. The
amount of such taxes and application of tax cresditsld be dependent on the income tax laws and ottmimstances at the time these amounts
are repatriated. Based on these variables, ittipnacticable to determine the income tax liabilitgt might be incurred if these earnings were to
be repatriated. We do not currently intend to negiet these earnings.

Our total debt, including capital lease obligatigmsncipal due on the Notes, other term debt, thedoremium of $18.7 millioreceivec
on Notes issued, decreased by $5.6 million fronb&b/illion on December 25, 2011 to $650.3 millmmDecember 30, 2012 . The decrease in
debt was primarily the result of the amortizatidrihe premium on the Notes of approximately $4.Riom and a $1.0 million principal payment
on a ten-year term loan with a bank in Israel agslim connection with our acquisition of Herley.

Our operating cash flow is used to finance tradmants receivable, fund necessary increases imiarg fund capital expenditures &
our ongoing operations, service our debt and makéegic acquisitions. Financing trade accountsivable is necessary because, on average,
our customers do not pay us as quickly as we payendors and employees for their goods and sexvi€ieancing increases in inventory
balances is necessary to fulfill shipment requinet®i¢o meet delivery schedules of our customersh@am continuing operations is primarily
derived from our customer contracts in progressaastociated changes in working capital componéntsaccounts receivable balance of
$271.9 million at December 30, 2012 includes $lillian of receivables due from a Greek customerarralsubcontract arrangement Gichner
Holdings, Inc. ("Gichner") entered into with thee@k Ministry of Defense (GMoD) in 2004 prior to aequisition of Gichner in 2010. After
numerous delays by our customer and the GMoD, igctias recently resumed on the project. We culyexpect product shipments to contit
throughout 2013. We do not have any significareaiexposure to European government receivabldsp@ancustomers do not rely heavily on
European government subsidies or other Europeagrgment support. We will continue to monitor oupesure to risks relating to European
sovereign debt.

A summary of our net cash provided by operating/iiets from continuing operations from our Consgalied Statements Of Cash Flc
is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
December 26, 201 December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities from
continuing operations $ 28.2 % 52 $ 52.2

Our cash provided by operating activities was ingpaby interest and transaction expenses we plaitbdeto the completion of
strategic acquisitions in 2010, 2011, and 2012 pald $15.4 million, $46.2 million, and $64.0 miltian interest expense in 2010, 2011, and
2012, respectively. The increase in interest expead from 2010 to 2011and 2012 was a resulteo$285.0 million in 10% Senior Secured
Notes we issued on March 25, 2011 to fund the adtn of Herley and the issuance of $115.0 millieri0% Senior Secured Notes we iss
on July 27, 2011 to fund the acquisition of Intégaa well as a full years impact of the $225.0iol of 10% Senior Secured Notes we issued in
May 2010. Cash provided by operating activitie2®10, 2011 and 2012 also includes $3.1 million,.&27illion, and $5.4 million, respectively,
in transaction costs paid related to our acquisiti®ee Note 3 and Note 5 of the Notes to Condetideinancial Statements contained within
Annual Report for a further discussion of our asgigns and debt. Excluding the payment of traneacatxpenses, cash provided by operating
activities was $31.4 million, $33.0, and $57.7 millin 2010, 2011, and 2012, respectively.
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Our cash used in investing activities from contirguoperations is summarized as follows (in milljons

Year Ended
December 26, 201 December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012

Investing activities:

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired $ (206.5) $ (391.) $ (149.9
Cash paid for contingent acquisition consideration (0.9 — —
Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued dpmra 0.1 — 0.2
Change in restricted cash (0.7) 3.C 0.€
Capital expenditures (2.9 (7.5) (16.€)
Net cash used in investing activities from contigui
operations $ (209.9 $ (395.6) $ (165.7)

Cash paid for acquisitions accounted for the migstificant outlays for investing activities for tlyears ended December 26, 2010 ,
December 25, 2011 , and December 30, 2012 , inea@as a result of the implementation of outegyato diversify our business through
strategic acquisitions.

In 2010, we acquired four companies in cash andetiansactions. We acquired Gichner for $132.8iomi, net of cash acquired of
$0.1 million. We acquired DEI for $9.0 million, nef cash acquired of $0.0 million, and paid $0.4liani related to the DEI Contingent
Consideration as a result of a collection milestitva¢ was achieved. We acquired SCT for $11.8 anilin cash, net of cash acquired of
$0.4 million. On December 15, 2010, we purchasedt i3 $52.9 million, net of cash acquired of $2.M0ion.

In 2011, we acquired three companies in cash anitydgansactions. We paid cash of approximate§8s2 million for Herley, net of
cash acquired of $21.8 million. We paid approxirya$i24.6 million for the cash portion of the puaske of Integral common stock and options
and to retire Integral's existing debt and capétates, net of cash acquired of $6.8 million. Wd ppproximately $17.3 million in cash, net of
cash acquired of $1.4 million for the acquisitidrBecurelnfo. In addition, we also paid $0.3 millim the SCT shareholders as SCT's
indemnification obligations as set forth in the S&Jreement were met.

On December 30, 2011, we acquired selected adsihis Gritical Infrastructure Business for approaiely $20.0 million which is
reflected in our fiscal 2012 investing activiti€n July 2, 2012, we completed the acquisition of &l paid approximately $135.0 million for
the cash portion of the purchase of CEl commorksand to retire CEl's existing debt and capitasésa We reached settlements of total wor
capital adjustments owed to us for these acquisitad $2.2 million which we will receive in 2013.

Capital expenditures consist primarily of investtermachinery, computer hardware and software,ieapdovement of our physical
properties in order to maintain suitable conditiong/hich to conduct our business. The increasmpital expenditures of $9.1 million fro$7.5
million in 2011 to $16.6 million in 2012 is priméyrirelated to the full year's activity for Herlepdintegral Systems as well as the 2012 activity
for CEI.
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Cash provided by financing activities from contimglioperations is summarized as follows (in milljons

Year Ended
December 26, 2010 December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012

Financing activities:

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt $ 225.C $ 4257 % —
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 24 61.1 97.C
Cash paid for contingent acquisition consideration — — (2.5)
Borrowings under credit facility 61.¢ — 50.C
Repayment under credit facility (119.¢ 2.7 (51.0
Purchase of treasury stock — (20.9) —
Debt issuance costs paid (11.0 (22.0) (1.2
Proceeds from the exercise of restricted stoclspainployee stock
options, and employee stock purchase plan 1.7 2.C —
Other 0.9 0.7 (1.4
Net cash provided by financing activities from doning operations ~ $ 181.¢ § 4524 § 90.¢

During the year ended December 26, 2010, cashged\iy financing activities was primarily relatedthe proceeds from the offering
of 10% Senior Secured Notes in the aggregate anod®a25.0 million on May 19, 2010. The proceedsengrimarily used to finance the
acquisitions of Gichner and DEI, as well as, reft@our senior secured credit facility with KeyBattional Association (“KeyBank”) and
Bank of America, N.A.

On October 12, 2010, we sold approximately 2.5iamlshares of our common stock at a purchase pfi$&0.20 per share in an
underwritten public offering. We received grossgemds of approximately $25.8 million. After dedogtunderwriting fees and other offering
expenses, we received approximately $24.7 millionat proceeds. We used the net proceeds fronranisaction to fund the purchase price for
the acquisition of HBE.

During the year ended December 25, 2011, cashged\wy financing activities was primarily relatedoroceeds from equity and debt
offerings which we used to finance our acquisitidndViarch 2011, to finance the acquisition of ldgrlwe issued notes in the aggregate
principal amount of $285.0 million and received mpmately $20.0 million in premium for an effeaiinterest rate on this issuance of 8.5%
July 2011, to finance the acquisition of Integred, issued notes in the aggregate principal amdu$it 15.0 million and received $5.7 million in
premium for an effective interest rate of 8.9%. Seée 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialetents contained within this Annual Report
for a further discussion of these acquisitions.alée paid debt issuance costs of approximatelyl$2@lion related to these notes and the
amendments to our credit facility discussed below.

In February 2011, we sold approximately 4.9 millghares of our common stock at a purchase prig@2P5 per share in an
underwritten public offering. We received grossqgerds from the equity offering of approximately B6rhillion and after deducting
underwriting and other offering expenses receiygat@ximately $61.1 million in net proceeds.

On December 1, 2011, we paid $10.9 million for@chltransaction to repurchase 2.0 million sharesuoftcommon stock in the open
market from an institutional investor for $5.45 phare.

In April 2012, we paid $2.5 million in contingentauisition consideration related to the DEI SersiG®rporation performance
milestones achieved in 2011.

On May 15, 2012, we sold 20.0 million shares of own stock at a purchase price of $5.00 per shaxa imderwritten public offerin
We received gross proceeds of $100.0 million. Adeducting underwriting and other offering expensesreceived approximately $97.0
million in net proceeds. We used the net procegatn this offering as well as borrowings of $40.0liom from our revolving line of credit to
fund the cash consideration paid to the stockhsldeCEI in
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connection with our acquisition in July 2, 2012 September, 2012, we repaid the $40.0 million e on our revolving line of credit for the
acquisition of CEI.

See “Contractual Obligations and Commitments” féuréher discussion of our Senior Secured NotesQradit Facility and debt
obligations.

Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operati®ssimmarized as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
December 26, 201 December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012
Net cash flows provided by (used in) discontinupdrations $ 0.1) $ 27 $ .8

Operating cash flows used by discontinued opersigwa primarily due to the Southeast Division 06m$2010 and the operations of
the non-core businesses from the Integral acquisitiat have been classified as held for sale 11 2thd 2012.

10% Senior Secured Notes due 2017

In order to fund our acquisitions in 2010, 2011d @012 we have issued equity as discussed aboviaeedsed our leverage through a
series of financing transactions.

On May 19, 2010, we entered into an Indenture thighguarantors set forth therein and WilmingtonsTRSB (“Wilmington Trust”)as
trustee and collateral agent (as amended, thefitnde’) to issue 10% Senior Secured Notes due P0Nates”). As of December 30, 2012 , we
have issued $625.0 million in aggregate principabant of Notes under this Indenture. The Notes vgsged in three separate offerings, eac
described more fully below. The Notes have beend tséund acquisitions and for general corporat@pses. They are secured by a lien on
substantially all of our assets and the assetseofjiarantors thereunder, subject to certain exeepand permitted liens. The holders of the
Notes have a first priority lien on substantiallycd our assets and the assets of the guaram®eept accounts receivable, inventory, deg
accounts, securities accounts, cash, securitiegemetral intangibles (other than intellectual propevhere the holders of the Notes have a
second priority lien to the $110.0 million credicflity described below.

We pay interest on the Notes semi-annually, inaas;eon June 1 and December 1 of each year. Thesatlude customary covenants
and events of default as well as a consolidateztifcharge ratio of 2.0:1.0 for the incurrence afitiohal indebtedness. Negative covenants
include, among other things, limitations on addiéibdebt, liens, negative pledges, investmentsddelnds, stock repurchases, asset sales and
affiliate transactions. Events of default includmong other events, non-performance of covenargach of representations, cross-default to
other material debt, bankruptcy, insolvency, matétdgments and changes in control. As of DecerBBeR012 , we were in compliance with
the covenants contained in the Indenture goverthiad\Notes.

On or after June 1, 2014, we may redeem some of &le Notes at 105% of the aggregate principalwarof such Notes through
June 1, 2015, 102.5% of the aggregate principalaitnaf such Notes through June 1, 2016 and 1008teadiggregate principal amount of such
Notes thereafter, plus accrued and unpaid intévebe date of redemption. Prior to June 1, 20X8may redeem up to 35% of the aggre!
principal amount of the Notes at 110% of the aggtegrincipal amount of the Notes, plus accruedwanmhid interest to the redemption date,
with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offgsi In addition, we may, at our option, redeemesomall of the Notes at any time prior to
June 1, 2014, by paying a “make whole” premiums@ocrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the ditedemption. The Company may also at
any time purchase outstanding Notes traded onghe market.

$225 Million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, N28i0

On May 19, 2010, we issued Notes in the aggregateipal amount of $225.0 million in an unregistb@fering pursuant to
Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities &ud on August 11, 2010, we completed an exchafigefor such Notes pursuant to a
registration rights agreement entered into in cotioe with the issuance thereof. The proceeds wenearily used to finance the acquisitions of
Gichner, DEI and SCT.

$285 Million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, Map011
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On March 25, 2011, we issued Notes in the aggrggateipal amount of $285.0 million in an unregisi@ offering pursuant to
Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Wet received approximately $314.0 million in ca@sbceeds from the issuance of such
Notes, which includes an approximate $20.0 milbbmssuance premiums and $9.0 million of accrugerast, which proceeds were us
together with our cash contributions of $45.0 riili to finance the acquisition of all of the outstzag shares of common stock of Herley, to pay
related fees and expenses and for general corgurgteses. The effective interest rate on thisaissa was 8.5%. On July 29, 2011, we
completed an exchange offer for these Notes putsaanregistration rights agreement entered imtwoinnection with the issuance thereof.

$115 Million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, 20yt 1

On July 27, 2011, we issued Notes in the aggrggaieipal amount of $115.0 million in an unregig@offering pursuant to Rule 14-
and Regulation S under the Securities Act. We veckapproximately $122.5 million in cash proceedsfthe issuance of such Notes, which
includes an approximate $5.8 million of issuananpums and $1.7 million of accrued interest. ThE®eeeds were used to finance, in part, the
cash portion of the purchase price for the acdaisibf Integral, to refinance existing indebtednesktegral, to make certain severance
payments in connection with the acquisition of gnéé and to pay related fees and expenses. Thetigéfénterest rate on this issuance was 8
On December 2, 2011, we completed an exchangefoffénese Notes pursuant to a registration rigigteement entered into in connection with
the issuance thereof.

Other Indebtedness
$110.0 Million Credit Facility

On July 27, 2011, we entered into a credit andrigagreement with KeyBank National AssociatioK€yBank”), as lead arranger,
sole book runner and administrative agent, and Wast Bank and Bank of the West, as the lendees'@011 Credit Agreement”). The 2011
Credit Agreement amends and restates in its entinetcredit and security agreement, dated as gf Ma 2010, by and among the Company,
KeyBank and the lenders named therein (as amentlee)2011 Credit Agreement establishes a five-genior secured revolving credit facility
in the amount of $65.0 million (as amended as destbelow, the “Amended Revolver”). The Amended®eer is secured by a lien on
substantially all of our assets and the assetseofjiarantors thereunder, subject to certain exeepand permitted liens. The Amended Revc
has a first priority lien on accounts receivabtegintory, deposit accounts, securities accounssy, scurities and general intangibles (other than
intellectual property). On all other assets, theefided Revolver has a second priority lien junigh®lien securing the Notes.

Borrowings under the Amended Revolver are subjeotandatory prepayment upon the occurrence ofinexteents, including the
issuance of certain securities, the incurrenceedf debt and the sale or other disposition ghgeassets. The Amended Revolver includes
customary affirmative and negative covenants aratsvof default, as well as a financial covenalattireg to a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.25. Negative covenants include, amotgiothings, limitations on additional debt, liensgative pledges, investments, dividends,
stock repurchases, asset sales and affiliate ttoss. Events of default include, among other &jamn-performance of covenants, breach of
representations, cross-default to other materiad, denkruptcy and insolvency, material judgments eéhanges in control.

On November 14, 2011, we entered into a first anmesmd (the “First Amendment”) to the 2011 Credit &gment. Among other things,
the First Amendment: (i) increased the amount efAmended Revolver from $65.0 million to $90.0 oill; (i) added to and modified the
definitions of certain terms contained in the 2@kr&dit Agreement; (iii) added PNC Bank, Nationakésiation as a lender under the 2011
Credit Agreement; and (iv) updated certain schegditdehe 2011 Credit Agreement.

On May 4, 2012, we entered into a second amend(trentSecond Amendment”) to the 2011 Credit AgreemAmong other things,
the Second Amendment (i) increased the amounteofAthended Revolver from $90.0 million to $110.0limx, (i) added to and modified the
definitions of certain terms contained in the 2@kr&dit Agreement, (iii) added Cathay Bank as ademnshder the 2011 Credit Agreement, (iv)
increased the maximum revolving amount capacithef2011Credit Agreement to $135.0 million, andupdlated certain schedules to the 2011
Credit Agreement.

On May 8, 2012, we entered into a third amendntéet {Third Amendment”) to the 2011 Credit Agreemeyder the terms of the
Third Amendment, the definitions of certain ternfisghee 2011 Credit Agreement were modified and ttguésition of CEl was approved. We
used the net proceeds from the sale of 20.0 mififlmares of our common stock, together
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with a $40.0 million borrowing under the Amended/Bleer, to fund the purchase of the CEIl and to igdgted fees and expenses. In September
2012, we repaid the $40.0 million borrowing under oredit facility.

The amounts of borrowings that may be made undeAthended Revolver are based on a borrowing basar@comprised of
specified percentages of eligible receivablesjldbgunbilled receivables and eligible inventorfythe amount of borrowings outstanding under
the Amended Revolver exceeds the borrowing baseitheffect, we are required to repay such borrgaim an amount sufficient to eliminate
such excess. The Amended Revolver includes $50li@mof availability for letters of credit and $IMmillion of availability for swing line
loans.

We may borrow funds under the Amended Revolverrateabased either on LIBOR or a base rate estaliby KeyBank. Base rate
borrowings bear interest at an applicable margih.@9% to 1.75% over the base rate (which williedreater of the prime rate or 0.5% ovel
federal funds rate, with a floor of 1.0% over onentin LIBOR). LIBOR rate borrowings will bear intsteat an applicable margin of 3.00% to
3.75% over the LIBOR rate. The applicable marginbfase rate borrowings and LIBOR borrowings wilbeled on the average monthly
revolving credit availability. The Amended Revohadso has a commitment fee of 0.50% to 0.75%, d#ipgron the average monthly revolving
credit availability. As of December 30, 2012 , therere no outstanding borrowings on the AmendedRerand $15.7 millionvas outstandin
on letters of credit resulting in net borrowing @awvailability of $89.4 million . We were in comatice with the financial covenants as of
December 30, 2012 .

Debt Acquired in Acquisition of Herley

We assumed a $10.0 million ten-year term loan witfank in Israel that Herley entered into on Septmi6, 2008 in connection with
the acquisition of one of its wholly owned subsiiia. The balance as of December 30, 2012 wasmili@n , and the loan is payable in
quarterly installments of $0.3 million plus interes LIBOR plus a margin of 1.5%. The loan agreeneentains various covenants including a
minimum net equity covenant as defined in the lagreement. We were in compliance with the finanmialenants of the loan agreement as of
December 30, 2012 .

On October 19, 2001, Herley received $3.0 milliompioceeds from the East Hempfield Township Indaisfrevelopment Authority
Variable Rate Demand/Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds<sSefri2001 (the “IDA Bonds”). The IDA Bonds were dnevarying annual installments
through October 1, 2021. Proceeds from the IDA Bondre used for the construction of a 15,000 sqieateexpansion of Herley's facilities in
Lancaster, Pennsylvania, and for manufacturingpegent. The IDA Bonds were paid in full on May 2120

Notes Acquired in Acquisition of SYS

During 2010, convertible notes of approximatelyO$hillion which were acquired as a result of theSs¢quisition were paid in full. |
August of 2010, we paidff approximately $0.5 million of the notes plusagd interest in cash and holders of approximai@l$ million of the
notes elected to have their notes converted inpooagmately 45,000 shares of our common stock.

Payments in Connection with Acquisitions

In connection with our business acquisitions, weehagreed to make additional future payments tersabased on final purchase price
adjustments and the expiration of certain inderoaifon obligations. Pursuant to the provision3 apic 805, such amounts are recorded at fair
value on the acquisition date.

The agreement and plan of merger entered intorinextion with our acquisition of Securelnfo proxddbat upon achievement of
certain cash receipts, revenue and EBITDA in 20&lwere obligated to pay the former stockholderSexfurelnfo additional cash contingent
consideration. In March 2012, we paid $1.5 milliefated to this contingent consideration.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement and plareager with DEI Services Corporation entered imcAoigust 9, 2010 (“the DEI
Agreement”), upon achievement of certain cash ptseievenue, EBITDA and backlog amounts in 2000,12and 2012, we will be obligated to
pay certain additional contingent consideratioe (fBElI Contingent Consideration”). We have paidiillion related to the DEI Contingent
Consideration of which $2.5 million was paid in A@012. As of December 30, 2012 , the undiscouatadunt of future DEI Contingent
Consideration that is payable by us under the DigkeAment is $2.1 million which will be paid in teecond quarter of 2013.
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The SCT Agreement provides that upon achievemecgrddin EBITDA amounts in 2011, 2012 and 2013 shall pay the former
stockholders of SCT certain additional performabased consideration. The potential undiscountecuatraf all future contingent considerat
that may be payable by us under the SCT Agreeradigtiveen zero and $3.5 million. To date there baem no amounts earned related to :
and 2012.

There were no contingent liabilities associatedhtie acquisition of HBE other than contingentilitibs of $0.4 million associated
with HBE's acquisition of Professional Security fieclogies LLC (“PST")n September 2010. The agreement with PST provfdeshe forme
shareholders of PST receive a 5% payment for aethient of revenue amounts from certain customerthéperiod from June 1, 2010 through
December 31, 2012.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defiriRegulation S-K, Iltem 303(a)(4)(ii).

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdtions and other commitments at December 30, 2a8&d the effect such
obligations could have on our liquidity and casiwflin future periods (in millions):

Payments due/forecast by Period

Total 2013 2014 - 2015 2016 - 2017 2018 and After
Debt, net of interest(1) $ 630.7 $ 1C $ 2C $ 627.C $ 0.7
Estimated interest on debt(2) 0.¢ 0.t 0.4 — —
Purchase orders(3) 276. 62.7 125.% 88.7 —
Operating leases(4) 161.2 146.( 15.2 — —
Capital leases(4) 103.¢ 18.4 34.€ 27.1 23.%
Contingent acquisition payments 2.1 2.1 — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits, including
interest and penalties(b) — — — — —
Total commitments and recorded liabilities $ 1175.C § 2305 $§ 177% §  742¢8 $ 24.C

@ The Notes in the aggregate principal amoud6@b million are due June 1, 2017. See Note BarNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements contained within this Annual Reporftiother details.

(2 Includes interest payments based on curréstdst rates for variable rate debt and the N&es.Note 5 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements contained within in this ArdrReport for further details.

3 Purchase orders include commitments in whiahiiien purchase order has been issued to a vehdbthe goods have not been
received or services have not been performed.

4) We have entered into or acquired various ramcelable operating lease agreements that expivar@us dates through 2022. The
amounts include $18.7 million in excess facilipsts and exclude expected sublease income. Seéothe Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements contained within this Annuap&t for further details.

(5) Our Consolidated Balance Sheet at Decembe2@®(® included a $3.3 million noncurrent liabilftyr uncertain tax positions, all of
which may result in cash payments. The future paysneslated to uncertain tax positions have noh lpeesented in the table above
to the uncertainty of the amounts and timing ohcsettlement with the taxing authorities.

As of December 30, 2012 , we have $15.7 milliostahdby letters of credit outstanding. Our lettérsredit are primarily related to
milestone payments received from foreign custorfeera/hich the customer has not yet received thelpeg our prior workers compensation
program, and our performance bond program for werformed in the PSS segment. Additional infornratiegarding our financial
commitments at December 30, 2012 is provided irNihies to Consolidated Financial Statements coedkiim this Annual Report, specifically
Note 15.

Other Liquidity Matters
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We intend to fund our cash requirements with céshid from operating activities and borrowings untiher Amended Revolver. We
believe these sources should be sufficient to im@etash needs for at least the next 12 monthdisksissed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”
contained within this Annual Report, our quartexhd annual operating results have fluctuated ip#st and may vary in the future due to a
variety of factors, many of which are external tw control. If the conditions in our industry deteate or our customers cancel or postpone
projects or if we are unable to sufficiently incgeaur revenues or further reduce our expensesjayeexperience, in the future, a significant
long-term negative impact to our financial resaltsl cash flows from operations. In such a situati@could fall out of compliance with our
financial and other covenants which, if not waivealld limit our liquidity and capital resources.

Critical Accounting Principles and Estimates

We have identified the following critical accourgipolicies that affect our more significant judgrseand estimates used in the
preparation of our Consolidated Financial Stateséeltte preparation of our financial statementinfarmity with GAAP requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezliata of assets and liabilities, stockholders'tgguevenues and expenses, and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitiesa(eriodic basis, as deemed necessary, we evaluaéestimates, including those related to
revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful acceumaluation of inventory including the reservessdrcess and obsolete inventory, valuatic
long-lived assets including identifiable intang#bknd goodwill, accounting for income taxes inahggdihe related valuation allowance, accruals
for partial self-insurance, contingencies and ditign, contingent acquisition consideration andlstoased compensation. We explain these
accounting policies in the Notes to the Consolid&tmancial Statements contained within this AnrReport and at relevant sections in this
discussion and analysis. These estimates are bagbé information that is currently available amdvarious other assumptions that are beli
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actsaltsecould vary from those estimates under diffeassumptions or conditions and such
differences may be material.

Revenue recognitioWVe generate our revenue from three different tgbeontractual arrangements: cost-plus-fee corgyaiche-and-
materials contracts, and fixed-price contracts.dRere on cost-plus-fee contracts is recognizedet@xitent of allowable costs incurred plus an
estimate of the applicable fees earned. We con8idet fees under cost-plus-fee contracts to beezhin proportion to the allowable costs
incurred in performance of the contract. We recogitihe relevant portion of the expected fee tovieraed by the customer at the time such fee
can be reasonably estimated, based on factorsasuohr prior award experience and communicatiotts te customer regarding performance,
including any interim performance evaluations readéy the customer. Revenue on time-and-materiaiacts is recognized to the extent of
billable rates times hours delivered for services/joled, to the extent of material cost for produitlivered to customers, and to the extent of
expenses incurred on behalf of the customers.

We have three basic categories of fixed price eatdr fixed unit price, fixed price level of effpand fixed price completion. Revenue
recognition methods on fixed-price contracts wékwdepending on the nature of the work and théraonterms. Revenues on fixed-price
service contracts are recorded as work is perfoiimadcordance witfiopic 605. Topic 605which generally requires revenue to be deferred
until all of the following have occurred: (1) thdsea contract in place, (2) delivery has occur(8ylthe price is fixed or determinable, and
(4) collectability is reasonably assured. Reverarefixed-price contracts that require delivery pésific items may be recorded based on a price
per unit as units are delivered. Revenue for figgde contracts in which we are paid a specific amdo provide services for a stated period of
time is recognized ratably over the service period.

A portion of our fixed price completion contracte avithin the scope dfopic 605. For these contracts, revenue is recognized tikang
percentage-of-completion method based on the oétiotal costs incurred to date compared to esémhdtal costs to complete the contract.
Estimates of costs to complete include materiagatllabor, overhead, and allowable indirect expeirisr our government contracts. These cost
estimates are reviewed and, if necessary, revisedhty on a contract-by-contract basis. If, assulteof this review, we determine that a loss on
a contract is probable, then the full amount ohested loss is charged to operations in the petisddetermined that it is probable a loss will be
realized from the full performance of the contrétcertain instances, when our customers haveestgd that we commence work prior to
receipt of the contract award and funding we hacerired costs related to that specific anticipatattract, and we believe recoverability of the
costs is probable, we may defer those costs indumél the associated contract has been award#éuaded by the customer.

In accounting for our long-term contracts for protion of products provided to the U.S. Governmert utilize both cost-to-cost and
units produced measures under the percentage-gitetiom method of accounting under the provisioh$apic 605. Under the units produced
measure of the percentage-of-completion methodadunting, sales are recognized as the units aepted by the customer generally using
sales values for units in accordance with the eatterms. We estimate profit as the differencevben total estimated revenue and total
estimated cost of a contract and recognize thdit joncer the
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life of the contract based on units produced aramsputed on the basis of the estimated final aweuad costs plus profit. We classify contract
revenues as product sales or service revenuesdiagerpon the predominant attributes of the relevaderlying contracts. Significant
management judgments and estimates, includingdidimited to the estimated costs to complete mtsjemust be made and used in connection
with the revenue recognized in any accounting gerocancellation, schedule delay, or modificatidra fixedprice contract which is account

for using the percentage-of-completion method mibseesely affect our gross margins for the periodfvich the contract is modified or
canceled. Under certain circumstances, a canaellati negative modification could result in us mgvio reverse revenue that we recognizec
prior period, thus significantly reducing the ambahrevenues we recognize for the period in whighadjustment is made. Correspondingly, a
positive modification may positively affect our ggomargins. In addition, a schedule delay or mealifons can result in an increase in estimated
cost to complete the project, which would also ltéauan impact to our gross margin. Material diffieces may result in the amount and timin
our revenue for any period if management maderéiffiejudgments or utilized different estimates.

It is our policy to review any arrangement contagnsoftware or software deliverables and servigesnat the criteria contained in
FASB ASC Topic 985, SoftwalTopic 985”") and related technical practice aids. Under theipiavs of Topic 985, we review the contract
value of software deliverables and services aneraehe allocations of the contract value based endér Specific Objective Evidence
(“VSOE"). All software arrangements requiring sificeint production, modification, or customizatioftioe software are accounted for in
conformity withTopic 605.

Our contracts may include the provision of moretbae of our services (“multiple element arrangetsignin these situations, we
apply the guidance dfopic 605 Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, revereegnition includes the proper identification gbaeate
units of accounting and the allocation of revencr@ss all elements based on relative fair valués, pvoper consideration given to the guidance
provided by other authoritative literature.

For multiple element arrangements that includeward products containing software essential thdredware products' functionality,
undelivered software elements that relate to tmévirre products' essential software, and undeliveom-software services, we allocate revenue
to all deliverables based on their relative selfiniges. In such circumstances, we use a hieraocgtermine the selling price to be used for
allocating revenue to deliverables: (i) VSOE, tiilyd-party evidence of selling price (“TPE"), a(iil) best estimate of the selling price (“ESP”).

VSOE generally exists only when we sell the delbde separately and is the price actually chargaastfor that deliverable. TPE is
determined based on competitor prices for simiddivdrables when sold separately. Generally, ofgrimigs contain significant differentiation
such that comparable pricing of products with similnctionality cannot be obtained. Furthermore ,are unable to reliably determine what
similar competitor products' selling prices areacstand-alone basis. Therefore, we typically ateabhte to obtain TPE of selling price. ESP
reflects our best estimates of what the sellinggsriof elements would be if they were sold regylan a stand-alone basis. We determine ESP
for a product or service by considering multipletéas including, but not limited to major producbgpings, geographies, market conditions,
competitive landscape, internal costs, gross manigjectives and pricing practices. The determima¢ibESP is made through consultation with
our management, taking into consideration our ntargestrategy.

We account for multiple element arrangements thasist only of software or software-related produttcluding the sale of upgrades
to previously sold software, in accordance withusttly specific software accounting guidance. Fohduansactions, revenue on arrangements
that include multiple elements is allocated to esleiment based on the relative fair value of edament, and fair value is determined by VSt
If we cannot objectively determine the fair valdeany undelivered element included in such multgllement arrangements, we defer revenue
until all elements are delivered and services Hean performed, or until fair value can objectiviedydetermined for any remaining undelivered
elements. Under certain of our contractual arrareges) we may also recognize revenue for out-of-pbekpenses in accordance witbpic
605.Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be reimbursed with or without a fee.

Under certain of our contracts, we provide supgi@curement services and materials for our custenvée record revenue on these
arrangements on a gross or net basis in accordétic@opic 605. Depending on the specific circumstances of thengement we consider the
following criteria, among others, for recording eawve on a gross or net basis:

(1) Whether we act as a principal in the transac

(2) Whether we take title to the produ

(3) Whether we assume risks and rewards of ownersing, as risk of loss for collection, delivery oruets
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(4) Whether we serve as an agent or broker, with cosgiEm on a commission or fee basis;
(5) Whether we assume the credit risk for the amouietdio the customer subsequent to deli

For our federal contracts, we follow U.S. Governtrocurement and accounting standards in assetbgradlowability and the
allocability of costs to contracts. Due to the ffigance of the judgments and estimation processeslikely that materially different amounts
could be recorded if we used different assumptaritthe underlying circumstances were to chaie.closely monitor compliance with, and
the consistent application of, our critical accaugipolicies related to contract accounting. Busineperations personnel conduct periodic
contract status and performance reviews. When takurgs in estimated contract revenues or costsegréred, any significant changes from
prior estimates are included in earnings in theesurperiod. Also, regular and recurring evaluaiohcontract cost, scheduling and technical
matters are performed by management personnel rehiadependent from the business operations peesperforming work under the
contract. Costs incurred and allocated to contnaittsthe U.S. Government are scrutinized for cdeme with regulatory standards by our
personnel, and are subject to audit by the DCAA.

From time to time, we may proceed with work basedal@nt direction prior to the completion and signof formal contract
documents. We have a formal review process foraapg any such work. Revenue associated with suark ¥8 recognized only when it can be
reliably estimated and realization is probable. Wdse our estimates on previous experiences witbligr@, communications with the client
regarding funding status, and our knowledge oflallg funding for the contract or program.

Allowance for doubtful accounté/e maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the potential
inability of certain customers to make requiredifatpayments on amounts due to us. Managementideésr the adequacy of this allowance by
periodically evaluating the aging and past dueneadfiindividual customer accounts receivable badarand considering the customer's current
financial situation as well as the existing indystconomic conditions and other relevant factoas Would be useful towards assessing the risk
of collectability. If the future financial conditioof our customers were to deteriorate, resultmtpeir inability to make specific required
payments, additions to the allowance for doubtégloaints may be required. In addition, if the finahcondition of our customers improves and
collections of amounts outstanding commence oreasonably assured, then we may reverse previeatyplished allowances for doubtful
accounts. Changes to estimates of contract vakuseaorded as adjustments to revenue and not@sooent of the allowance for doubtful
accounts. We write off accounts receivable wheg tiecome uncollectible and payments subsequertgived on such receivables are credited
to the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Long-lived and Intangible AsseWe account for long-lived assets in accordance thighprovisions o0FASB ASC Topic 360 Property,
Plant, and EquipmenfTopic 360”). Topic 360addresses financial accounting and reporting feiirtipairment or disposal of long-lived assets
and requires that long-lived assets be reviewedfpairment whenever events or changes in circumstindicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverabilityemsured by comparing the carrying amount of agt &asshe expected future net cash flows
generated by the asset. If it is determined tredset may not be recoverable and if the cargfmgunt of an asset exceeds its estimated fair
value, an impairment charge is recognized to thentxf the differencel opic 360requires companies to separately report discordinue
operations, including components of an entity #ititer have been disposed of (by sale, abandononémta distribution to owners) or classified
as held for sale. Assets to be disposed of aratezpat the lower of the carrying amount or failuedess costs to sell.

In accordance witifopic 360, we assess the impairment of identifiable intalegiland long-lived assets whenever events or clsange
circumstances indicate that the carrying value matybe recoverable. Factors we consider importdutiwcould individually or in combination
trigger an impairment review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative to expectistbhical or projected future operating resi

» significant changes in the manner of our use oftlwpiired assets or the strategy for our overaiinass
» significant negative industry or economic trel

» significant decline in our stock price for a sustal period; ar

» our market capitalization relative to net book

If we determined that the carrying value of intdabgg and long-lived assets may not be recoveradedupon the existence of one or

more of the above indicators of impairment, we wiaglcord an impairment equal to the excess ofdhg/iog amount of the asset over its
estimated fair value.
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Goodwill and Purchased IntangibleBhe purchase price of an acquired business isaéfiddo the underlying tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed basedthporrespective fair market values, with the egsaesorded as goodwill. Such fair market
value assessments require judgments and estinhatesain be affected by contract performance aret ddlctors over time, which may cause
final amounts to differ materially from originaltesates. For acquisitions completed through Decer@Be2012 , adjustments to fair value
assessments are recorded to goodwill over the asegprice allocation period (not exceeding twelemtins). Adjustments related to income tax
uncertainties for acquired businesses within tleeation periods through December 30, 2012 were r@sorded to goodwiill.

We have established certain accruals in conneetittnindemnities and other contingencies from arquasitions. These accruals and
subsequent adjustments have been recorded duermmtbhase price allocation period for acquisitidrige accruals were determined based |
the terms of the purchase or sales agreementsnamist cases; involve a significant degree of jndgt. Management has recorded these
accruals in accordance with its interpretatiorhef terms of the purchase or sale agreements, kfemis) and an estimation of probable future
events based on management's experience. Any changecorded estimates will be recognized thraeaghings.

We perform our impairment test for goodwill in actance withTopic 350. We assess goodwill for impairment at the repgrtinit
level, which is defined as an operating segmeonerlevel below an operating segment, referred twa @mponent. We determine our reporting
units by first identifying our operating segmeratsd then assessing whether any components ofdegseents constitute a business for which
discrete financial information is available and wehsegment management regularly reviews the opgregsults of that component. We
aggregate components within an operating segmanh#ve similar economic characteristics. For aunual and interim impairment
assessments, we identified our reporting unitetolr operating segments, which are the KGS andse@aents.

We perform impairment tests for goodwill as of tast day of our fiscal year, or when evidence déptial impairment exists. When it
is determined that impairment has occurred, a ehergperations is recorded. In order to test faeptial impairment, we estimate the fair value
of each of our reporting units based on a compargga weighting of the income approach, specifidhlé discounted cash flow (“DCF”)
method and the market approach, which estimatefithealue of our reporting units based upon corapke market prices and recent
transactions and also validates the reasonableféss implied multiples from the income approadfe reconcile the fair value of our reporting
units to our market capitalization by calculating enarket capitalization based upon an averageio$tock price prior to and subsequent to the
date we perform our analysis and assuming a copiteshium.

In testing for impairment of our goodwill, we makesumptions about the amount and timing of futipeeted cash flows, terminal
growth rates, appropriate discount rates, markétiples, and the control premium a controlling gteder could be expected to pay:

*  The timing of future cash flows within our DCRadysis is based on our most recent forecasts #aa estimates. Our historical
growth rates and operating results are not indieadf our projected growth rates and operatingltesis a consequence of our
acquisitions and divestitures. The decline in rexmnon a pro forma basis after considering acéurisit which was expected by us,
is primarily due to the impact of the conversioroaf work as a prime contractor under certain lggaeall business awards to that
of a subcontractor as well as the recent commatiitia experienced in traditional services businesEkis change resulted in an
award of an overall smaller portion of the entirgjgct as the contracts were recompeted and th@atiterm of the small business
contracts were completed. The conversion of work pgme to a subcontractor related to legacy smadiness contracts awarded
to the acquired companies is not uncommon in thvemgent defense contractor industry for compathiashave been acquisitive.
Our projected growth rates take into consideratiis anticipated impact on small business awards.

» The terminal growth rate is used to calculageuhlue of cash flows beyond the last projecteibgen our DCF analysis and
reflects our best estimates for stable, perpetuality of our reporting units.

* We use estimates of market participant weightestage cost of capital (“WACC") as a basis foed®ining the discount rates to
apply to our reporting units' future expected déslis. The significant assumptions within our WA@E: (a) equity risk premiur
(b) beta, (c) size premium adjustments, (d) costetit and (e) capital structure assumptions. liitiadgdwe use a company specific
risk adjustment which is a subjective adjustmeat,thy its very nature does not include marketeelaata, but instead examines
the prospects of the reporting unit relative tolih@ader industry to determine if there are spedifctors which may make it more
“risky” relative to the industry.
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* Recent historical market multiples are used tovesteé future market pricin

* We use an estimated control premium in recangithe aggregate value of our reporting units tonoarket capitalization. As
discussed ifTopic 350, control premiums may effectively cause a compaaggregate fair value of its reporting unit(s¢xeeed
its current market capitalization due to the apitit a controlling shareholder to benefit from sygies and other intangible assets
that arise from such control. As a result, the meament of fair value of an entity with a collectiof assets and liabilities that
operate together to produce cash flows is diffefremb the fair value measurement of that entitytividual securities, hence, the
reason a control premium is paid.

While our methodology for evaluating goodwill amdangibles for impairment has always used the ircand market approach, in the
past the market approach was used solely to velitiat the fair value derived from the income apphowas comparable to its market peers.
Beginning 2011, we used a weighting of the income raarket approach to derive the fair value ofreporting units which resulted in a more
conservative fair value.

The KGS reporting unit was impacted by continuedidag market valuations and the economic uncetyain the U.S. defense
industry which resulted in the book value of KGS8eeding its fair value in step one of the impairtrtest. As a result during our annual test in
2012, we performed the second step of the goodwjlhirment test to measure the amount of the impait loss, if any. The second step of the
test requires the allocation of the reporting ardir value to its assets and liabilities, inchglany unrecognized intangible assets, in a
hypothetical analysis that calculates the impleid¥alue of goodwill as if the reporting unit wlasing acquired in a business combination. If the
implied fair value of goodwill is less than the igamg value, the difference is recorded as an immpaint loss. Based on the results of the step two
analysis, we recorded an $82.0 million goodwill amment related to the KGS reporting unit. As otBeber 30, 2012 the fair value of the PSS
reporting unit substantially exceeded its carryiatue.

We review intangible assets subject to amortizafmmimpairment whenever events or changes in pistances indicate that
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverablgairment losses, where identified, are deteechias the excess of the carrying value
the estimated fair value of the lotiged asset. We assess the recoverability of thmeyiog value of assets held for use based on awewoi
projected undiscounted cash flows. Prior to coridgcstep one of our 2012 goodwill impairment tegg, reviewed certain of our lorliyed
assets for recoverability and recorded intangikletimpairment losses related to a change indfmated life of trade names $12.9 millior
and $1.7 millionin our PSS and KGS reporting units, respectivebe Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfents further discussion
these intangible asset and goodwill impairments.

The goodwill of the PSS and KGS reporting units%88.6 million and $560.9 million , respectively.

As a result of the assumptions used in our analgsigeral factors could result in impairment of $686.5 million goodwill and $106.1
million long-lived intangibles in future periodsicluding but not limited to, the risks discussedtém 1A “Risk Factors” contained within this
Annual Report and:

» adecline in our stock price and resulting madepitalization, if we determine the decline istained and is indicative of a
reduction in the fair value below the carrying \eabf our reporting units;

» adecrease in available government fundinguitioly budgetary constraints affecting U.S. Goveminspending generally, or
specific departments or agencies;

» changesin U.S. Government programs or requiremiaaisiding the increased use of small businessigeos

» our failure to reach our internal forecasts ddaipact our ability to achieve our forecasted Igwa# cash flows and reduce the
estimated discounted value of our reporting uits}

» volatility in equity and debt markets resultinghiigher discount rate

It is not possible at this time to determine ifiapairment charge would result from these factorsif it does, whether such charge
would be material. We will continue to monitor ttegoverability of our goodwill.

Accounting for income taxes and tax contingendiepic 740provides the accounting treatment for uncertaintycome taxes
recognized in an enterprise's financial statemdiagic 740prescribes a recognition threshold and measureateitiute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a taxigosaken or expected to be taken in a tax reflopic 740also provides guidance on
derecognizing, classification, interest and peesjtaccounting in interim periods, disclosure aadsdition.
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As part of the process of preparing our Consolili&ieancial Statements we are required to estimat@rovision for income taxes in
each of the tax jurisdictions in which we condugsibess. This process involves estimating our &cturaent tax expense in conjunction with
evaluation and measurement of temporary differeremdting from differing treatment of certain itefior tax and accounting purposes. These
temporary differences result in the establishméndieferred tax assets and liabilities, which amrded on a net basis and included in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We then assess gindipéasis the probability that our net defertaxl assets will be recovered and therefore
realized from future taxable income and to the e believe that recovery is not more likely tima, a valuation allowance is established to
address such risk resulting in an additional relgt@vision for income taxes during the period.

Significant management judgment is required in reit@ng our provision for income taxes, our defdrtax assets and liabilities, tax
contingencies, unrecognized tax benefits, and egyired valuation allowance, including taking intmsideration the probability of the tax
contingencies being incurred. Management assdsisgartbability based upon information providedigoby our tax advisers, our legal advisers
and similar tax cases. If at a later time our aswest of the probability of these tax contingencitesnges, our accrual for such tax uncertainties
may increase or decrease.

We have a valuation allowance at December 30, 2dL2 to management's overall assessment of ngkarecertainties related to our
future ability to realize and, hence, utilize certdeferred tax assets, primarily consisting ofoprating losses, carry forward temporary
differences and future tax deductions resultingnficertain types of stock option exercises, befoeg expire.

The 2012 effective tax rate at December 30, 2062arfiaual and interim reporting periods could bedaotpd if uncertain tax positions
that are not recognized at December 30, 2012 #itedcsat an amount which differs from our estim&ti@ally, during 2012 and thereafter, if we
are impacted by a change in the valuation allowascef December 30, 2012 resulting from a changedgment regarding the realizability of
deferred tax assets beyond December 30, 2012 e$igch will be recognized in the interim periodvithich the change occurs.

Contingencies and litigationWe are currently involved in certain legal procegdi We estimate a range of liability related todieg
litigation where the amount and range of loss aaediimated. We record our estimate of a loss weeitoss is considered probable and
estimable. Where a liability is probable and thHera range of estimated loss and no amount inathgeris more likely than any other number in
the range, we record the minimum estimated lighi#lated to the claim in accordance wWHASB ASC Topic 450 Contingenciés.additional
information becomes available, we assess the patdéability related to our pending litigation amevise our estimates. Revisions in our
estimates of potential liability could materialmpact our results of operations. See ltem 3 “L&yateedings” contained within this Annual
Report for additional information.

Stock-based Compensatidlie account for stock-based compensation arrangerireatcordance with the provisionsFASB ASC
Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation (“T@p&"), which requires the measurement and recognitiowipensation expense for all
stock-based payment awards to employees and disdztsed on estimated fair values.

The valuation provisions &fopic 718apply to new awards and to awards that are outstgumh the effective date and subsequently
modified or canceled. We use the Black-Scholesaggricing model to estimate the fair value of stack options at the grant date. The Black-
Scholes option pricing model was developed foringstimating the fair value of traded options whitave no vesting restrictions and are fully
transferable. Our employee stock options are géperzbject to vesting restrictions and are gergradt transferable.

Valuing options requires highly subjective assuon@iincluding the expected stock price volatiligeothe term of the award, the
expected life of an option and the number of awaitiately expected to vest. Changes in thesenggions can materially affect the fair value
estimates of an option. Furthermore, the estimiatiedalue of an option does not necessarily regrethe value that will ultimately be realized
by an employee. We used historical data to estithatexpected forfeiture rate, intrinsic and histrdata to estimate the expected price
volatility, and a weighted-average expected liferfola to estimate the expected option life. Thie-fise rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant for the estieddlife of the option.

Estimates of stock-based compensation expensatgaificant to our Consolidated Financial Stateraghtit these expenses are based
on option valuation models and will never resultiia payment of cash by us. For this reason, acause we do not view stock-based
compensation to be significant as related to oeratpnal performance, we exclude estimated stasleth compensation expense when
evaluating the business performance of our operatigments.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standahpdate (“ASU”) No. 2012-02 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Innpeent (“ASU 2012-02"). ASU 2012-02 states that an entifig the option first to assess
gualitative factors to determine whether the existeof events and circumstances indicates thaniiaire likely than not that the indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If, after assesdiegotality of events and circumstances, an entiticludes that it is not more likely than not that
the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairdten the entity is not required to take furtheiactHowever, if an entity concludes otherwise,
then it is required to determine the fair valuehaf indefinitelived intangible asset and perform the quantitaitimpairment test by comparing t
fair value with the carrying amount in accordanéth\8ubtopic 35(B0. An entity also has the option to bypass thditgtise assessment for a
indefinitedived intangible asset in any period and proceeektly to performing the quantitative impairmergttéAn entity will be able to resun
performing the qualitative assessment in any sulss#geriod. The amendment is effective for anaadlinterim impairment tests performed
for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2@&H2ly adoption is permitted, including for annaatl interim impairment tests performed as
of a date before July 27, 2012, if a public ergifinancial statements for the most recent annuigterim period have not yet been issued or, for
nonpublic entities, have not yet been made availtdslissuance. The adoption of this guidance nedllt in a change in how we perform our
impairment testing for indefinite lived intangitdssets. We do not believe that this guidance \aileha material impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011H0@ngibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350ASU 2011-08"). ASU 2011-08
is intended to simplify how entities, both publitdanonpublic, test goodwill for impairment. ASU 20@8 permits an entity to first assess
gualitative factors to determine whether it is “exdikely than not” that the fair value of a repodiunit is less than its carrying amount as a basis
for determining whether it is necessary to perftetwo-step goodwill impairment test described apic 350. The more-likely-than-not
threshold is defined as having a likelihood of mitwen 50%. ASU 2011-08 is effective for annual ardrim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decenitigr2011. Early adoption is permitted, including &nnual and interim goodwill impairment
tests performed as of a date before Septembel014, & an entity's financial statements for thestmecent annual or interim period have not yet
been issued. The adoption of this guidance resuitadchange in how we performed our goodwill inpeEnt assessment; however, it did not
have a material impact on our Consolidated FindiStetements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@amprehensive Income (Topic 22AGU 2011-05") . ASU No. 2011-5 revises the
manner in which entities present comprehensiveniecin their financial statements. The guidanceiregientities to report the components of
comprehensive income in either a single, continwbatement or two separate but consecutive statsm@BU 2011-05 is required to be applied
retrospectively. For public entities, the amendmeme effective for fiscal years, and interim pesiavithin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2011 and early adoption is permiéel elected early adoption which did not have a ratenpact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bdir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.FGad IFRS(*ASU 2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 requires the disclasof quantitative
information about unobservable inputs used in tdaation processes, and a gqualitative discussimmalthe sensitivity of the measurements.
The guidance in ASU 2011-04 is to be applied prospely. For public entities, the amendments afeative during interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. Early applicakip public entities is not permitted. The provig®f the new guidance did not have a
material effect on our Consolidated Financial Steets.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.
Interest Rate and Foreign Currency Risks

We are exposed to market risk, primarily relatethterest rates and foreign currency exchange.rates

Exposure to market risk for changes in interegisra¢lates to our outstanding debt. We are exposieterest rate risk, primarily
through our borrowing activities under the Amené&ebolver discussed undéiLiquidity and Capital Resources" above. Based arcatrent
outstanding balances, a 1% change in the LIBORwatéd not materially impact our financial positiodfe manage exposure to these risks
through our operating and financing activities amblen deemed appropriate, through the use of demvénancial instruments. Derivative

financial instruments are viewed as risk managenueh$ and are not used for speculation or foritg@urposes. Derivative financial
instruments were contracted with investment gramterparties to reduce exposure to interest iskeon our prior credit facilities.
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Exposure to market risk for foreign currency exaderate risk is related to receipts from custongagments to suppliers and
intercompany loans denominated in foreign currendecordingly, a strengthening of the U.S. do{l&frSD") will negatively impact revenues
and gross margins expressed in consolidated USistéte currently do not enter into foreign currefayvard contracts to manage foreign
currency exchange rate risk because to date exetratgyfluctuations have had minimal impact onaperating results and cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 30, 28d2$49.0 million and are primarily invested in rapmarket interest bearing
accounts. A hypothetical 10% adverse change imavtkeage interest rate on our money market caslstimests and short-term investments
would have had no material effect on our net losgHe year ended December 30, 2012 .

Commodity Price Risk Management

We purchase commodities for use in our manufaguiocesses. We typically purchase these commeditienarket prices, and as a
result are affected by market price fluctuation® Ndve decided not to hedge these exposures aarthdgemed immaterial.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and suppleamnedata required by this item are set forth atghges indicated in Item 15
(a) (1) and 15(a) (2), respectively.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduredeéined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promutbateler the Exchange Act,
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed in our reports filed under the Exchangeig\recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in t##CS rules and forms, and that such informatiacimulated and communicated to our
management, including our Principal Executive Gffiand Principal Financial Officer, as appropriédegllow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluatirgdisclosure controls and procedures, managemesgmized that any controls and procedu
no matter how well designed and operated, can geecenly reasonable assurance of achieving theadkesantrol objectives, and management
necessarily was required to apply its judgmentaduating the cost benefit relationship of possiddatrols and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) promigld under the Exchange Act, we carried out aruatiah, under the supervision
and with the participation of our management, idisig our Principal Executive Officer and Principahancial Officer, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure conaintsprocedures as of the end of the period coumreiis Annual Report. Based on the
foregoing, our Principal Executive Officer and Ripal Financial Officer concluded that our disclesaontrols and procedures were effective at
the reasonable assurance level as of Decembef3R, 2

Management's Report on Internal Control Over FiriahReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d}18ésigned to provide reasonable assurance riegettte reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foemmal purposes in accordance with GAAP. Becauds ofherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detattstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that internal controls may become img¢e because of changes in conditions, or thatebeee of compliance with the policies and
procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executiffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtigss of our internal control over financial rejmgrbased on the framework linternal
Control-Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidnise Treadway Commission. Based on the restitsiio
evaluation, our management concluded that ourriaterontrol over financial reporting was effecta® of December 30, 2012 .
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Our internal control over financial reporting haeh audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independagistered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report appearing below, whigtresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveéssir internal control over financial
reporting as of December 30, 2012 .
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

Except as set forth below, there were no changeariinternal control over financial accounting aegdorting (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during therth quarter of the fiscal year ended DecemiBe2812 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.

Scope of Management's Report on Internal Contrel &inancial Reporting

As described throughout this Annual Report, duthgyear ended December 30, 2012 we acquired CiEhvisinow a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ours. While our financial statemebotsthe year ended December 30, 2012 include thatseof CEI from July 2, 2012 acquisition
date through December 30, 2012 , as permitteddyulles and regulations of the SEC, our managesna@sgessment of our internal control over
financial reporting did not include an evaluatidrtee internal control over financial reporting f8EI. Further, our management's conclusion
regarding the effectiveness of our internal contra@r financial reporting as of December 30, 20d@shot extend to the internal control over
financial reporting for CEl.

We are currently integrating policies, processashitology and operations for the consolidated compad will continue to evaluate
our internal control over financial reporting as evelop and execute our integration plans. Uril i fully integrated, we will maintain the
operational integrity of its legacy internal cotower financial reporting. CEIl constituted $16@&8lion of total assets as of December 30, 2012
and $68.2 million of revenues for the year theneeind
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over finanoégorting of Kratos Defense & Security Solutiohs;. (the “Company”as of December 3
2012, based on criteria establishedinternal Control-Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminghe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's managamegsponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting a
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezaatrol over financial reporting, included in taecompanying Management's Report on Int
Control Over Financial Reporting (“Management's &®€p). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on @wnpany's internal control o\
financial reporting based on our audit. Our auélitamd opinion on, the Company's internal contn@rdfinancial reporting does not include
internal control over financial reporting of Comjie€Engineering, Inc., a whollgwned subsidiary, whose financial statements reftgal asse
and revenues constituting 13.0 and 7.0 percergeotisely, of the related consolidated financialtsment amounts as of and for the year €
December 30, 2012. As indicated in Management'oRefomposite Engineering, Inc. was acquired @uflifl2, and therefore, managem
assertion on the effectiveness of the Company&riat control over financial reporting excludedemmial control over financial reporting
Composite Engineering, Inc.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightidd@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corakar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofrivalecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fot
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeadcepted accounting principles.
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ffpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepigu@tion of financial statements in accordancé génerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compeaypeing made only in accordance with authorizatiohmanagement and directors of
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediaggprevention or timely detection of unauthorizegtjuisition, use, or disposition of
company's assets that could have a material effettte financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all miaterespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of December 30, 2(
based on criteria establishedimernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bofdnited States), the consolids
financial statements of the Company as of and lier year ended December 30, 2012, and our repaetd ddarch 12, 2013 expressed
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2013
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Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventz.

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatfin connection with our 2013
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmentigoAnnual Report to be filed with the SEC withidOldays after the close of our fiscal y
ended December 30, 2012 .
Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatfin connection with our 2013
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhigoAnnual Report to be filed with the SEC withidOldays after the close of our fiscal y
ended December 30, 2012 .
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbanagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatfin connection with our 2013

Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmentigoAnnual Report to be filed with the SEC withidOldays after the close of our fiscal y
ended December 30, 2012 .

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence.
The information required by this item is incorpeiby reference to our definitive proxy stateméatfin connection with our 2013

Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhigAnnual Report to be filed with the SEC withi2Oldays after the close of our fiscal y
ended December 30, 2012 .

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our definitive proxy stateméatfin connection with our 2013
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhigAnnual Report to be filed with the SEC withi2Oldays after the close of our fiscal y
ended December 30, 2012 .
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules.

(&)(1) Financial Statement:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Kratoelef & Security Solutions, Inc. and Report of Giidmirnton LLP, Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, are included eparate section of this Annual Report beginoimgage F-1.

(@)(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedules not listed above have been omitted be¢heyg are not applicable or are not required @iiriformation required to be set
forth therein is included in the Consolidated FitiahStatements or the notes thereto.
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(@) (3). Exhibits.

Incorporated by

Reference
Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Exhibit Herewith
2.1+ Agreement and Plan of Merger and 8-K 02/22/2008 2.1
Reorganization, dated February 20, 2008 by and (000-27231)

among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
White Shadow, Inc. and SYS.

2.2+ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 12, 8-K 04/12/2010 2.1
2010, by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and the Stockholders of Gichner
Holdings, Inc.

2.3+ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 5, 8-K 10/7/2010 2.1
2010, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Hammer Acquisition Inc. and
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc.

2.4 Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of 8-K 11/15/2010 2.1
Merger, dated November 13, 2010, by and among
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
Hammer Acquisition Inc. and Henry Bros.
Electronics, Inc.

2.5+ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 7, 424 02/08/11 n/a
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Lanza Acquisition, Co. and Hel
Industries, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Annex A to the Prospectus Supplement dated
February 8, 2011, pursuant to the Registration
Statement on Form S-3 of Kratos Defense &
Security Solutions, Inc.)

2.6+ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 15, 8-K 05/18/11 2.1
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Integral Systems, Inc., IRIS
Merger Sub Inc., and IRIS Acquisition Sub LLC.

2.7+ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated May 8, 2012, 8-K 05/08/12 2.1
by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Composite Engineering, Inc., and
Amy Fournier, the stockholders representative

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-Q 09/30/2001 4.1
Incorporation of Kratos Defense & Security (000-27231)
Solutions, Inc

3.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Kratos 8-K 09/14/2007 3.1
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. into Wireless (000-27231)
Facilities, Inc.

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and 10-Q 09/27/2009 3.1
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Kratos (001-34460)
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

34 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and 10-Q 09/30/2001 4.2
Rights of Series A Preferred Stock. (000-27231)
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by
Reference

Exhibit Description Form

Filing Date/
Period End
Date

Exhibit

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1
4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and 8-K/A
Rights of Series B Preferred Stock (included as
Exhibit A to the Preferred Stock Purchase
Agreement dated as of May 16, 2002 among the
Company, Meritech Capital Partners Il L.P.,
Meritech Capital Affiliates Il L.P., MCB
Entrepreneur Partners Il L.P., Oak Investment
Partners X, Limited Partnership, Oak X Affiliates
Fund, Limited Partnership, Oak Investment
Partners 1X, L.P, Oak Affiliates Fund, L.P, Oak
IX Affiliates Fund-A, L.P, and the KLS Trust
dated July 14, 1999).

Certificate of Designation of Series C Preferred 8-K
Stock.

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kratos 8-K
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

Specimen Stock Certificate. 10-K

Rights Agreement, dated as of December 16, 8-K
2004, between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Wells Fargo, N.A.

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as 8-K
of May 14, 2012, between Kratos Defense &
Security Solutions, Inc. and Wells Fargo, N.A.

Indenture, dated as of May 19, 2010, by and 8-K
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,

the Guarantors set forth therein and Wilmington

Trust FSB, as Trustee and Collateral Agent

(including the Form of 10% Senior Secured Notes

due 2017 as an exhibit thereto).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 8-K
February 7, 2011, by and among Kratos

Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., the guarantors

listed on Exhibit A thereto and Wilmington Trust

FSB, to the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 2010

(as amended or supplemented), among Kratos

Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., the guarantors

party thereto and Wilmington Trust FSB, as

trustee and collateral agent.

Supplemental Indenture, dated April 1, 2011, 8-K
among the guaranteeing subsidiaries named

therein and Wilmington Trust FSB, as trustee, to

the Indenture (as amended or supplemented),

dated as of May 19, 2010, among Kratos

Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., the guarantors

party thereto and Wilmington Trust FSB, as

trustee and collateral agent.
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06/5/2002 (000-

27231)

12/17/2004
(000-27231)
03/15/2011
12/26/2010
12/17/2004
(000-27231)

05/15/2012

05/25/2010

02/07/2011

04/07/2011

4.1

3.1

4.1
4.1

4.1

4.1

10.2

4.1
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by
Reference

Exhibit Description

Form

Filing Date/
Period End
Date

Exhibit

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated April 15,
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the guaranteeing subsidiaries
named therein and Wilmington Trust FSB, as
trustee and collateral agent, to the Indenturesd
as of May 19, 2010 (as amended or

supplemented), among Kratos Defense & Security

Solutions, Inc., the guarantors party thereto and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as trustee and collateral
agent.

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated July 27,
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the guaranteeing subsidiaries
named therein and Wilmington Trust, National
Association (as successor by merger to
Wilmington Trust FSB), as trustee and collateral
agent, to the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 2010
(as amended or supplemented), among Kratos

Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., the guarantors

party thereto and Wilmington Trust FSB, as
trustee and collateral agent.

Form of 10% Senior Secured Note due 2017
(issuable in connection with the 2010 exchange
offer).

Form of 10% Senior Secured Note due 2017
(issuable in connection with the August 2011
exchange offer).

Form of 10% Senior Secured Note due 2017
(issuable in connection with the October 2011
exchange offer).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May
19, 2010, by and among Kratos Defense &
Security Solutions, Inc., the Guarantors set forth
therein, Jefferies & Company, Inc., B. Riley &
Co., LLC, Imperial Capital, LLC, Keybanc
Capital Markets Inc. and Noble International
Investments, Inc.

Indenture, dated March 25, 2011, by and among
Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent, the Guarantors
named therein and a party thereto, and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Trustee and Collateral
Agent (including the Form of 10% Senior Secu
Notes).

First Supplemental Indenture, date April 4, 2011,
by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Herley Industries, Inc. and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Trustee and Collateral
Agent, to the Indenture, dated as of March 25,
2011, among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the Guarantor party thereto and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Trustee and Collateral
Agent.
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8-K

8-K

S-4

S-4

8-K

8-K

8-K

04/20/2011

07/29/2011

06/28/10

06/07/2011

10/25/2011

05/25/2010

03/29/2011

04/04/2011

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.2

4.2

10.4

4.1
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Incorporated by

Reference

Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Exhibit Herewith

4.15 Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 25, 8-K 03/29/2011 4.2
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent,

Lanza Acquisition Co., the Guarantors named
therein, Jefferies & Company, Inc., KeyBanc
Capital Markets Inc. and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.

4.16 Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 27, 8-K 07/29/2011 4.2
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the guarantors named therein,

Jefferies & Company, Inc., KeyBanc Capital
Markets Inc. and B. Riley & Co., LLC.

10.1 Commitment Letter, dated February 7, 2011, by 8-K 02/07/2011 10.1
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc. and Jefferies Group, Inc., Key Capital
Corporation and OPY Credit Corp.

10.2# Form of Indemnification Agreement by and 10-Q 06/26/2011 10.8
between Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc. and its directors and executive officers.

10.3# 10-Q 9/30/2000 (000- 10.2
2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan. 27231)

10.4# Form of Stock Option Agreement and Grant 10-Q 09/30/2000 10.3
Notice used in connection with the 2000 (000-27231)
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan.

10.5# 10-K 12/31/2005 10.44
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. (000-27231)

10.6# 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. S-8 08/01/2005 99.1

(333-127060)

10.7# Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the S-8 08/01/2005 99.1
2005 Equity Incentive Plan. (333-127060)

10.8# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and 8-K 01/17/2007 99.3
Form of Notice of Grant under the 2005 Equity (000-27231)

Incentive Plan.

10.9# Herley Industries, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan. S-8 04/08/2011 4.10

10.10# Herley Industries, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan. S-8 04/08/2011 4.11

10.11# Herley Industries, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan. S-8 04/08/2011 412

10.12# Herley Industries, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan. S-8 04/08/2011 4.13

10.13# Herley Industries, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan. S-8 04/08/2011 414

10.14# Herley Industries, Inc. Amended and Restated S-8 04/08/2011 4.15
2006 New Employee Stock Option Plan.

10.15# Integral Systems, Inc. Amended and Restated S-8 10/25/2011 4.10
2002 Stock Option Plan.

10.16# Integral Systems, Inc. 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. S-8 10/25/2011 4.11
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by
Reference

Exhibit Description

Form

Filing Date/
Period End
Date

Exhibit

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

10.17#
10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#

10.22#

10.23#

10.24#

10.25#

10.26#

10.27#

10.28#

10.29#

10.30

2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
pursuant to the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2010, by and between Kratos Government
Solutions, Inc. and Richard Selvaggio.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement,
dated as of August 4, 2011, by and between
Kratos Defense Engineering Solutions, Inc. and
Richard Selvaggio.

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 22,
2010, by and between Kratos Government
Solutions, Inc. and David Carter.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement,
dated as of August 4, 2011, by and between
Kratos Defense Engineering Solutions, Inc. and

David Carter.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement,
dated as of January 1, 2011, by and between
Kratos Government Solutions, Inc. and Phil

Carrai.

First Amendment to Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Defense
Engineering Solutions, Inc. and Phil Carrai.

Second Amended and Restated Executive
Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Eric DeMarco.

Second Amended and Restated Severance and
Change of Control Agreement, dated as of August
4, 2011, by and between Kratos Defense &
Security Solutions, Inc. and Deanna Lund.

Second Amended and Restated Severance and
Change of Control Agreement, dated as of August
4, 2011, by and between Kratos Defense &
Security Solutions, Inc. and Laura Siegal

Amended and Restated Severance and Change of
Control Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2011,
by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Deborah S. Butera.

Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Public Safety &
Security Solutions, Inc. and Ben Goodwin.

Settlement Agreement and General Release of
Claims, dated as of October 16, 2009, among
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
KeyBank National Association, Field Point Ill,
Ltd. and SPF CDO |, Ltd.

DEF 14A

8-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

04/15/2011
11/18/2011

12/26/2010

06/26/2011

12/26/2010

09/25/2011

12/26/2010

06/26/2011

06/26/2011

6/26/2011

06/26/2011

09/25/2011

09/25/2011

09/27/2009
(001-34460)

n/a
10.10

10.14

10.70

10.15

10.90

10.16

10.60

10.30

10.40

10.50

10.80

10.10

10.10
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by
Reference

Exhibit Description

Form

Filing Date/
Period End
Date

Exhibit

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

Sublease Agreement, dated as of December 17,
2009, by and between Amylin Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. (Sublessor) and Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. (Sublessee).

Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2010,
by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein,
Jefferies & Company, Inc., B. Riley & Co., LLC,
Imperial Capital, LLC, Keybanc Capital Markets
Inc. and Noble International Investments, Inc.

Security Agreement, dated as of May 19, 201(
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Collateral Agent.

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of May 19,
2010, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein,
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Indenture Agent, and
KeyBank National Association, as Credit Facility
Agent.

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2010,
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
KeyBank National Association, as Administrative
Agent and Lender, Bank of America, N.A., as
Syndication Agent and Lender, and the other
financial institutions parties thereto with Keybanc
Capital Markets and Banc of America Securities,
LLC, as Co-Lead Arrangers and Book Runners.

First Amendment Agreement, dated as of
December 13, 2010, by and among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., as Borrower,
the Lenders named therein and KeyBank National
Association, as Lead Arranger, Sole Book Runner
and Administrative Agent.

Second Amendment Agreement, dated as of
February 7, 2011, among Kratos Defense &
Security solutions, the Lenders named therein and
KeyBank National Association.

Purchase Agreement, dated March 22, 2011, by
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent, Lanza
Acquisition Co., the guarantors named therein,
Jefferies & Company, Inc., KeyBanc Capital
Markets, Inc. and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.

Security Agreement, dated March 25, 2011, by
and among Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent, Lanza
Acquisition Co. and Wilmington Trust FSB, as
Collateral Agent.

67

10-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

12/27/2009
(000-34460)

05/25/2010

05/25/2010

05/25/2010

03/08/2010
(001-34460)

12/16/2010

02/7/2011

03/29/2011

03/29/2011

10.26

10.10

10.20

10.30

10.10

10.10

10.30

10.10

10.20
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by
Reference

Exhibit Description

Form

Filing Date/
Period End
Date

Exhibit

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

211
23.1

311

Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of May
19, 2010, as amended and restated as of July 27,
2011, among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders named
therein and KeyBank National Association, as
Lead Arranger, Sole Book Runner and
Administrative Agent.

First Amendment Agreement, dated as of
November 14, 2011, by and among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., as Borrower,
the Lenders named therein, and Key Bank
National Association, as Lead Arranger, Sole
Book Runner and Administrative Agent.

Purchase Agreement, dated July 14, 2011, by and
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
the Guarantors named therein, Jefferies &
Company, Inc., KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc.

B. Riley & Co., LLC, as amended by that certain
Joinder Agreement, dated July 27, 2011.

Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement of
Derivative Claims, dated as of January 5, 2010.

Amended and Restated Herley Industries, Inc.
2010 Stock Plan, and the forms of agreement
related thereto.

Amended and Restated Integral Systems, Inc.
2008 Stock Incentive Plan, and the forms of
agreement related thereto.

Second Amendment to Credit and Security
Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2012, among
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, the lenders
named therein, and KeyBank National
Association.

Third Amendment to Credit and Security
Agreement, dated as of May 8, 2012, among
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, the lenders
named therein, and KeyBank National
Association.

Standstill Agreement, dated May 14, 2012,
between Kratos Defense & Security

Solutions, Inc., Bandel Carano, Oak Investment
Partners IX, L.P., Oak IX Affiliates Fund, L.P.,
Oak IX Affiliates Fund-A, L.P., Oak X Affiliates
Fund, L.P., Oak Investment Partners X, L.P., and
Oak Investment Partners XIlI, L.P.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement entered
into between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and certain employees of
Composite Engineering, Inc.

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

68

8-K

10-Q

10-K

8-K

8-K

S-8

07/29/2011

11/18/2011

09/25/2011

12/27/2009
(001-34460)

03/8/2012

03/8/2012

05/8/2012

05/8/2012

05/15/2012

07/27/2012

10.10

10.10

10.20

10.60

4.10

411

10.10

10.20

10.10

4.10
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Incorporated by

Reference
Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Exhibit Herewith
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant *
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, *
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Eric M.
DeMarco.
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, *

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Deanna Lund.

101t Financial statements from the Annual Report on *
Form 10K of Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. for the year ended December 30,
2012, formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss),
(i) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,
(iv) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

+ Certain schedules and exhibits referencedisndocument have been omitted in accordance ¥éth 601(b)(2) of Regulation &- A copy of
any omitted schedule and/or exhibit will be furmidisupplementally to the Securities and Exchangan@ission upon request.

# Management contract or compensatory planrangement.

t Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, ithisractive data file is deemed not filed or pdraoegistration statement or prospectus for
purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesoA&B33, is deemed not filed for purposes of secli8 of the Exchange Act of 1934, and
otherwise is not subject to liability under thesetsons.
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(b) Exhibits

See Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(a)(2) above.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: March 12, 2013

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

/sl Eric M. DeMarco
Eric M. DeMarco
President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
By: Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated:
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Signature

/sl Eric M. DeMarco
Eric M. DeMarco

/s/ Deanna H. Lund
Deanna H. Lund

/sl Laura L. Siegal
Laura L. Siegal

/s/ Deborah S. Butera
Deborah S. Butera

/sl Scott Anderson
Scott Anderson

/s/ Bandel Carano
Bandel Carano

/sl Scot Jarvis
Scot Jarvis

/s/ Jane E. Judd
Jane E. Judd

/s/ Sam Liberatore
Sam Liberatore

/s/ William Hoglund
William Hoglund

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Corporate Controller (Principal
Accounting Officer)

Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief

Compliance Officer and Secretary / Registered inidé¢o

Counsel

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013



71




Table of Contents

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimgm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 25,&td December 30, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaleeimcome (Loss) for the Years Ended DecembeR@80, December 25,
2011, and December 30, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquityHerYears Ended December 26, 2010, December 23, 206d December 30,
2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 26, 2010, December 25, 2011, aceniimer 30, 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeets of Kratos Defense & Security Solutioms, (the “Company”) as of December
25, 2011 and December 30, 2012, and the relatezbtidated statements of operations and compreheirgiome (loss), stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in gre@@ ended December 30, 2012. These financiamtits are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to epan opinion on these financial statements basedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf@qUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataeinents are free of material misstaten
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, exidesupporting the amounts and disclosures initaadial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asagivag the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaferred to above present fairly, in all mateeapects, the financial position of Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. as of Decemtgr2B11 and December 30, 2012, and the results operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@LE, in conformity with accounting principles geallyy accepted in the United States of
America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 30, 2012, based on criteria establishedt@mrial Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO), and our report datactM12, 2013 expressed an
unqualified opinion.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Diego, California

March 12, 2013
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventoried costs
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Other current assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Other assets of discontinued operations
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation
Accrued interest

Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetegl contracts

Deferred income tax liability
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt principal, net of current portion
Long-term debt premium
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Deferred income tax liability
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 aizibdy O shares outstanding at December

25, 2011 and December 30, 2012

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 195,000,000 slarg®rized; 34,395,895 and
56,613,024 shares issued and outstanding at Decé&8p2011 and December 30, 2012,

respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012
(in millions, except par value and number of shargs

2011

2012

69.6 $ 49.
1.1 5.5
245.: 271.¢
76.€ 94.:
2.8 3.7
12.7 17.2
3.1 7.
9.7 6.€
421.( 455.2
72.E 85.¢
571.¢ 596.F
124.¢ 106.1
23.¢ 39.€
2.4 0.8
1,216 $ 1,284.(
485 $ 83.
50.7 46..
39.¢ 47.¢
5.1 6.2
36.2 43.7
8.5 28.¢
16.€ 15.¢
1.0 1.
0.6 0.5
6.3 4.8
213.¢ 279.(
630. 629.7
22.¢ 18.7
0.7 0.4
2.5 —
32.: 31.€
0.5 0.3
903.4 959.¢
720.¢ 847.1
0.2) (0.8)
(407.9) (522.9)
312.¢ 324.1
1,216 $ 1,284.(




The accompanying notes are an integral part obtRessolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Years ended December 26, 2010, December 25, 201id Becember 30, 2012

(in millions, except per share amounts)

Service revenues
Product sales
Total revenues
Cost of service revenues
Cost of product sales
Total costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Merger and acquisition related items
Research and development expenses
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Unused office space and other
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other income, net
Total other expense, net
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgimperations
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Basic income (loss) per common share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net income (loss) per common share
Diluted income (loss) per common share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net income (loss) per common share
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Net income (loss) from above
Other comprehensive income:
Change in cumulative translation adjustment
Post retirement benefit reserve adjustment neboékpense
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss)

2010 2011 2012
284.¢ 351.0 $ 450.(
1233 362.¢ 519.C
408 713.¢ 969.
221.¢ 260.7 350.¢
103. 262.( 361.C
324.; 522.7 712.(
84.: 191. 257.c
57. 140.€ 193.1
3.1 12.£ 2.7
2.2 8.6 17.€
— — 96.€
(1.4) — 2.1
23.1 29.F (49.7)
(22.9) (51.7) (66.1)
1.1 — 1.2
(21.9) (51.1) (64.9)
1.9 (21.6) (114.5)
(12.7) 1.9 (1.6)
14.€ (23.5) (112.9)
(0.1) 0.7) (1.5)
14.F (42 $ (114.9)
0.8¢ 0.8 $ (2.49)
(0.0) (0.02) (0.09)
0.87 089 $ (2.44)
0.87 0.8 $ (2.49)
(0.0) (0.02) (0.09)
0.8€ 089 $ (2.44)
16.€ 27.4 46.¢
16.¢ 27.4 46.¢
14.F (242 $ (114.9)
— 0.1 (0.4)
— 0.3 (0.2)
— ©.2) (0.6)
14.£ (4.4 $ (115.0)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetlemsolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
Years ended December 26, 2010, December 25, 20T Becember 30, 2012

(in millions)
Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders'
Preferred Stock Common Stock Capital Loss Deficit Equity
Balance, December 27, 2009 - $ — 156 $§ — $ 523( — $ (398 124.¢
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puect
plan, options and warrants — — 0.2 — i — — 7
Issuance of common stock for cash — — 2E — 241 — — 241
Fair value of options assumed for acquisitions — — — — 7 — — 1.7
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1.¢ — — 1.¢
Conversion of convertible notes — — — — 0.t — — 0.t
Net income — — — — — — 14.5 14.5
Balance, December 26, 2010 — — 18.€ — 553.t — (383.9) 169.¢
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puechas
plan, options and warrants — — 0.4 — 2.C — — 2.C
Issuance of common stock for cash — — 4.¢ — 61.1 — — 61.1
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions — — 10.4 — 109.7 — — 109.7
Fair value of options assumed for acquisition — — — — 1.¢ — — 1.¢
Stock-based compensation — — — — 3 — — |
Conversion of convertible notes — — 0.1 — — — — —
Common stock repurchased — — (2.0 — (10.9) — — (10.9)
Net loss — — — — — — (24.2) (24.2)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — — — (0.2 — (0.2)
Balance, December 25, 2011 — — 32.4 — 720.€ (0.2 (407.¢) 312.¢
Issuance of common stock for cash — — 20.C — 97.C — — 97.C
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions — = 4.C = 23.¢ = — 23.¢
Stock-based compensation — — — — 6.€ — — 6.€
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puect
plan, options and warrants — e 0.2 e — e — —
Common stock repurchased for employee stock
purchase plan — — — — (0.7 — — (0.7
Restricted stock units traded for taxes — e — e (0.2) e — (0.2)
Net loss — — — — — — (114.9) (114.9
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax = — = e — (0.€) — (0.€)
Balance, December 30, 2012 - % — 566 $§ — $ 8471 3 (08 $ (5229 $ 3241

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtRessolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 26, 2010, December 25, 2011d Becember 30, 2012

(in millions)

Operating activities:

Net income (loss)

Less:

Loss from discontinued operations

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from coritiguoperations to net cash

provided by operating activities from continuingeogtions:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes

Stock-based compensation
Mark to market on swaps
Goodwill and intangible assets impairment charge

Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of premium on Senior Secured Notes

Provision for doubtful accounts

Change in accrual for excess facilities

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqarssti

Accounts receivable
Inventoried costs
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation
Accrued interest
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetepl contracts
Income tax receivable and payable
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities from aanhg operations

Investing activities:

Cash

paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued djxema

Cash transferred from (to) restricted cash
Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities from contirquoperations

Financing activities:

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, fnissoance costs
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, niesoince costs

Borrowing under credit facility

Repayments under credit facility
Purchase of treasury stock

Cash

paid for contingent acquisition considerati

Debt issuance costs

Proceeds from exercise of restricted stock unitgleyee stock options, and

employee stock purchase plan

Other

Net cash provided by financing activities from éoaing operations

Net cash flows of continuing operations

2010 2012
145 $ (24.2) (114.9)
(0.1) ©.7) (1.5)
14.€ (23.9) (112.9)
12.¢ 48.C 58.C
0.2) (0.1) (2.5)

1. 3 6.6
(1.0 0.3 —
— — 96.€
5. 3.8 5.1
— (2.9 4.2)
0.4 1. 0.4
(1.4) — 1.6
2.8 (14.4) 2.8
2.¢ 3 (5.2)
2.9 1.4 1.7)
3.2 3 0.2)
8.7 (15.9) 25.€
(10.0) 1. (10.9)
3.4 (3.9 4.3
0.€ 3.1 1.2
3.2 (1.9 (5.0)
0.3 0.2) 0.7)
(15.6) (0.1) (7.4)
28.2 5.2 52.2
(206.9) (391.) (149.9)
0.1 — 0.2
(0.1) 3. 0.6
2.3 (7.5) (16.6)
(209.9) (395.6) (165.9)
225.( 425.7 —
24.7 61.1 97.C
61.c — 50.C
(119.9 2.7 (51.0)
— (10.9 —
— — (2.5)
(11.0) (22.9) 1.2)
1.7 2.C —
0.9) ©.7) (1.4)
181.¢ 452. 90.¢
1. 62.C (21.9



Net operating cash flows of discontinued operations
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cashaéents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest
Net cash paid during the year for income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock and stock options issued for acqorsti
Liability for contingent cash consideration

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investingfimaacing transactions:

Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtkessolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies
€)) Description of Busines

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (“Kratas"the “Company”) is a specialized security tedbgg business providing mission
critical products, services and solutions for daimeand international customers, with its principastomers being agencies of the U.S.
Government. Kratos' core capabilities are soplatit engineering, manufacturing and system integrafferings for national security
platforms and programs. Its principal products s@ivices are related to, but are not limited tectebnic attack and electronic warfare platfol
tactical missile systems; strategic deterrenceesyst Command, Control, Communications, Computirggniat Systems, Intelligence,
Surveillance and Reconnaissance (“C5ISR”); relatdmbrsecurity, cyberwarfare, information assuraane situational awareness solutions;
satellite communication systems and radio frequémeyference detection and prevention; weaponesyslifecycle support and sustainment;
military weapon range operations and technicalisesy missile, rocket and weapons system testidgeaaluation; missile and rocket mission
launch services, primarily for ballistic missilefelese; public safety, critical infrastructure seétyuand surveillance systems; modeling and
simulation; unmanned aerial vehicle systems; andr@cked network engineering and information techgl6IT”) services.

The Company conducts most of its business withtis Government (which includes foreign militaryesd and performs work as the
prime contractor, subcontractor, or preferred sepplhe Company also conducts business with I@tale, and foreign governments and
domestic and international commercial customers.

The Company operates in two principal business satgnKratos Government Solutions (“*KGS”) and PuBlafety & Security
(“PSS”). The Company organizes its business segmsed on the nature of the services offered s@irdions between segments are generally
negotiated and accounted for under terms and gonslisimilar to other government and commerciati@mts, and these intercompany
transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Tharfcial statements in this Annual Report on Fo@¥K1(this “Annual Report”) are presented in
a manner consistent with the Company's operatiogtstre. For additional information regarding then@pany’s operating segments, see Note 14
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateésien

b) Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentain

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ¢toeunts of Kratos and its wholly-owned subsidigries which all intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidaioatos and its subsidiaries are collectively nefdrto herein as the “Company” or "Kratos."

In June 2012, the Company committed to a planlt@ssgain lines of business associated with ardensatellite-cased products and fly-
away terminals of the non-core businesses acqirirge Integral acquisition. In accordance WAASB ASC Topic 205, Presentation of
Financial Statement¢Topic 205”) , these businesses have been classified as heddléand reported in discontinued operationsén th
accompanying Consolidated Financial StatementsN®e&=9.

(c) Fiscal Year
The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year endinp@tast Sunday of the calendar year, with intdigzal periods ending on the last

Sunday of each calendar quarter. There were 52d@aleveeks in the fiscal years ended on Decemhe2@® and December 25, 2011 . There
were 53 calendar weeks in the fiscal year ende@iber 30, 2012 .

(d) Reclassification:

Interest payable of approximately $5.1 million &®ecember 25, 2011, which was previously includdtiin other current liabilities
has been reclassified to accrued interest in thé Zbnsolidated Balance Sheet to conform with teegntation in the December 30, 2012
Consolidated Financial Statements. Accrued intereapproximately $0.6 million was reclassified ofiaccrued expenses and shown as a

discrete line item in the 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. In additieclassifications were made to the 2010 Consolitigtatement of Cash Flows to present the
change in the accrual for excess facilities of apnately $1.4 million as a discrete line item @oaorrect a misclassification of deferred
income taxes.

(e) Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States (“U.S. GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assuasit affect the reported amounts of assetsiabititles, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finarstialements and the reported amounts of revengesxgenses during the reporting period. Such
estimates include revenue recognition, allowancedabtful accounts, warranties, inventory valuatiealuation of long-lived assets including
identifiable intangibles and goodwill, accountirg fncome taxes including the related valuationwa#ince on the deferred tax asset and
uncertain tax positions, contingencies and litaticontingent acquisition consideration, stockeldasompensation and business combination
purchase price allocations. In the future, the Camypmay realize actual results that differ from ¢herent reported estimates and if the estirr
that the Company has used change in the futurb,changes could have a material impact on the Coygaonsolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows.

® Revenue Recognitio

The Company generates its revenue from three diffdypes of contractual arrangements: cost-plasémtracts, time-and-materials
contracts, and fixed-price contracts. Revenue at+glis-fee contracts is recognized to the extéatlowable costs incurred plus an estimate of
the applicable fees earned. The Company considessunder cost-plus-fee contracts to be earnewpogion to the allowable costs incurred in
performance of the contract and recognizes theaateportion of the expected fee to be awardedbytistomer at the time such fee can be
reasonably estimated, based on factors such psdtsaward experience and communications withctietomer regarding performance,
including any interim performance evaluations reeddy the customer. Revenue on time-and-materiaisacts is recognized to the extent of
billable rates times hours delivered for services/joled, to the extent of material cost for produdtlivered to customers, and to the extent of
expenses incurred on behalf of the customers.

The Company has three basic categories of fixamk montracts: fixed unit price, fixed price-levéleffort, and fixed price-completion.
Revenue recognition methods on fixed-price congradil vary depending on the nature of the work #mlcontract terms. Revenues on fixed-
price service contracts are recorded as work i®peed in accordance withinancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accting
Standards Codg ASC”) Topic 605, Revenue Recognition (“Topic 6058pecificallyTopic 605-10-S99which generally requires revenue tc
deferred until all of the following have occurréil) there is a contract in place, (2) delivery besurred, (3) the price is fixed or determinable,
and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. Raesron fixed-price contracts that require delivargpecific items may be recorded based on a
price per unit as units are delivered. RevenudiXed price contracts in which the Company is papecific amount to provide services for a
stated period of time is recognized ratably overdérvice period.

On a portion of the fixed price-completion contsacevenue is recognized in accordance Withic 605using the percentage-of-
completion method based on the ratio of total costsrred to date compared to estimated total dostemplete the contract. Estimates of costs
to complete include material, direct labor, ovethesnd allowable indirect expenses for governmentracts. These cost estimates are reviewed
and, if necessary, revised monthly on a contraetdntract basis. If, as a result of this reviewnagement determines that a loss on a contract i
probable, then the full amount of estimated losharged to operations in the period it is deteedhithat it is probable a loss will be realized
from the full performance of the contract. As ofd@mber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 , the pomgdor losses on contracts were $3.5
million and $4.2 million , respectively.

In certain instances, when the Company's custoimare requested that it commence work prior to peasfi the contract award a
funding and it has incurred costs related to tpatsic anticipated contract, and the Company keBerecoverability of the costs is probabl
may defer those costs incurred until the associedetract has been awarded and funded by the castom

In accounting for the Company's long-term contrémtgproduction of products provided to the U.Sv&mment, the Company utilizes
both cost-to-cost and units produced measures uhegrercentage-of-completion method of accountimder the provisions dfopic 605.
Under the units produced measure of the percerghge-
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completion method of accounting, sales are receghis the units are accepted by the customer dlgnesimg sales values for units in
accordance with the contract terms. The Comparnmatgs profit as the difference between total emtiah revenue and total estimated cost of a
contract and recognizes that profit over the lif¢he contract based on units produced or as cadpan the basis of the estimated final average
unit costs plus profit. The Company classifies tattrevenues as product sales or service revelgpesiding upon the predominant attribute
the relevant underlying contracts.

Significant management judgments and estimatelsdimg but not limited to the estimated costs tmpéete projects, must be made
and used in connection with the revenue recogriizady accounting period. A cancellation, schedidiay, or modification of a fixed-price
contract which is accounted for using the percestafgcompletion method may adversely affect the Gamny's gross margins for the period in
which the contract is modified or canceled. Unda&tain circumstances, a cancellation or negativdifigation could result in the Company
having to reverse revenue that was recognizegiioa period, thus significantly reducing the ambafirevenues recognized for the period in
which the adjustment is made. Correspondingly,sitipe modification may positively affect gross migs. In addition, a schedule delay or
modifications can result in an increase in estichatest to complete the project, which would alsulein an impact to gross margins. Material
differences may result in the amount and timin¢ghef Company's revenue for any period if managemeaie different judgments or utilized
different estimates.

It is the Company's policy to review any arrangenoemtaining software or software deliverables sevices against the criteria
contained iFFASB ASC Topic 985, Software (“Topic 983Inder the provisions ofopic 985, the Company reviews the contract value of
software deliverables and services and determii@sations of the contract value based on vendeciis objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair
value for each of the elements. All software areangnts requiring significant production, modificati or customization of the software are
accounted for in conformity witfiopic 605.

The Company's contracts may include the provisfanare than one of its services (“multiple elemamtingements”). In these
situations, the Company applies the guidanckopic 605. Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, reveragognition includes the proper
identification of separate units of accounting #melallocation of revenue across all elements basaélative fair values.

For multiple element arrangements that includeward products containing software essential tdirdware products' functionality,
undelivered software elements that relate to thewnare products' essential software, and undeliveomn-software services, the Company
allocates revenue to all deliverables based on tékitive selling prices. In such circumstancks,EGompany uses a hierarchy to determine the
selling price to be used for allocating revenudetiverables: (i) VSOE, (ii) third-party evidenceselling price (“TPE”), and (iii) best estimate
of the selling price (“ESP").

VSOE generally exists only when the Company sklsdeliverable separately and is the price actealrged by the Company for that
deliverable. TPE is determined based on compatiioes for similar deliverables when sold sepaya@knerally, the Company's offerings
contain significant differentiation such that comgiae pricing of products with similar functionglitannot be obtained. Furthermore, the
Company is unable to reliably determine what simdtampetitor products' selling prices are on adtaione basis. Therefore, the Company
typically is unable to obtain TPE of selling pri€&eSP reflects the Company's best estimates of thihagelling prices of elements would be if
they were sold regularly on a stand-alone basis.ddmpany determines ESP for a product or seryiambsidering multiple factors including,
but not limited to major product groupings, geodniap, market conditions, competitive landscapeyiral costs, gross margin objectives and
pricing practices. The determination of ESP is ntadeugh consultation with management, taking odnsideration the Company's marketing
strategy.

The Company accounts for multiple element arrangsitdat consist only of software or software-edigproducts, including the sale
of upgrades to previously sold software, in accocgawith industry specific software accounting guice. For such transactions, revenue on
arrangements that include multiple elements icatked to each element based on the relative fhievd each element, and fair value is
determined by VSOE. If the Company cannot objegtidetermine the fair value of any undelivered adairincluded in such multiple element
arrangements, the Company defers revenue unélatients are delivered and services have beerrpedo or until fair value can objectively
be determined for any remaining undelivered elemesder certain of the Company's contractual gearents, the Company may also
recognize revenue for out-of-pocket expenses inrdemce witiTopic 605.Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be
reimbursed with or without a fee.
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Under certain of its contracts, the Company pravisigpplier procurement services and materialgganistomers. The Company
records revenue on these arrangements on a gross loasis in accordance willopic 605depending on the specific circumstances of the
arrangement. The Company considers the followiitgr@, among others, for recording revenue onoagor net basis:

(1) Whether the Company acts as a principal in thes&retion

(2) Whether the Company takes title to the prod

(3) Whether the Company assumes risks and rewardsrarship, such as risk of loss for collection, datjwor returns
(4) Whether the Company serves as an agent or brokbrcempensation on a commission or fee basis

(5) Whether the Company assumes the credit risk foatheunt billed to the customer subsequent to dwli

For federal contracts, the Company follows U.S. &oment procurement and accounting standards @ssisg the allowability and tt
allocability of costs to contracts. Due to the ffigance of the judgments and estimation processeslikely that materially different amounts
could be recorded if different assumptions werelusdf the underlying circumstances were to chafigee Company closely monitors the
consistent application of its critical accountirgipies and compliance with contract accountingsiBess operations personnel conduct periodic
contract status and performance reviews. When taourgs in estimated contract revenues or costsegrered, any significant changes from
prior estimates are included in earnings in theexurperiod. Also, regular and recurring evaluaiohcontract cost, scheduling and technical
matters are performed by management personnel rehiadependent from the business operations peesperforming work under the
contract. Costs incurred and allocated to contnaittsthe U.S. Government are scrutinized for caarge with regulatory standards by the
Company's personnel, and are subject to auditéptfense Contract Audit Agency.

From time to time, the Company may proceed withkigased on client direction prior to the completdod signing of formal contract
documents. The Company has a formal review prdoesgpproving any such work. Revenue associateld suith work is recognized only when
it can be reliably estimated and realization idple. The Company bases its estimates on pregikpesiences with the client, communications
with the client regarding funding status, and itewledge of available funding for the contract aygram. As of December 25, 2011 and
December 30, 2012 , approximately $7.8 million 88d million , respectively, of the Company's ulddilaccounts receivable balance were
under an authorization to proceed or work ordamfits customers where a formal purchase order bagat been received.

Costs incurred for shipping and handling are inetliah cost of product sales at the time the releggdnue is recognized. Amounts
billed to a customer for shipping and handlingraported as revenue.

(9) Inventoried costs

Inventoried costs are stated at the lower of costarket. Cost is determined using the averageadstst-in, first-out methods and the
applicable method is applied consistently withinogerating entity. Inventoried costs primarily teléo work in process under fixed-price
contracts using costs as the basis of the percemtagpmpletion calculation under the units producedhmetof revenue recognition. These ¢
represent accumulated contract costs less thepartisuch costs allocated to delivered items. Audated contract costs include direct
production costs, factory and engineering overteabproduction tooling costs. Pursuant to conpaatisions of U.S. Government contracts,
such customers may have title to, or a securigr@st in inventories related to such contractsrasuat of advances, performance-based
payments, and progress payments. The Companyteeflexse advances and payments as an offset atfe@nstiated inventory balances.

The Company regularly reviews inventory quantibeshand, future purchase commitments with its sappland the estimated utility
of its inventory. If the Company's review indicategeduction in utility below carrying value, itthéces its inventory to a new cost basis.
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(h) Derivative Instruments

In managing interest rate risk exposure, the Compatered into interest rate swap agreements. #endst rate swap is a contractual
exchange of notional interest payments betweerpawies. A standard interest rate swap involvegptyenent of a fixed rate times a notional
amount by one party in exchange for a floating tiabes the same notional amount from another pasyinterest rates change, the difference to
be paid or received is accrued and recognizedt@sest expense or income over the life of the agese. These instruments are not entered into
for trading purposes. Counterparties to the Com'ganterest rate swap agreements are major finkinsttutions. In accordance withASB
ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedg, the Company recognizes interest rate swap agrégsrae the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value. The interest rate swap agreements are maykadrket with changes in fair value recognizedither other comprehensive income (loss)
or in the carrying value of the hedged portionfixad rate debt, as applicable (“Hedge Accounting”)

Hedge Accounting is discontinued when it is detaesdithat a derivative instrument is not highly efifee as a hedge. Hedge
Accounting is also discontinued when: (1) the daiixe instrument expires; is sold, terminated @reised; or is no longer designated as a h
instrument because it is unlikely that a forecastaxsaction will occur; (2) a hedged firm commitrheo longer meets the definition of a firm
commitment; or (3) management determines that dasan of the derivative as a hedging instrumenbisonger appropriate.

When Hedge Accounting is discontinued, the denresitistrument will be either terminated, continadé carried on the balance sheet
at fair value, or redesignated as the hedgingunstnt in either a cash flow or fair value hedgéhéf relationship meets all applicable hedging
criteria. Any asset or liability that was previousécorded as a result of recognizing the valug fifim commitment will be removed from the
balance sheet and recognized as a gain or lossrent period earnings. Any gains or losses thaewwecumulated in other comprehensive
income from hedging a forecasted transaction weiltdcognized immediately in current period earniifgsis probable that the forecasted
transaction will not occur. See Note 10 for addigibinformation with respect to derivative instrurte

0] Research and Developmel

Costs incurred in research and development aetivire expensed as incurred in accordance with B&SBTopic 730, Research and
Development

()] Income Taxe!

The Company records deferred tax assets and fiabifor the future tax consequences attributabliifferences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiahiities and their respective tax bases and dipgréoss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuried) @hacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabtane in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be realized. The effecteferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company maintains a valuation allowance ord#ferred tax assets for which it is more likelyrthmt that the Company will not
realize the benefits of these tax assets in fuax@eriods. The valuation allowance is based timates of future taxable income by tax
jurisdiction in which the Company operates, the hanof years over which the deferred tax assetdeitecoverable, and scheduled revers:
deferred tax liabilities.

In accordance with the recognition standards estad byFASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“Topic 74@He Company makes a
comprehensive review of its portfolio of uncerttam positions regularly. In this regard, an undartax position represents the Company's
expected treatment of a tax position taken inelftbx return, or planned to be taken in a futaxeréturn or claim, which has not been reflected
in measuring income tax expense for financial répgmpurposes. Until these positions are sustalyetthe taxing authorities, the Company has
not recognized the tax benefits resulting from suasitions and reports the tax effects as a lighfitir uncertain tax positions in its Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

(k) Stock-Based Compensatio
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The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiacciordance witRASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation
(“Topic 718") . All of the Company's stock compensation planscareidered equity plans undespic 718, and compensation expense
recognized is net of estimated forfeitures ovenisting period. The Company issues stock optiodsséock awards under its existing plans.
The fair value of stock options is estimated ondate of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricimgdel and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the remaining vesting period of thean®tj which is generally zero to four years . Thevalue of stock awards is determined based
on the closing market price of the Company's comstook on the grant date and is adjusted at egartieg date based on the amount of sh
ultimately expected to vest. Compensation expemsstbck awards is expensed over the vesting peuigghlly five to ten years . The Company
has no awards with market or performance conditiGaesnpensation expense for stock issued underdhg@ny's employee stock purchase
plan is estimated at the beginning date of therioffieperiod using a Black-Scholes option-pricingdalband is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the period of the offering, which is generaity months.

For the years ended December 26, 2010 , Decemb@02% and December 30, 2012 , there was no incratax benefit from stock
options exercised in the periods. The Company dacbcash received from the exercise of stock optaom awards of $1.0 million in 2010,
$1.3 million in 2011 , and $0.0 million in 2012 hd following table shows the amounts recognizetiénConsolidated Financial Statements for
2010, 2011 and 2012 for stock-based compensatipense related to stock options, stock awards@stbtk offered under the Company's
employee stock purchase plan (in millions).

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 26, 201' December 25, 201 December 30, 201.

Cost of revenues $ — $ — $ =
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1.¢ 3.2 6.€
Total cost of employee stock-based compensatidnded in operating income
(loss) from continuing operations, before income ta 1.6 3.3 6.€

Total charged against operations $ 1¢ 3 3 % 6.€
Impact on net income (loss) per common share:

Basic $ 0.11) $ 0.12) % (0.1¢9)

Diluted $ (0.17) $ (0.12) $ (0.1

() Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots for estimated losses resulting from the iitglmf its customers to make
required payments, which results in bad debt ex@pdvianagement periodically determines the adeqaftyis allowance by evaluating the
comprehensive risk profiles of all individual custer receivable balances including, but not limiigdhe customer's financial condition, credit
agency reports, financial statements and overaleotieconomic conditions. Additionally, on certaontracts whereby the Company performs
services for a prime/general contractor, a spetifiercentage of the invoiced trade accounts releivraay be retained by the customer until the
project is completed. The Company periodically eas all retainages for collectability and recortisveances for doubtful accounts when
deemed appropriate, based on its assessmentadgbeiated credit risks. Changes to estimatesnifami value are recorded as adjustments to
revenue and not as a component of the allowanagofantful accounts. Individual accounts receivabke written off to the allowance for
doubtful accounts when the Company becomes awaspécific customer's inability to meet its finahobligation, and all collection efforts
are exhausted.

The following table outlines the balance of the @amy's Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for 2010012 and 2012 . The table
identifies the additional provisions each year af as the write-offs that utilized the allowanae rhillions).
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Balance at
Beginning of Write- Balance at
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Year Provisions offs/Recoveries End of Year
Year ended December 26, 2010 $ 0.8 $ 04 $ 05 $ 0.7
Year ended December 25, 2011 $ 0.7 $ 18 $ (0.5 $ 2.C
Year ended December 30, 2012 $ 2C $ 04 $ 1.0 $ 14

(m) Cash and Cash Equivalent

The Company's cash equivalents consist of its hiligplid investments with an original maturity dfrée months or less when purche
by the Company.

The Company has restricted cash accounts of appately $1.1 million at December 25, 2011 and $515an at December 30, 2012 .
As of December 25, 2011, restricted cash consistsaply of grant funds which must be physicall\gsegated in a separate bank account in
accordance with the grant agreement. As of DeceB®e2012 , restricted cash consists primarily déposit securing foreign letters of credit
related to payment and performance bonds on irtiena contracts acquired with the acquisition ohtposite Engineering, Inc. ("CEI") which
the Company acquired in July 2012.

(n) Property and Equipment, Ne!

Property and equipment, net owned by the Compadgpseciated over the estimated useful lives dfiiddal assets. Costs incurred
computer software developed or obtained for intewisa are capitalized and classified in computerggent. Equipment and facilities acquired
under capital leases are amortized over the shofrtee lease term or the estimated useful lifthefasset. Improvements, which significantly
improve and extend the useful life of an assetcapitalized and depreciated over the shorterefehse period or the estimated useful life.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are ctdaogeperations as incurred.

Assets are depreciated using the straight-line oadethith the following lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements 15 - 39
Machinery and equipment 3-10
Computer equipment and software 1-10
Vehicles, furniture, and office equipment 5
Shorter of useful life or
Leasehold improvements length of lease

(0) Lease:

The Company uses its incremental borrowing ratbérassessment of lease classification as capitgerating and defines the initial
lease term to include renewal options determindzbteeasonably assured. The Company conducts mperatimarily under operating leases.

Most lease agreements for real property contaiarnitices for tenant improvements, rent holidayseot escalation clauses. For
incentives for tenant improvements, the Companytaliges the leasehold improvements which are degied over the shorter of the lease term
or their estimated useful life and records a defierent liability which is amortized over the teofithe lease as a reduction to rent expense. For
rent holidays and rent escalation clauses duriagghise term, the Company records minimum renfameses on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. For purposes of recognizingel@aentives, the Company uses the date of imtiabession as the commencement date, whict
is generally when the Company is given the righaafess to the space and begins to make improveingmteparation for intended use.

(p) Acquisitions

The Company accounts for business combinationg uk&acquisition method of accounting as presdripe=ASB ASC Topic 805,
Business Combination!Topic 805”) . The Company allocates the purchase price of its
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acquisitions to the tangible and intangible assetd,liabilities including certain contingent liitles acquired based upon their estimated fair
values. The excess of purchase price over thosedhies is recorded as goodwill. Acquisition-rethexpenses and restructuring costs are
recognized separately from the business combinatidnare expensed as incurred.

(a) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Ne

In accordance with the provisionsfeASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Offi€opic 350”) , the Company performs
impairment tests for goodwill as of the last daya€h fiscal year, or when evidence of potentigldimment exists. When it is determined that
impairment has occurred, a charge to operatioreci@ded. Goodwill and other purchased intangibtetbalances are included in the
identifiable assets of the business segment tohthiey have been assigned. Any goodwill impairmastyell as the amortization of other
purchased intangible assets, is charged againstspective business segments’ operating income.

In accordance witfiopic 350, the Company classifies intangible assets inteettmategories: (1) intangible assets with finitedi
subject to amortization, (2) intangible assets wittefinite lives not subject to amortization, gB8)l goodwill. The Company tests intangible
assets with finite lives for impairment if condit®exist that indicate the carrying value may rotdroverable. Such conditions may include an
economic downturn in a geographic market or a ceamghe assessment of future operations. The Coymegords an impairment charge when
the carrying value of the finite lived intangiblsset is not recoverable by the cash flows genefededthe use of the asset.

The Company determines the useful lives of idatil® intangible assets after considering the spdeifts and circumstances related to
each intangible asset. Factors considered whemdetag useful lives include the contractual terfraoy agreement, the history of the asset, the
Company's long-term strategy for the use of thetassy laws or other local regulations which cdaoigact the useful life of the asset, and other
economic factors, including competition and spegifiarket conditions. Intangible assets that arengeleto have finite lives are amortized,
generally on a straight-line basis, over their uskfes, ranging from one to 15 years .

() Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assts to Be Disposed Of

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intateglkare reviewed for impairment in accordance WASB ASC Topic 360, Property,
Plant, and Equipmer, whenever events or changes in circumstancesaitedibat the carrying amount of an asset may notdmverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isured by a comparison of the carrying amount obdsets to future net cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest) expected tgéreerated by the asset. If such assets are coedittebe impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by whichahgying amount of the assets exceeds the fair \@ltize assets. Assets to be disposed of are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or¥alue less costs to sell.

(s) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 825, Financial Instrumeméegjuires that fair values be disclosed for the Camyfs financial instruments. The carry
amounts of cash equivalents, accounts receivatteuats payable, accrued expenses, billings inssxafcosts and earnings on uncompleted
contracts, and income taxes payable, approximatedhie due to the short-term nature of theseumsénts. The fair value of the Company's
long-term debt is based upon actual trading agtiVibe fair value of capital lease obligationsssraated based on quoted market prices for the
same or similar obligations with the same remaimiajurities.

® Concentrations and Uncertaintie:

The Company maintains cash balances at variousdiakinstitutions and such balances commonly exX¢kee $250,00thsured amout
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Ttk gany has not experienced any losses in such @iscand management believes that the
Company is not exposed to any significant credk viith respect to such cash and cash equivalents.

Financial instruments, which subject the Compangydiential concentrations of credit risk, consighgpally of the Company's billed
and unbilled accounts receivable. The Company'suatts receivable result from sales to customeisinvihe U.S. Government, state and local
agencies and with commercial customers in varindastries. The Company performs ongoing creditiatains of its commercial customers.
Credit is extended based
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on evaluation of the customer's financial conditoml collateral is not required. Accounts receigabk recorded at the invoiced amount and do
not bear interest. See Note 13 for a discussidgheo€Company's significant customers.

The Company has outstanding 10% Senior SecuredsMatie an aggregate principal amount of $625.0iomlivhich is due on June 1,
2017. The Company pays interest at the rate of A@&&nnum semi-annually, in arrears, on June IDamémber 1 of each year. As of
December 30, 2012 , the principal amount of $62&lon is outstanding under these Notes. In additthe Company has $89.4 million
available under its existing $110.0 million Cregdcility. See Note 5 for a complete descriptiothaf Company's debt.

The Company intends to fund its cash requiremeiitsaash on hand, cash flows from operating adtiviand borrowings under its
existing revolving credit facility. Management leses these sources of liquidity should be sufficienrmeet the Company's cash needs for at
least the next 12 months. The Company's quartedyaanual operating results have fluctuated irptiet and may vary in the future due to a
variety of factors, many of which are externaltgodontrol. If the conditions in its industry deteate, its customers cancel or postpone projects,
its customers experience significant cost condsaia a result of federal budget cuts or sequistrat if the Company is unable to sufficiently
increase its revenues or further reduce its expgetise Company may experience, in the future, mifgignt long-term negative impact to its
financial results and cash flows from operationssuch a situation, the Company could fall outahpliance with its financial and other
covenants which, if not waived, could limit itsdigity and capital resources.

(u) Debt Issuance Cost

Fees paid to obtain debt financing or amendmerdsmsuch debt financing are treated as debt issuaogts and are capitalized and
amortized over the expected term of the related. ddiese payments are shown as a financing activitye Consolidated Statements Of Cash
Flows and are included in other current assetémer assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

v) Interest Expense, Ne

Interest expense, net in the Consolidated Staten@f®perations And Comprehensive Income (Lossiismarized in the following
table (in millions):

2010 2011 2012
Interest expense incurred primarily on the
Company's Senior Notes and previous credit feadliti $ (2249 $ (5129 $ (669
Miscellaneous interest income 0.1 0.1 0.3
Interest expense, net $ (229 $ (51.) $ (66

(W) Foreign Currency Translation

For operations outside the U.S. that prepare fiahstatements in currencies other than the U.Bardoesults of operations and cash
flows are translated at average exchange ratesgitime period, and assets and liabilities are gdlgeranslated at end-of-period exchange rates.
Translation adjustments are included as a sepematponent of accumulated other comprehensive tofei Consolidated Statements Of
Stockholders' Equity.

The Company transacts with foreign customers irecgies other than the U.S. dollar. It experiemeatized and unrealized foreign
currency gains or losses on foreign denominategivables. In addition, certain intercompany tratisas give rise to realized and unrealized
foreign currency gains or losses. Also, any otrardactions between the Company or its subsidiarids third-party, denominated in a
currency different from the functional currencye &oreign currency transactions.

The aggregate foreign currency transaction lodsdiec! in determining net loss for the years endeddinber 25, 2011 and
December 30, 2012 was approximately $0.5 milliod $0.6 million , respectively, which is includeddther income (expense), net on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements Of OperafiodsComprehensive Income (Loss). There was nodareurrency transaction gain or |
included in determining net income for the yearezhBecember 26, 2010.
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(x) Product Warranties

Certain of the Company's products and servicesarered by a warranty to be free from defects iteni and workmanship for
periods ranging from one to ten years . Optiontgmed warranty contracts can also be purchasédhégtrevenue deferred and amortized over
the extended warranty period. The Company accruesianty liability for estimated costs to provigeducts, parts or services to repair or
replace products in satisfaction of warranty olilgzs. Warranty revenues related to extended wiri@ntracts are amortized to income, over
the life of the contract, using the straight-linethod. Costs under extended warranty contractexgensed as incurred.

The Company's estimate of costs to service itsam@yrobligations is based upon historical expergesmud expectations of future
conditions. To the extent that the Company expedsrany changes in warranty claim activity or cassciated with servicing those claims, its
warranty liability is adjusted accordingly.

) Treasury Stock

The Company may on occasion repurchase its comtock en the open market or in private transactivvisen such stock is
repurchased it is not constructively or formallfirel and may be reissued if certain regulatoryiiregnents are met. The purchase price of the
common stock repurchased is charged to additicaietip-capital.

2 Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Other than as described below, no new accountioggemcement issued or effective during the fisealryhas had or is expected to
have a material impact on the Consolidated FindSt&tements.

The FASB has issued Accounting Standards Updat8J'ANo. 2012-02]|ntangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) Testing
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmerithis ASU states that an entity has the opticst fo assess qualitative factors to determine
whether the existence of events and circumstamcksaites that it is more likely than not that thedfinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If,
after assessing the totality of events and circantds, an entity concludes that it is not mordylikean not that the indefinite-lived intangible
asset is impaired, then the entity is not requioetdhike further action. However, if an entity camgs otherwise, then it is required to determine
the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangibleset and perform the quantitative impairment tgstdmparing the fair value with the carrying
amount in accordance witfopic 350.

Under the guidance in this ASU, an entity alsothasoption to bypass the qualitative assessmertrfpiindefiniteived intangible ass
in any period and proceed directly to performing gfuantitative impairment test. An entity will bel@to resume performing the qualitative
assessment in any subsequent period. The adogtibis guidance will result in a change in how @@mpany performs its impairment testing
for indefinite-lived intangible assets. The Compadogs not believe that the adoption of this guidamitl have a material impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011H@ngibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350ASU 2011-08"). ASU 2011-08
is intended to simplify how entities, both publitdanonpublic, test goodwill for impairment. ASU 20@8 permits an entity to first assess
gualitative factors to determine whether it is “mdikely than not” that the fair value of a repogiunit is less than its carrying amount as a basis
for determining whether it is necessary to perftmmtwo-step goodwill impairment test described@apic 350. The more-likely-than-not
threshold is defined as having a likelihood of mitven 50%. ASU 2011-08 is effective for annual amdrim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decenitir2011. Early adoption is permitted, including &nnual and interim goodwill impairment
tests performed as of a date before Septembel019, # an entity's financial statements for thestmecent annual or interim period have not yet
been issued. The adoption of this guidance chahgetthe Company performed its goodwill impairmesgessment; however, it did not have a
material impact on its Consolidated Financial Stegets.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mprehensive Income (Topic 2203SU 2011-05") . ASU 2011-5 revises the
manner in which entities present comprehensiveniecin their financial statements. The guidanceiregientities to report the components of
comprehensive income in either a single, continwbatement or two separate but consecutive statsm@BU 2011-05 is required to be applied
retrospectively. For public entities, the amendmeme effective for fiscal years, and interim pesiavithin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2011 and early adoption is permifibd. Company elected early adoption which did neelamaterial impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-B4ir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.FG#A IFRS(FASU 2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 requires the disclasof quantitative
information about unobservable inputs used in #ilaation processes, and a qualitative discussimmalrthe sensitivity of the measurements.
The guidance in ASU 2011-04 is to be applied prospaly. For public entities, the amendments afeatiive during interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. Early applicakip public entities is not permitted. The provismf the new guidance did not have a
material effect on the Company's Consolidated FirziStatements.

Note 2. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
€)) Goodwill

The Company performs its annual impairment tesgéardwill in accordance witlhopic 350as of the last day of each fiscal year or
when evidence of potential impairment exists.

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment ateperting unit level, which is defined as an oiatasegment or one level below
an operating segment, referred to as a componkatCbmpany determines its reporting units by fitentifying its operating segments, and t
assessing whether any components of these segoomstitute a business for which discrete finanaif@rmation is available and where segn
management regularly reviews the operating resfilisat component. The Company aggregates compemétiitin an operating segment that
have similar economic characteristics. For its ahaad, if necessary, interim impairment assesssnére Company identified its reporting ur
to be its KGS and PSS operating segments.

In order to test for potential impairment, the Camyp estimates the fair value of each of its repgrtinits based on a comparison and
weighting of the income approach, specifically diecounted cash flow method and the market appraduich estimates the fair value of the
Company's reporting units based upon comparablkehprices and recent transactions and also vadae reasonableness of the implied
multiples from the income approach. The Compangneites the fair value of its reporting units t® fiharket capitalization by calculating its
market capitalization based upon an average sfotsk price prior to and subsequent to the dat€tmpany performs its analysis and assuming
a control premium. The Company uses these methgigsido determine the fair value of its reportimgtsifor comparison to their correspond
book values because there are no observable iapaiiable, a Level 3 measurement (See note 1@jelbook value exceeds the estimated fair
value for a reporting unit a potential impairmeniridicated, andopic 350prescribes the approach for determining the impaimtramount, if
any.

As a result of the Company's decision in June 201f#spose of certain non-core businesses acqinrén Integral acquisition in July
2011, the Company allocated $1.5 million of gootitaildiscontinued operations, which resulted irimpairment charge (see Note 9). The
Company then tested the goodwill remaining in tf&S<reporting unit. The fair value of the KGS repuartunit exceeded its carrying value by
7.4% at that time.

During the fourth quarter, the KGS reporting unitsimpacted by continued declining market valuatiand the economic uncertainty
in the U.S. defense industry. If Congress is untbbgree on a budget that conforms with the BuGgettrol Act of 2011 requirements, it calls
for additional substantial defense spending reduostthrough sequestration. Congress and the Pnésioleld not agree on budgetary, tax and
spending issues, and as a result a FY 2013 budgehet passed and a six-month continuing resolthianfunded the U.S. Government through
March 27, 2013 was passed. These events signifjdanteased the likelihood of the sequester odagmwhich has negative consequences for
the defense industry. In addition, as Congresgtaéddministration could not come to an agreemerteoms of a possible national fiscal
approach, they also failed to address other fisedters such as the debt ceiling which is currestlyected to be reached during the first half of
2013. These events negatively impacted the Compastimate of the fair value of the KGS reporting tesulting in the book value of KGS
exceeding its fair value in step one of the impainirtest.

The Company performed the second step of the gdiddvgairment test to measure the amount of thegiinmpent loss, if any, of the
KGS reporting unit. The second step of the tedtireq the allocation of the reporting unit's faifue to its assets and liabilities, including any
unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetitalyais that calculates the implied fair value obdwill as if the reporting unit was being
acquired in a business combination. If the impfagdvalue of goodwill is less than the carryindua the difference is recorded as an
impairment loss. Based on the results of the stepanalysis, the Company recorded an $82.0 mitlioodwill impairment in 2012.
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As of December 30, 2012, the goodwill of the PS& 86 S reporting units were $35.6 million and $56@i8ion , respectively. As of
December 30, 2012 the fair value of the PSS ragprthit substantially exceeded its carrying value.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfer years ended December 25, 2011 and Decemb2038D are as follows (in
millions):

Public
Safety & Kratos Government
Security Solutions Total
Balance as of December 25, 2011 $ 33.C % 539.C $ 572.(
Retrospective adjustments — (0.9 (0.9
Balance as of December 25, 2011 after retrospeatijiestments 33.C 538.¢ 571.¢
Additions due to business combinations 2.€ 104.: 106.¢
Impairments — (82.0) (82.0
Balance as of December 30, 2012 $ 356 § 560.¢ $ 596.

The accumulated impairment losses as of Decemh&@03@ were $247.4 million , of which $229.1 millisvas associated with the
KGS segment and $18.3 million was associated WSS segment.

(b) Purchased Intangible Asset

The following table sets forth information for ade finite-lived intangible assets subject to atization (in millions):

As of December 25, 2011 As of December 30, 2012
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Acquired finite-lived intangible assets
Customer relationships $ 781 $ (19.9) $ 58.2 $ 97.7 % (36.2) % 61.5
Contracts and backlog 60.1 (39.0) 20.k 80.C (64.9) 15.7
Developed technology and technical
know-how 22.1 (4.7 18.C 22.1 (6.4) 15.7
Trade names 2.6 (0.¢) 1.8 6.1 (2.2) 4.¢
Favorable operating lease 1.8 (0.9 1kt 1.8 (0.9 1.4
Total $ 1647 $ (64.60 $ 100.1 $ 207.7 % (108.5) $ 99.2

In addition to the acquired finite-lived intangildssets listed in the table above, the Compan$24$ million and $6.9 million of
indefinite-lived intangible assets consisting afde names at December 25, 2011 and December 3D, 28dpectively. The Company reviews
intangible assets for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that the caygmount of the asset may not be
recoverable. Impairment losses, where identifiegl determined as the excess of the carrying valaetbe estimated fair value of the long-lived
asset. The recoverability of the carrying valuassdets held for use is assessed based on a rdyeejexted undiscounted cash flows. Prior to
conducting step one of the 2012 goodwill impairntest, certain of the long-lived assets were asskfgs recoverability. The Company made
the decision to minimize the use of the CMCI andBHBade names as part of its overall brandingesgsatvhich resulted in a revised fair value
of $6.9 million for such trade names, with a renragruseful life of two years , and an impairmen$a#.6 million in 2012 . The impairment
related to the KGS and PSS reporting units weré filllion and $12.9 million , respectively.

The aggregate amortization expense for finite-livedngible assets was $9.2 million , $38.0 millaord $43.9 million for the years
ended December 26, 2010 , December 25, 2011 , eocdriber 30, 2012 , respectively. The increasetémgible assets in 2011 and 2012 was a
result of the Company's acquisitions (see Note 3).

F-18




Table of Contents

The estimated future amortization expense of aeduirtangible assets with finite lives as of DecenD, 2012 is as follows (in
millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2013 36.2
2014 21.7
2015 14.4
2016 9.7
2017 8.2
Thereafter 9.C
Total $ 99.2

Note 3. Acquisitions
(@ Summary of Recent Acquisitions
Composite Engineering, Inc.

On July 2, 2012, the Company completed the acipnsitf Composite Engineering, Inc. (“CEI") for apgimately $164.2 million . The
purchase price including an adjustment for worldagital and cash to be paid to the shareholdeith&838(h)(10) election includes $135.0
million in cash, and 4.0 million shares of the Camyps common stock, valued at $5.94 per sharelgr2,J2012, or $23.8 million$10.7 millior
of the cash paid was placed into an escrow acasisécurity for CEI's indemnification obligatiorssset forth in the CEI purchase agreement
and will be reduced by $1.0 million to pay the wiagkcapital adjustment owed to the Company in 20%3. In addition, $2.5 million was paid
to retire certain pre-existing CEl debt and sqitke-existing accounts receivable from CEl at itgyéag and fair value of $3.0 million . The
Company plans to make an election under Sectioth33®) of the Internal Revenue Code, which willut in tax deductible goodwill related
this transaction and as a result will pay an esgch&1.7 million in additional tax liability incued by the shareholders of CEl for this election.
The Company estimates that the tax deductible gitloawd intangibles, which is subject to changedohspon the final fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, will be approsteha$ 141.8 million and can be deducted for feeral California state income taxes over a
15 -year period.

In connection with the completion of the CEI trast&an, certain CEI personnel entered into long-temployment agreements with the
Company and on July 2, 2012, the Company grantgdated stock units (“RSUs”) for an aggregateillion shares of common stock as long-
term retention inducement grants to certain em@sy# CEl who have joined Kratos. The RSUs hadstimated value of $11.9 million on the
grant date, vest on the fourth anniversary of thsieg of the CEI acquisition, or earlier upon teeurrence of certain events, and are being
accounted for as compensation expense over suchykar period.

To fund the acquisition of CEI, on May 14, 2012 thompany sold 20.0 million shares of its commaoulsat a purchase price $5.00
per share in an underwritten public offering. Tharany received gross proceeds of approximatel®.$1@illion and net proceeds of
approximately $97.0 millioafter deducting underwriting fees and other offgxpenses. The Company used the net proceedsHimoffering
to fund a portion of the purchase price for theussition of CEI. In addition, the Company used lbavings of $40.0 million from its revolving
line of credit to partially fund the purchase prafeCEI.

CEl is a vertically integrated manufacturer andedeper of unmanned aerial target systems and cdtepstaictures used for national
security programs. Its drones are designed toaaplisome of the most lethal aerial threats fasiadighters and strategic assets. CEl's
customers include U.S. agencies and foreign goventsnCEl is a part of the KGS segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevalihe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eahi the goodwill represents the value the Comppects to be created by enabling it to
strategically expand its strengths in the areakesign, engineering, development, manufacturingesaduction of unmanned aerial targets, and
by enabling the Company to realize significant srealling opportunities.
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The transaction has been accounted for using tpgsatton method of accounting, which requires, amother things, that the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed be recognizeleit fair values as of the acquisition date. THfang table summarizes the preliminary
estimated fair values of the major assets acquainediabilities assumed as of July 2, 2012 (iniomk):

Cash $ 8.¢
Accounts receivable 9.2
Inventoried costs 12.2
Other current assets 8.¢
Property and equipment 8.1
Intangible assets 38.C
Goodwill 104.:

Total assets 189.¢
Current liabilities (25.6)

Net assets acquired $ 164.

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is tadugtible.

As of July 2, 2012, the expected fair value of atits receivable approximated historical cost. Tisg accounts receivable was $9.3
million , none of which is expected to be uncolilelet There was no contingent purchase consideratisociated with the acquisition of CEI.

The amounts of revenue and operating income ofiilded in the Company's Consolidated Stateme@tpafrations And
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year ended mbee 30, 2012 are $68.2 million and $1.6 milliorspectively.

Asset Purchase

On December 30, 2011, the Company acquired selastts of a critical infrastructure security anlic safety system integration
business (the “Critical Infrastructure Businessi) &pproximately $18.8 million which includes adirmgreement on the working capital
adjustment.

The Critical Infrastructure Business designs, eegig, deploys, manages and maintains specialtyityesystems at some of the most
strategic asset and critical infrastructure log®tio the U.S. Additionally, these security systerestypically integrated into command and
control system infrastructure or command centeppréximately 15% of the revenues of the Criticdidstructure Business are recurring in
nature due to the operation, maintenance or susggihof the security systems once deployed. Thic@rinfrastructure Business is part of the
Company's PSS segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevalihe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eahd the goodwill represents the value the Comppects to be created by enabling it to
strategically expand its strengths in the aredsafeland security solutions and will also enabée@ompany to realize significant cross selling
opportunities and increase its sales of higher mafiged price products.

The transaction has been accounted for using tpgsatton method of accounting, which requires, amother things, that the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed be recognizeleit fair values as of the acquisition date. THBf#ang table summarizes the estimated fair
values of the major assets acquired and liabilag&simed (in millions):
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Accounts receivable $ 23.4
Other assets 0.t
Intangible assets 2.C
Goodwill 2.€

Total assets 28.t
Current liabilities (9.7

Net assets acquired $ 18.

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is tagulgible.

As of December 30, 2011, the expected fair valugcobunts receivable approximated historical cst. gross accounts receivable \
$24.4 million , of which approximately $1.0 millias not expected to be collectible.

Due to the integration of the Critical InfrastrueuBusiness with our existing PSS business it gattical to estimate the amounts of
revenue and operating income (loss) included irCtbimpany’'s Consolidated Statement of Operations@ordprehensive Income (Loss) for the
year ended December 30, 20

Securelnfo Corporation

On November 15, 2011, the Company acquired Sedor€orporation (“Securelnfo”) for $20.3 million wash, which included a $1.5
million earn-out that was paid in March 2012. Upompletion of the Securelnfo transaction, the Camypieposited $1.8 million of the
purchase price into an escrow account as secoritgdcurelnfo’'s indemnification obligations asfeeh in the Securelnfo purchase agreement.
In addition, the Securelnfo purchase agreementigeedvthat the purchase price would be (i) increased dollar for dollar basis if the working
capital on the closing date (as defined in the Bdnfo purchase agreement) exceeded $2.2 milliqi)atecreased on a dollar for dollar basis if
the working capital was less than $2.2 million eT™ecurelnfo working capital was $2.1 million , ahel Company and Securelnfo agreed to a
working capital adjustment of $0.1 million .

Based in northern Virginia, Securelnfo is a cybeusity company specializing in assisting defenselligence, civilian government
and commercial customers to identify, understanduthent, manage, mitigate and protect against sgbaerity risks while reducing informatis
security costs and achieving compliance with ajpplie regulations, standards and guidance. Secareffdrs strategic advisory, operational
cybersecurity and cybersecurity risk managemenicEs and is a recognized leader in the rapidiyvévg fields of cloud security, continuous
monitoring and cybersecurity training. Customerdude the Department of Defense, the DepartmeHoofieland Security and large
commercial customers, including market leading dloamputing service providers. Securelnfo is pathe KGS segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevalihe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eahd the goodwill represents the value the Comppects to be created by Securelnfo's
nationally recognized expertise in operational cgbeurity, cybersecurity risk management and cygwenrdty training programs.

The Securelnfo transaction has been accountediiog the acquisition method of accounting, whidjuiees, among other things, that
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed bgnéoed at their fair values as of the acquisitiated The following table summarizes the
estimated fair values of the major assets acqainediabilities assumed (in millions):

Cash $ 14
Other assets 3.C
Property and equipment 0.1
Intangible assets 4.t
Goodwill 12.2

Total assets 21.2
Current liabilities (0.9

Net assets acquired $ 20.2

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is netdaductible.
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As of November 15, 2011, the expected fair valuaoobunts receivable approximated historical cldst. gross accounts receivable
$2.9 million , none of which is expected to be Ukemmible.

The amounts of revenue and operating income ofr8bdo included in the Company's Consolidated $tate of Operations And
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ende@mber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 were $1.Bmdhd $0.1 million , and $16.1
million and $0.6 million , respectively.

Integral Systems, Inc.

On July 27, 2011, the Company acquired Integrate®ys, Inc. (“Integral”) in a cash and stock tramisacvalued at $241.1 million .
Upon completion of the acquisition, the Companyl@ai aggregate of $131.4 million in cash, issugt@gmately 10.4 million shares of the
Company's common stock valued at $108.7 millioniasded replacement stock options with a fair valu®1.0 million .

To fund the cash portion of the acquisition, oryRM, 2011, the Company issued $115.0 million aggapes principal amount of 10%
Senior Secured Notes due 2017 (the “Notes”). ThiedNwere issued at a premium of 105% for an effedtiterest rate of approximately 8.9% .
The gross proceeds of approximately $120.8 milliaich includes an approximate $5.8 million issteapremium and excludes accrued
interest received of $1.8 million , were used tmafice, in part, the cash portion of the purchaise for the acquisition of Integral, to refinance
existing indebtedness of Integral and its subsigsato pay certain severance payments in conmegiithh the acquisition and to pay related fees
and expenses. See Note 5 for a complete descriptithe Company's debt.

As consideration for the acquisition of Integralclk Integral stockholder received (i) $5.00 inhcawithout interest, and (ii) 0.588
shares of the Company's common stock for each stidméegral common stock. In addition, upon cortiple of the acquisition (i) each
outstanding Integral stock option with an exergigee less than $13.00 per share was, if the holdegeof had so elected in writing, canceled in
exchange for an amount in cash equal to the prazfube total number of shares of Integral comntoclssubject to such in-the-money option,
multiplied by the aggregate value of the excesanyf, of $13.00 over the exercise price per shapéaable to such option, less the amount of
any tax withholding, (ii) each outstanding Integgtidck option with an exercise price equal to eater than $13.00 per share and each Integral
in-the-money option the holder of which had not m#tk election described in (i) above was convértedan option to purchase Company
common stock, with the number of shares subjestith option adjusted to equal the number of shafregegral common stock subject to such
out-of-the-money option multiplied by 0.9559 , rded up to the nearest whole share, and the pex slRarcise price under each such option
adjusted by dividing the per share exercise pri#ieable to such option by 0.9559 , rounded uthénearest whole cent, and (iii) each
outstanding share of restricted stock granted uadéntegral equity plan or otherwise, whether egsir unvested, was canceled and converted
into the right to receive $13.00, less the amaidiginy tax withholding.

Integral is a global provider of products, systemd services for satellite command and contraéntekry and digital signal processing,
data communications, enterprise network managearghtommunications information assurance. Intespatializes in developing, managing
and operating secure communications networks, $attlite and terrestrial, as well as systems amndces to detect, characterize and geolocate
sources of radio frequency or RF interferenceedrdl’s customers include U.S. and foreign comnagrgovernment, military and intelligence
organizations. For almost 30 years, customers rediezl on Integral to design and deliver innovatdommercial-based products, solutions and
services that are cost-effective and reduce dgliselnedules and risk. Integral is part of the CamjgaKGS segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevafuhe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eadif the goodwill represents the value the Compapects to be created by Integral's
significant expertise with satellite operationggrd systems, signal processing and other aresegalfite command and control, as well as
advanced technologies for Unmanned Aerial Vehidigsational awareness, remote management and oumestablished electronic attack and
electronic warfare platforms, tactical missile syss, and strategic deterrence systems. The Integnalaction has been accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting which requirespagother things, that the assets acquired antiitiedassumed be recognized at their fair
values as of the merger date. The following tabharsarizes the fair values of the major assets esdjaind liabilities assumed as of July 27,
2011 (in millions):
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Cash $ 6.8
Accounts receivable 68.4
Inventoried costs 15.¢
Deferred tax assets 36.4
Other assets 3L
Property and equipment 12.¢
Intangible assets 32.C
Goodwill 187.¢

Total assets 363.€
Current liabilities (84.5)
Deferred tax liabilities (29.5
Long-term liabilities (18.5)

Net assets acquired $ 241.1

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is netdaductible.

As of July 27, 2011, the expected fair value ofoarts receivable approximated the historical chs& gross accounts receivable was
$68.6 million , of which $0.2 million is not expectto be collectible. There was no contingent pasetconsideration associated with the
acquisition of Integral.

The amounts of revenue and operating income oftaténcluded in the Company’s Consolidated Statgmef Operations And
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ende@mber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 were $87li@meind $7.1 million , and $204.2
million and $10.8 million , respectively.

Herley Industries, Inc.

On March 25, 2011, the Company acquired approxima&2 million shares of Herley Industries, IntHérley") common stock,
representing approximately 948bthe total outstanding shares of Herley commonistin a tender offer to purchase all of the @urtding share
of Herley common stock. The fair value of the namicolling interest related to Herley as of Maréh 2011 was $16.9 million , which
represents the market trading price of $19.00 Iparesmultiplied by approximately 0.9 million shathat were not tendered as of March 25,
2011. On March 30, 2011, following the purchasthefnon-controlling interest in a subsequent dfigperiod, Herley became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The shares of Herleymomstock were purchased at a price of $19.00hmesAccordingly, the Company paid
approximately $245.5 million in cash consideratienof March 27, 2011, and as of April 15, 2011Gepany had paid aggregate cash
consideration of $270.7 million for the shares efldy common stock and certain in-the-money optiaméch were exercised upon the change
in control. In addition, upon completion of the safuent short-form merger, all unexercised optiormirchase Herley common stock were
assumed by the Company and converted into opt@parchase Kratos common stock, entitling the hsltlgereof to receive 1.3495 shares of
Kratos common stock for each share of Herley comatock underlying the options (“Herley Options"h& Company assumed each Herley
Option in accordance with the terms (as in effsabfethe date of the Herley Merger Agreement) efapplicable Herley equity plan and the
option agreement pursuant to which such Herleyddptias granted. The Herley Options are exercidablen aggregate of approximately 0.8
million shares of the Company’s common stock. Adlrldy Options were fully vested upon the changeoimirol, and the fair value of the Herley
Options assumed was $1.9 million . The total aggegonsideration for the purchase of Herley w2 million , including the assumed
Herley Options. In addition, the Company assuntethge in control obligations of $4.0 million reldt® the transaction and incurred combined
transaction expenses of $11.1 million .

To fund the acquisition of Herley, on February 2011, Kratos sold approximately 4.9 million shaséis common stock at a purchase
price of $13.25 per share in an underwritten pubfiering. Kratos received gross proceeds of apprately $64.8 million and net proceeds of
approximately $61.1 milliomafter deducting underwriting fees and other offgéxpenses. Kratos used the net proceeds frorofeisng to func
a portion of the purchase price for the acquisitibhrlerley. To fund the remaining purchase pricegtlis issued $285.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of Notes at a premium of 107% tigtoits wholly owned subsidiary, Acquisition Co.nza Parent ("Lanza"), on March 25,
2011, in an unregistered offering pursuant to RdiA and Regulation S under the Securities Actd#31 as amended. On April 4, 2011, after
the acquisition of Herley was complete, Lanza wasgad with and into Kratos and all assets andliiegsi of Lanza became assets and liabili
of Kratos. See Note 5 for a complete descriptiothefCompany’s debt.
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Herley is a leading provider of microwave techn@dsgor use in command and control systems, fiigstrumentation, weapons
sensors, radar, communication systems, electromitave and electronic attack systems. Herley hagddhe defense industry for approxima
45 years by designing and manufacturing microwasxeces for use in high-technology defense electapplications. It has established
relationships, experience and expertise in theianjlielectronics, electronic warfare and electratiack industry. Herley’s products represent
key components in the national security effortthefU.S., as they are employed in mission-critdettronic warfare, electronic attack,
electronic warfare threat and radar simulation, ma@amd and control network, and cyber warfare/cybeusty applications. Herley is part of the
KGS segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevalihe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eadii the goodwill represents the value the Compamects to be created by Herley’'s
significant expertise in numerous established edaat attack and electronic warfare platforms,itattmissile systems, and strategic deterrence
systems, which complement the Company’s existirginass in manned and unmanned aircraft, missitersygsand certain other programs.

The Herley transaction has been accounted for ubmgcquisition method of accounting, which reggiimmong other things, that the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recedmiztheir fair values as of the merger date.folhewing table summarizes the fair values of
the major assets acquired and liabilities assuineahi{lions):

Cash $ 21.€
Accounts receivable 39.1
Inventoried costs 42.¢
Deferred tax assets 17.2
Other assets 7.2
Property and equipment 34.2
Intangible assets 37.C
Goodwill 146.¢

Total assets 345.¢
Current liabilities (40.¢)
Deferred tax liabilities (16.9)
Debt (9.5
Long-term liabilities (6.2

Net assets acquired $ 272.

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is netdaductible.

As of March 25, 2011, the expected fair value @oamts receivable approximated the historical chisg. gross accounts receivable \
$39.3 million , of which $0.2 million is not expectto be collectible. There were no contingentliiéds associated with the acquisition of
Herley. The Company initially recorded $47.9 mifliof inventory and $30.4 million in property ancugagment. The Company decreased the
value of acquired inventory to $42.8 million andriased the value of acquired property and equiptoe$84.2 million based on the final
valuations.

The amounts of revenue and operating income ofeianicluded in the Company’s Consolidated StatemehOperations And
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ende@mber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 were $150i8mand $12.7 million , and
$196.5 million and $31.4 million , respectively.

In accordance with Topic 805, the allocation of piechase price for the Company’s acquisition of SEubject to adjustment during
the measurement period after the closing date \additional information on asset and liability vaioas becomes available. The above
estimated fair values of assets acquired and iligsilassumed are provisional and are based anftivenation that was available as of the
acquisition date to estimate the fair value of ssaequired and liabilities assumed. Measuremamgadjustments reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that exéstexd the acquisition date. The Company belielvasguch information provides a reasonable
basis for estimating the fair values of assets iseduand liabilities assumed, but the Company igimgfor additional information necessary to
finalize those fair values. The Company has nalifted its valuation of certain assets and liabgirecorded in connection with this transaction,
including contingent liabilities and deferred tax€bus, the provisional measurements recordedulnjed to change. Any
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changes will be recorded as adjustments to the/éttre of those assets and liabilities, and resigomunts will be allocated to goodwill. The
final valuation adjustments may also require adjiestt to the Consolidated Statements of Operatiorts@omprehensive Income (Loss).

The following tables summarize the fair value @ndfiable intangible assets acquired for the Caitinfrastructure Business and CEl
transactions and the weighted average amortizagoind of each class of intangible (in millions):

Estimated
Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period
Critical Infrastructure Business Gross Value (in years)
Customer relationships $ 1.1 1.3
Funded backlog 0.9 1
Total $ 2.C 1.2
Estimated
Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period
CEl Gross Value (in years)
Trade name $ 0.5 6
Customer relationships 18.t 5.5
Funded backlog 19.C 15
Total $ 38.C 35

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following tables summarize the supplementaldeosed Consolidated Statements of Operations iaftwmon an unaudited pro
forma basis as if the acquisitions of CEl, thei€aitInfrastructure Business, Securelnfo, Integaalj Herley occurred on December 27, 201C
include adjustments that were directly attributabléhe foregoing transactions or were not expetddthve a continuing impact on the Comp
All acquisitions were included in the results okagtions for the full year ended December 30, 262 ept CEl. There are no material,
nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly atti@nle to the business combinations included ireperted pro forma revenue and operations
for 2011 and 2012. The pro forma results are fastitative purposes only for the applicable peaod do not purport to be indicative of the
actual results that would have occurred had theséretions been completed as of the beginning gb¢hied, nor are they indicative of results of
operations that may occur in the future (all amsuexcept per share amounts are in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 25, December 30,
2011 2012
Pro forma revenues $ 1,046.¢ $ 1,019.!
Pro forma net loss before tax (63.€) (132.0
Pro forma net loss (67.1) (130.9
Net loss attributable to the registrant (23.5) (112.9
Basic and diluted pro forma loss per share $ (1.1 $ (2.3))

The pro forma financial information reflects acdqios related expenses incurred, pro forma adjustsr the additional amortization
associated with finite-lived intangible assets awglj additional incremental interest expense, edefinancing costs related to the financing
undertaken for the Integral and Herley transactithies change in stock compensation expense aslaoéthe exercise of stock options and
restricted stock immediately prior to closing oé timtegral and Herley transactions, stock compe@nrsatlated to the RSUs granted in the CEI
transaction, and the related tax expense. The teglgiverage common shares also reflect the isswddc® million shares in February 2011 for
the Herley acquisitions and 10.4 million shareduity 2011 for the Integral acquisition.
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These adjustments are as follows (in millions ekpep share data):

Year Ended
Year Ended December 30,
December 25, 2011 2012

Intangible amortization $ 328 % 16.2
Net change in stock compensation expense (1.9 2.2
Net change in interest expense (9.9) —
Net change in income tax benefit (expense) (1.€) —
Increase in weighted average common shares ouiis¢pfou
shares issued and not already included in the wedggverage
common shares outstanding 30.7 9.€

Contingent Acquisition Consideration

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Comphas agreed to make additional future paymentsetgeller contingent upon
achievement of specific performance-based milestbyehe acquired entities. Pursuant to the prongsdfTopic 805the Company will re-
measure these liabilities each reporting periodrandrd changes in the fair value in its Consoidébtatement of Operations And
Comprehensive Income (Loss). Increases or decr@agles fair value of the contingent consideratiability which is measured as the present
value of expected future cash flows, a Level 3 @lé&hierarchy as defined BVSC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Discéssu
(“Topic 820" )) measurement in the fair value hierarchy, can résuit changes in discount periods and rates, dsasahanges in the estima
on the achievement of the performance-based milesto

Contingent acquisition consideration as of Decen2Be2011 and December 30, 2012 is summarizeceifotlowing table (in
millions):

Securelnfo DEI SCT Total

Balance as of December 26, 2010 $ — 3 4€ $ 12 $ 5.€

Fair value of contingent acquisition consideration

assumed in acquisitions 1t — — 1t

Post acquisition adjustments reflected in operatisglts — 0.4 (0.2) 0.2
Balance as of December 25, 2011 1.t 5.C 1.1 7.€

Cash payments (2.5 (2.5) — 4.0)

Post acquisition adjustments reflected in operatasglts — (0.9 (1.7 (1.5)
Balance as of December 30, 2012 $ — $ 21 % — $ 2

As of December 30, 2012 , $2.1 million is reflectedther current liabilities in the Consolidatedl&nce Sheet.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement and plareajer with DEI Services Corporation entered imcdoigust 9, 2010 (“the DEI
Agreement”), upon achievement of certain cash ptsgievenue, EBITDA and backlog amounts in 2000,12and 2012, the Company will be
obligated to pay certain additional contingent édesation (the “DEI Contingent Consideration”). TBempany has paid $2.9 million related to
the DEI Contingent Consideration, of which $2.5limil was paid in April 2012. As of December 30, 2Qthe undiscounted amount of future
DEI Contingent Consideration that is payable by@oeenpany under the DEI Agreement is $2.1 milliorichtwill be paid in the second quarter
of 2013.

On December 7, 2010, the Company acquired SoutkBideainer & Trailer, LLC (“SCT”"). Pursuant to tkerms of the SCT
Agreement, upon achievement of certain earningsreefiterest, taxes, depreciation, and amortizgtieBITDA") amounts in 2011, 2012 and
2013, the Company will pay the former stockhold#rSCT certain additional performance-based comatite (“SCT Contingent
Consideration”). The potential undiscounted amadiratl future SCT Contingent Consideration that rbaypayable by the Company under the
SCT Agreement is between zero and $3.5 million .
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As of December 25, 2011, the fair value of the S&htingent Consideration was $1.1 million and watsweated by applying the
income approach, which is based on significanttisghat are not observable in the market, whichic 820refers to as Level 3 inputs. Key
assumptions include a discount rate of 6.1% , &etgrarticipant cost of debt at the date of actjaisi and probability-adjusted levels for
EBITDA. The fair value of the SCT Contingent Coresiation was decreased by $1.1 million to zero acdgnized as a credit to merger and
acquisition related items during the three monttiogeended December 30, 2012.

Note 4. Balance Sheet Details
The detail of certain assets in the Consolidatddrig® Sheets consists of the following (in millipns

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company's cash equivalents consist of overmiggth sweep accounts that are invested on a dlg.lilhe cash and cash
equivalents at December 25, 2011 and Decembet03@, ®ere as follows:

December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012
Amortized Level 1 Fair Amortized Level 1 Fair
Cost Basis Value Basis Cost Basis Value Basis
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69.6¢ $ 69.6 $ 49.C % 49.C

Net unrealized and realized gains recorded duhirg/éars ended December 25, 2011 and DecembedBD wre immaterial.

Accounts receivable, n

Receivables including amounts due under long-terntracts are summarized as follows:

December 25,2011 December 30, 2012

Billed, current $ 128.7 $ 137.¢
Unbilled, current 118.¢ 135.¢
Total current accounts receivable 2473 273.3
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2.0 (1.4)
Total current accounts receivable, net 245.¢ 271.¢
Unbilled, long-term (included in other assets) 0.2 0.2
Total accounts receivable, net $ 2456 $ 272.2

Unbilled receivables represent the balance of rexatle costs and accrued profit, comprised pritigipé revenue recognized on
contracts for which billings have not been presgmbethe customer because the amounts were eamedtcontractually billable as of the
balance sheet date. Retainages receivable werarfilBcdh as of December 25, 2011 and $3.5 millismoédDecember 30, 2012 and are included
in accounts receivable, net in the ConsolidateduBzd Sheets.

U.S. Government contract receivables (includedcicoants receivable, net)

December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012

Billed $ 41z % 24.¢€
Unbilled 43.c 39.4
$ 84t $ 64.C

Total U.S. Government contract receivables

F- 27




Table of Contents

Inventoried costs, net of progress paym:

December 25, December 30,
2011 2012

Raw materials $ 43 % 48.¢

Work in process 2570 36.5

Finished goods 6.¢ 78

Supplies and other 4.C 2.2

Subtotal inventoried costs 79.¢ 94.£

Less customer advances and progress payments (3.9 0.

Total inventoried costs $ 766 $ 94.:

Property and equipment, net
December 25, December 30,
2011 2012

Land and buildings $ 20.€ $ 20.¢
Computer equipment and software 17.¢ 17.2
Machinery and equipment 37.t 49.¢
Furniture and office equipment 8.2 12.2
Facility under capital lease 1.C 1.€
Leasehold improvements 8.2 13.3
Construction in progress 1.7 5.8
Property and equipment 95.1 120.¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (22.€) (35.2)
Total property and equipment, net $ 728§ 85.¢

Depreciation expense was $3.7 million , $10.0 onilland $14.1 million for the years ended DecembeR@10 , December 25, 2011 ,
and December 30, 2012 , respectively.

Note 5. Debt
(@) Issuance of 10%Senior Secured Notes due 20

On May 19, 2010 the Company entered into an indenture with trerantors set forth therein and Wilmington Trust F&8trustee ar
collateral agent (as amended or supplemented tigefiture”), to issue the Notes. As of Decembe2BQ? , the Company had issued Notes in
the aggregate principal amount of $625.0 milliodemthe Indenture, of which $225.0 million werauss on May 19, 2010, $285.0 million were
issued on March 25, 2011 at a $20.0 million premamd an effective interest rate of 8.5% , and ¥l tfllion were issued on July 27, 2011 at a
$5.8 million premium and an effective interest rat@.9% . These Notes have been used to fund sitiqus and for general corporate purposes.
The holders of the Notes have a first priority l@msubstantially all of the Company's assets ha@gssets of the guarantors, except with respect
to accounts receivable, inventory, deposit accoweisurities accounts, cash, securities and geinéaagibles (other than intellectual property),
on which the holders of the Notes have a secomdifyriien to the $110.0 million credit facility deribed below.

The Company pays interest on the Notes samuially, in arrears, on June 1 and December aa¥f gear. The Notes include custom
covenants and events of default as well as a ciolasetl fixed charge ratio of 2 : 1 for the incucermf additional indebtedness. Negative
covenants include, among other things, limitationsdditional debt, liens, negative pledges, imaests, dividends, stock repurchases, asset
sales and affiliate transactions. Events of defaaltde, among other events, non-performance eémmants, breach of representations, cross-
default to other material debt, bankruptcy, insntwe material judgments and changes in controbff3ecember 30, 201,2he Company was
compliance with the covenants contained in therihde governing the Notes.
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On or after June 1, 2014 , the Company may redeeme ®r all of the Notes at 105% of the aggregateipal amount of such notes
through June 1, 2015, 102.5% of the aggregateipahamount of such notes through June 1, 2016180686 of the aggregate principal amount
of such notes thereafter, plus accrued and unptadeist to the date of redemption. Prior to Jur2013, the Company may redeem up to 35% of
the aggregate principal amount of the Notes at 1&D#te aggregate principal amount of the Noteass plccrued and unpaid interest to the date
of redemption, with the net cash proceeds of aedguity offerings. In addition, the Company mayitaoption, redeem some or all of the Nc
at any time prior to June 1, 2014 by paying a “makele” premium, plus accrued and unpaid inteiiésny, to the date of redemption. The
Company may also purchase outstanding Notes trawaléte open market at any time.

The Notes were issued in three offerings.
$225 million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, Ma$0

On May 19, 2010 , the Company issued Notes in ggeegyate principal amount of $225.0 millionan unregistered offering pursuan
Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities @ud on August 11, 2010, the Company completezkahange offer for such Notes
pursuant to a registration rights agreement ent@tedn connection with the issuance thereof. preceeds were primarily used to finance the
acquisitions of Gichner Holdings, Inc., DEI Sengdggorporation, and Southside Container & Trail&xClLas well as to refinance the Company's
existing debt. (See Note 3.)

$285 million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, Ma2011

On March 25, 2011, the Company issued Notes imggeegate principal amount of $285.0 million inummegistered offering pursuant
to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securteisand received approximately $314.0 million irslegoroceeds from the offering, which
includes an approximate $20.0 million of issuaneapums and $9.0 million of accrued interest, wipcbceeds were used, together with cash
contributions of $45.0 million from the Company filmance the acquisition of all of the outstand@igres of common stock of Herley (see
Note 3), to pay related fees and expenses ancefargl corporate purposes. The effective inteegston this issuance w8.5% . On July 29,
2011, the Company completed an exchange offehfse Notes pursuant to a registration rights ageeeantered into in connection with this
issuance.

$115 million 10% Senior Secured Note Offering, Adlg1

On July 27, 2011, the Company issued Notes indlgeegate principal amount of $115.0 million in amegistered offering pursuant to
Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securitiesafdtreceived approximately $122.5 million in cpsbceeds from the issuance of the Notes,
which includes an approximate $5.8 million of isstepremiums and $1.7 million of accrued interésese proceeds were used to finance, in
part, the cash portion of the purchase price ferattguisition of Integral (see Note 3), to refirmpgisting indebtedness of Integral, to make
certain severance payments in connection with ¢heiaition of Integral and to pay related fees axpenses. The effective interest rate on this
issuance was 8.9% . On December 2, 2011, the Conguanpleted an exchange offer for these Notes puntdo a registration rights agreement
entered into in connection with this issuance.

(b) Other Indebtednes:
$110.0 Million Credit Facility

On July 27, 2011, the Company entered into a ceettlitsecurity agreement with KeyBank National Aggam (“KeyBank”), as lead
arranger, sole book runner and administrative agent East West Bank and Bank of the West, astigers (the “2011 Credit Agreement”).
The 2011 Credit Agreement amends and restates @émfirety the credit and security agreement, daseaf May 19, 2010, by and among the
Company, KeyBank and the lenders named thereiar(@nded). The 2011 Credit Agreement establishae ayfear senior secured revolving
credit facility in the amount of $65.0 million (asmended and described below, the “Amended RevqlvEine Amended Revolver is secured by
a lien on substantially all of the Company's asartkthe assets of the guarantors thereunder csuibjeertain exceptions and permitted liens.
The Amended Revolver has a first priority lien @e@unts receivable, inventory, deposit accountsjrities accounts, cash, securities and
general intangibles (other than intellectual proge©On all other assets, the Amended Revolverahsecond priority lien junior to the lien
securing the Notes.

Borrowings under the Amended Revolver are subfenotandatory prepayment upon the occurrence ofinexteents, including the
issuance of certain securities, the incurrenceedf debt and the sale or other disposition ghgeassets. The Amended Revolver includes
customary affirmative and negative covenants arttsvof default, as well as a financial
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covenant relating to a minimum fixed charge covenadio of 1.25 . Negative covenants include, amathgr things, limitations on additional
debt, liens, negative pledges, investments, divddestock repurchases, asset sales and affilateactions. Events of default include, among
other events, non-performance of covenants, brebidpresentations, cross-default to other matdeht, bankruptcy and insolvency, material
judgments and changes in cont

On November 14, 2011, the Company entered intcsedimendment (the “First Amendment”) to the 201&d Agreement. Among
other things, the First Amendment: (i) increasedamount of the Amended Revolver from $65.0 milliei$90.0 million ; (ii) added to and
modified the definitions of certain terms contaimedhe 2011 Credit Agreement; (iii) added PNC Bax&tional Association as a lender under
the 2011 Credit Agreement; and (iv) updated cegalredules to the 2011 Credit Agreement.

On May 4, 2012, the Company entered into a seaomehdment (the “Second Amendment”) to the 2011 iCAgpteement. Among
other things, the Second Amendment (i) increasedthount of the Amended Revolver from $90.0 milier$110.0 million ; (ii) added to and
modified the definitions of certain terms contaimedhe 2011 Credit Agreement; (iii) added CathanBas a lender under the 2011 Credit
Agreement; (iv) increased the maximum availableeidorrowed under the 2011 Credit Agreement to 18#llion subject to KeyBank's
approval; and (v) updated certain schedules t&tieeit Agreement.

On May 8, 2012, the Company entered into a thirdradment (the “Third Amendment”) to the 2011 Crédjteement. Under the terms
of the Third Amendment, the definitions of certiénms of the 2011 Credit Agreement were modified #ue acquisition of CEl was approved.
The Company used the net proceeds from the s&@.0fmillion shares of its common stock, togethighwhe borrowings under its credit
facility, to fund the purchase of CEIl on July 2,12Gand to pay related fees and expenses.

The amounts of borrowings that may be made undeAthended Revolver are based on a borrowing basaracomprised of
specified percentages of eligible receivablesjldbgunbilled receivables and eligible inventorfythe amount of borrowings outstanding under
the Amended Revolver exceeds the borrowing baseitheffect, the Company is required to repay sumtowings in an amount sufficient to
eliminate such excess. The Amended Revolver insl$3€.0 million of availability for letters of crigdnd $10.0 milliorof availability for swing
line loans.

The Company may borrow funds under the Amended Rewat a rate based either on LIBOR or a baseestblished by KeyBank.
Base rate borrowings bear interest at an applicablgin of 1.00% to 1.75% over the base rate (whitlbe the greater of the prime rate or
0.5% over the federal funds rate , with a flood.df% over one month LIBOR ). LIBORte borrowings will bear interest at an applicabbergin
of 3.00% to 3.75% over the LIBOR rate. The applieabargin for base rate borrowings and LIBOR boimnms will depend on the average
monthly revolving credit availability. The Amend&gvolver also has a commitment fee of 0.50% to%.78epending on the average monthly
revolving credit availability. As of December 3@12 , there were no outstanding borrowings on time#ded Revolver and $15.7 million was
outstanding on letters of credit resulting in netrbwing base availability of $89.4 million . Th@@pany was in compliance with the financial
covenants as of December 30, 2012 .

Debt Acquired in Acquisition of Herley

The Company assumed a $ 10.0 million 10 -year team with a bank in Israel that Herley entered imoSeptember 16, 2008 in
connection with the acquisition of Herley. The Io@a as of December 30, 2012 was $5.7 million ,thadoan is payable in quarterly
installments of $0.3 million plus interest at LIB@Ris a margin of 1.5% . The loan agreement costedmious covenants, including a minimum
net equity covenant as defined in the loan agreeriiée Company was in compliance with all covengaatsof December 30, 2012 .

Fair Value of Long-term Debt

Carrying amounts and the related estimated fairesbf the Company’s long-term debt financial instents not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis at December 25, 2011 and Dmee8®, 2012 are presented in the following table:

As of December 25, 2011 As of December 30, 2012
Carrying Carrying
$ in millions Principal Amount Fair Value Principal Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt $ 631.¢ $ 654.¢ $ 642.7 $ 630.7 $ 649.¢ $ 690.5
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The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt Wwased upon actual trading activity (Level 1, Obable inputs —quoted prices in
active markets) and is the estimated amount thepaagnwould have to pay to repurchase its debtudich any premium or discount
attributable to the difference between the statésfést rate and market value of interest at thenba sheet date.

The net unamortized debt premium of $18.7 millisrodDecember 30, 2012 , which is the differendgvben the carrying amount of
$649.4 million and the principal amount of $630.iflion represented in the previous table, is beangprtized to interest expense over the terms
of the related debt.

Future maturities of long-term debt for each ofybkars ending 2013 through 2016 are $1.0 millianyear and $626.0 million in 2017.
Note 6. Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipmedér operating and capital leases having termpsieg at various dates through

2022. Future minimum lease payments under capithbperating leases as of December 30, 2012 , vduiek not include $10.1 million in
sublease income on the Company's operating leaseas follows (in millions):

Net Operating

Year Capital Leases Leases
2013 $ 0. $ 18.2
2014 0.4 18.¢
2015 0.1 16.2
2016 — 14.1
2017 — 13.C
Thereafter — 23.c
Total future minimum lease payments 1.1 $ 103.¢
Less amount representing interest 0.z

Present value of capital lease obligations 0.€

Less current portion 0.t

Long-term capital lease obligations $ 04

The following is an analysis of the leased propartgier capital leases by major class (in millions):

December 25, December 30,
2011 2012

Classes of Property
Facilities $ 1.C $ 1.€
Vehicles 0.€ 0.t
Office equipment 0.7 0.€
Total 2.3 2.7
Less: Accumulated amortization 1.C 1.kt
$ 1.2 $ 1.2

Amortization expense related to capital leases$@a3 million , $0.1 million and $0.1 million for ¢hyears ended December 26, 2010,
December 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 , resphctiv

Gross rent expense under operating leases foretirs ynded December 26, 2010 , December 25, 20fdlDecember 30, 2012 was
$6.8 million , $12.8 million , and $21.1 milliomespectively. Total sublease income for the yeaded December 26, 2010 , December 25,
2011, and December 30, 2012 , totaling $0.2 milli1.3 million , and $2.7 million , respectivehas been netted against rent expense.

Based on management's assessment of assumpti®ideromg existing market conditions, sublease teatas and recoverability of
operating lease expenses for the Company's vamgpenies and due to the Company's actions to ¢idase
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facilities, the Company periodically reevaluatssatcrual for excess facilities. In 2011, as altesuhe Integral acquisition, the Company
acquired 131,450 rentable square feet of propedgtéd in Maryland with a lease term through APBIRO. Prior to the acquisition, Integral had
vacated the majority of this space and subleaspaimately 83,000 square feet for an initial temmich commenced on October 1, 2010 and
ends on October 31, 2015. The Company recordexbditly at fair value of $19.0 million at the merg#ate related to this excess facility.

The Company's accrual for excess facilities was $tllion , $18.5 million , and $18.7 million as Blecember 26, 2010 , December 25,
2011 and December 30, 2012 , respectively. The @agpstimates that the remaining accrual will bd gaough 2020.

The accrual for excess facilities is as followsttiilions):

Excess Facilities

Balance as of December 26, 2010 $ 0.1
Fair value of liability assumed in acquisition 19.C
Cash payments (0.€)
Balance as of December 25, 2011 18.5
Adjustments 1.8
Cash payments (1.6
Balance as of December 30, 2012 $ 18.7

The lease on certain office facilities includesestiled base rent increases over the term of tse.|§4e total amount of the base rent
payments is being charged to expense on the sti@ghmethod over the term of the lease. In addito the base rent payment, the Company
pays a monthly allocation of the building's opergtexpenses. The Company has recorded deferrednentied in accrued expenses and other
long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balandee8ts, of $1.2 million , $1.0 million , and $1.3loh at December 26, 2010 , December 25,
2011 and December 30, 2012 , respectively, toaefte excess of rent expense over cash paymewts isiception of the respective leases.

Note 7. Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The Company calculates net income (loss) per sharecordance witkASB ASC Topic 26(Earnings per Share (“Topic 260”).
UnderTopic 260, basic net income (loss) per common share is ledémliby dividing net income (loss) by the weightegrage number of

common shares outstanding during the reportingpgeBiluted net income (loss) per common shareceslthe effects of potentially dilutive
securities.

In prior reporting periods, the Company had twesés of participating securities, Series B ConvierfPreferred Stock and common
stock. The two classes of participating securittesnmon shares and preferred shares representedrd®%®% of outstanding shares,
respectively. The preferred shareholders had thigyab participate in dividends with common shiaoéders according to a predetermined
formula (one for one) based upon the conversigirefierred shares to common shares. On March 8, 201df the 10,000 shares of the
previously issued and outstanding shares of SBrigenvertible Preferred Stock were redeemed ford@Dshares of common stock.
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December 30,

(In millions, except earnings per share) December 26, 2010  December 25, 2011 2012

Net income (loss) from continuing operations $ 14€ % (235 $ (112.9
Less net income from continuing operations allotabepreferred

shareholders (0.7 — —
Net income (loss) from continuing operations altedsto common

shareholders (A) $ 145§ (235 $ (112.9
Weighted average outstanding shares of common §R)ck 16.5 27.2 46.¢
Weighted average shares from preferred stock 0.1 — —
Basic weighted average outstanding shares of consteck and

participating securities 16.€ 27.2 46.¢
Dilutive effect of employee stock options and avsard 0.2 — —
Common stock and common stock equivalents(C) 16.¢ 27 .4 46.
Net income (loss) from continuing operations penown share:

Basic (A/B) $ 0.8¢ $ (0.8¢) $ (2.4)
Diluted (A/C) $ 087 $ (0.8¢) $ (2.47)

The following shares were excluded from the catimteof diluted loss per share because their ingtug/ould have been anti-dilutive
(in millions):

December 26, 2010 December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012
Shares from stock options and awards 1.2 2.1 3.€
Note 8. Income Taxes

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe Company's unrecognized tax benefits (ifiong):

Balance at December 27, 2009 $ 12.€
Increases related to prior periods (acquired esiti 0.2
Increases related to current year tax positions 0.2
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations 0.9
Balance at December 26, 2010 12.4
Increases related to prior periods (acquired es)iti 0.t
Increases related to current year tax positions 0.2
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (0.€)
Settlements with taxing authorities (2.9
Balance at December 25, 2011 10.1
Increases related to prior periods (acquired es)iti 3.7
Increases related to current year tax positions —
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (0.2
Settlements with taxing authorities (0.9
Balance at December 30, 2012 $ 134

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemafiDecember 30, 2012 , are $13.4 million of tamdiits that, if recognized, would
affect the effective tax rate. Included in this amiis $10.8 million that would become a deferr@ddsset if the tax benefit were recognized. As
such, this benefit may be impacted by a correspondgaluation allowance depending upon the Compamyisolidated financial position at the
time the benefits are recognized.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltieerktatunrecognized tax benefits in its provisionificome taxes. For the years en
December 26, 2010 , December 25, 2011 and Dece3th@012 , the Company recorded $0.1 million , $8ilon and $0.4 million ,
respectively, in interest or penalties. These anware netted by a benefit for interest and perslti
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related to the reversal of prior positions as neteave of $0.4 million , $0.4 million , and $0.1llion for the years ended December 26, 2010,
December 25, 2011 , and December 30, 2012 , régplgctAs of December 26, 2010 , December 25, 20drid December 30, 2012 , the
Company had recorded total interest and penalfi#8.6 million , $0.4 million , and $0.7 milliorrespectively.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possiitsleas much as $1.5 million of unrecognized &xdiits will expire within
12 months of December 30, 2012 due to the expiratiovarious applicable statutes of limitations.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S.iousr state tax jurisdictions and various foreignjtaisdictions. The Company's tax
years for 2000 and later are subject to examindtyothe U.S. and state tax authorities due to xisence of net operating los“NOL”)
carryforwards. Generally, the Company's tax year2002 and later are subject to examination bipuarforeign tax authorities.

In assessing the Company's ability to realize defetax assets, management considers, on a pebiasii, whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the defergeddssets will not be realized. As such, managehastletermined that it is appropriate to
maintain a full valuation allowance against the @any's deferred tax assets, with the exceptiom @haount equal to its deferred tax liabilities,
which can be expected to reverse over a defiféelid certain foreign and separate state deféaredssets. Management will continue to
evaluate the necessity to maintain a valuatiomatae against the Company's net deferred tax assets

It is the Company's intention to permanently regtwendistributed earnings of its foreign subsidisriThe Company has not provided
deferred U.S. income taxes or foreign withholdiaxggets on temporary differences resulting from egsiior certain foreign subsidiaries which
are permanently reinvested outside the U.S. lbigpracticable to determine the amount of unrecaghieferred tax liabilities associated with
these temporary differences.

The components of income (loss) before incomesstard equity earnings are listed below (in milljons

2010 2011 2012
Domestic $ 1¢ % (20.79) $ (120.9)
Foreign — (0.9 5.8
Total $ 1¢ $ (21.6) $ (114.5)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from contng operations for the years ended December®&) 2December 25, 2011 , and
December 30, 2012 are comprised of the followingi{illions):

2010 2011 2012
Federal income taxes:
Current $ 01 % 15 % —
Deferred 1.€ 0.€ (3.5
Total Federal 1.7 (0.9 (3.5
State and local income taxes
Current (12.€) 3.1 0.8
Deferred (2.8) 0.8 04
Total State and local (14.9 3.¢ 1.2
Foreign income taxes:
Current — 04 0.1
Deferred — (1.5 0.€
Total Foreign — (1.3 0.7
Total $ (12.79) $ 1¢ ¢ (1.6

A reconciliation of the total income tax provisi¢irenefit) to the amount computed by applying tla¢usory federal income tax rate of
35% to income (loss) from continuing operationobeincome tax provision for the years ended Deegr6, 2010 , December 25, 2011 and
December 30, 2012 is as follows (in millions):
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2010 2011 2012
Income tax expense (benefit) at federal statutaigy r $ 0.6 $ (7.6) $ (40.0)
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit and valnailowance 1.¢ 3.1 0.7
Difference in tax rates between U.S. and foreign — (0.2) (2.5)
Release of foreign valuation allowance — (0.7) —
Increase (decrease) in federal valuation allowance (2.9 4.7 14.2
Nondeductible expense 0.2 04 0.2
Increase (decrease) in reserve for uncertain taitipos (0.2 2.7) 0.1
Transaction costs 0.7 2.3 0.1
Changes to indefinite life items and separate steferred taxes — 1.5 3.0
Impact of purchase accounting (13.¢) — —
Goodwill impairment — — 27.€
Total $ (12.7) $ 18 ¢ (1.6

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to the deferred tax assets and deferreddbitities as of December 25, 2011 and
December 30, 2012 are as follows (in millions):

2011 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 08 % 0.4
Sundry accruals 7.8 &
Vacation accrual 5.C 5.1
Stock-based compensation 4.¢ 4.€
Payroll related accruals 2.3 2.7
Lease accruals 9.t 9.7
Investments 2.1 1.¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 104.1 124.¢
Tax credit carryforwards 3.t 3.7
Deferred revenue 1.t 2.1
Reserves and other 9.8 10.z
151.¢ 168.t
Valuation allowance (98.9) (110.9
Total deferred tax assets, net of allowance 52.t 58.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unearned revenue (15.9 (42.0
Other intangibles (37.0 (15.%)
Property and equipment, principally due to differesin depreciation (20.7) (7.9
Total deferred tax liabilities (62.5) (65.€)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ (10.0 $ (7.9

At December 30, 2012 , the Company had federdbtsccarryforwards of $344.7 million and variouststtax loss carryforwards $187.¢
million including net operating losses resultingnfr stock options of approximately $14.4 millifwn federal and state, which if recognized wc
result in additional paid-in capital. Federal atatesincome tax laws impose restrictions on thization of NOL and tax credit carryforwards in
the event that an “ownership change” occurs foptaposes, as defined by Section 382 of the Int&agenue Code of 1986 (“Section 382},
amended (the “Code”). In general, an ownership géatcurs when shareholders owning 5% or moréloka corporation” (a corporation
entitled to use NOL or other loss carryovers) haeeeased their ownership of stock in such corpamaty more than 50 percentage points
during any 3 -year period. The annual base Se8&@nimitation is calculated by multiplying the ®sorporation's value (which may be
modified for certain recent increases to capitatha time of the ownership change times the grestthe long-term tax-exempt rate determined
by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS") in the nioat the ownership change or the
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two preceding months. In March 2010 , an “ownersiignge” occurred that will limit the utilizatiori the loss carryforwards. Additionally, in
May 2012 , another “ownership change” was triggefexda result of this change in May, the Compafederal annual utilization of NOL
carryforwards will be limited to $28.1 million agefor the five years succeeding the initial owhgrshange and $11.6 million per year
thereafter. If the entire limitation amount is mtitized in a year, the excess can be carried fohaad utilized in future years. For the year er
December 30, 2012 , there was no impact of sudldliimns on the income tax provision since the amafd taxable income did not exceed the
annual limitation amount. In addition, future eguifferings or acquisitions that have equity asmpgonent of the purchase price could also
result in an “ownership change.” If and when arfyeot‘'ownership change” occurs, utilization of th@INor other tax attributes may be further
limited. As discussed elsewhere, deferred tax sigskdting to the NOL and credit carryforwards @fifset by a full valuation allowance. In
addition, utilization of state tax loss carryfordsiis dependent upon sufficient taxable income djgmed to the states.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax @sseanagement considers, on a periodic basishehitis more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsnatlbe realized. During fiscal 2012 , the Compeegorded a net increase in its valuation
allowance of $11.6 million .

Note 9. Discontinued Operations

In June 2009, as a result of the continued operétisses in the Southeast division of the PSS segftiee “Southeast Division”), the
Company's board of directors approved a plan tasel dispose of the Southeast Division. In acamedavith Topic 205, this business unit was
classified as held for sale and reported in disnaetl operations in the accompanying Consolidabtedri€ial Statements. The Company
recorded a $2.0 million impairment charge in theosel quarter of 2009 and an additional $0.2 milliothe second quarter of 2010 related to
management's estimate of the fair value of thenessi. On August 2, 2010, the Company divesteditsh®ast Division for approximately $0.1
million cash consideration and the assumption dhaeliabilities.

In June of 2012, consistent with the Company'sgptarcomplete its assessment and evaluation afdheore businesses acquired in
the Integral acquisition, the Company committed faan to sell certain lines of business associatddantennas, satellite-cased products and
fly-away terminals. These operations were previpteported in the KGS segment, and in accordante™ipic 205 these businesses have t
classified as held for sale and reported in disnart operations in the accompanying consoliddteth€ial statements. In the second quarter of
2012, the Company recorded a $1.5 million impairmoliarge associated with the portion of goodwdittivas allocated to the discontinued
businesses based on management's estimate ofrtialde of the discontinued businesses. The Complans to dispose of these operations
through a sale of their assets in 2013.

The following table presents the results of distwr@d operations including gain and loss on disisoshich is included in income
(loss) before taxes (in millions):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 26, December 25, December 30,
2010 2011 2012
Revenue $ 22 % 92 $ 18.F
Loss before taxes (0.9 (1.9 (1.8
Benefit for income taxes (0.9 (0.6) 0.3
Net loss $ 0.2) $ 0.7 $ (1.5)

The benefit for income taxes for the year endedebdaer 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 was pringuiyto the expiration of the
statute of limitations for certain foreign tax cioigencies related to the Company’s discontinueéless services business.
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The following is a summary of the assets and litdsl of discontinued operations, which are in otherent assets, other non-current
assets, other current liabilities and other longatkabilities in the accompanying Consolidatedd@we Sheets as of December 25, 2011 and
December 30, 2012 (in millions):

December 25, 2011 December 30, 2012

Accounts receivable, net $ 52 ¢ 3.4
Inventoried costs 4.C 3.C
Other current assets 0.4 0.2

Current assets of discontinued operations $ 9.7 $ 6.€
Property and equipment, net $ 0.€ $ 0.4
Goodwill 1kt —
Other assets 0.2 0.4

Long-term assets of discontinued

operations $ 24 % 0.€
Accrued expenses and accounts payable $ 3C % 4.4
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on unceteg|contracts 1kt 0.1
Other current liabilities 1.8 0.4

Current liabilities of discontinued

operations $ 6.2 % 4.¢
Other long-term liabilities $ 0t ¢ 0.2

Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations $ 0f § 0.2

Note 10. Fair Value Measurement

The Company adoptelbpic 820with the exception of the application of the stagairto non-recurring nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities. Non-recurring nonfinanteassets and nonfinancial liabilities for whiclhés not applied the provisionsTdpic 820
include those measured at fair value in goodwipdnment testing, indefinite lived intangible asseteasured at fair value for impairment
testing, asset retirement obligations initially sue&d at fair value, and those assets and liagsilitiitially measured at fair value in a business
combination.

Topic 820establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosurthefinputs to valuation used to measure fair valtés hierarchy prioritizes
the inputs into three broad levels as follows. lldvimputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in actiagkets for identical assets or liabilities. Le
2 inputs are quoted prices for similar assets mtuilities in active markets or inputs that areeable for the asset or liability, either direably
indirectly through market corroboration, for sulnsialy the full term of the financial instrumettevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs base
the Company's own assumptions used to measures asgkliabilities at fair value. A financial assetiability's classification within the
hierarchy is determined based on the lowest leygitithat is significant to the fair value measusam

The only asset or liability carried and measurefdiatvalue on a recurring basis is an interest satap agreement not qualified as a
hedging instrument carried in other current lidigiti on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Gaintoaeds resulting from marking to market the
interest rate swap are recorded in other incomgefese), net in the Consolidated Statements Of @pesaAnd Comprehensive Income (Loss).
The total gain on the interest rate swap for treryended December 26, 2010 and December 25, 2044.$1.0 million and $0.3 million ,
respectively. There were no outstanding interdstgaaps as of December 25, 2011 or December 3@,.20

Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity
€)) Common Stocl

On May 14, 2012, the Company sold 20.0 million skaf its common stock at a purchase price of $edGhare in an underwritten
public offering. The Company received gross prose#ds100.0 million . After deducting underwritiagd other offering expenses, the
Company received approximately $97.0 million in petceeds. The Company used the net proceeds liisraffering to fund a portion of the

cash consideration paid to the stockholders ofi@Ebnnection with the Company's acquisition thémoJuly 2, 2012.
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On December 1, 2011, the Company repurchased iopiie market from an institutional investor 2.0lionil shares of its common stc
for $5.45 per share, in a block transaction in diempe with legal requirements.

On July 27, 2011, in connection with the acquisitid Integral, the Company issued approximately 1illion shares of its common
stock to shareholders of Integral. See Note 3 fwraplete description of this transaction.

On February 11, 2011, the Company sold approxim#té million shares of its common stock at a pasghprice of $13.2per share i
an underwritten public offering. The Company reeéigross proceeds of approximately $64.8 milliéfter deducting underwriting and other
offering expenses, the Company received approxlgn@éi.1 million in net proceeds.

On October 12, 2010, the Company sold approxim&é&ymillion shares of its common stock at a puseharice of $10.20 per share in
an underwritten public offering. The Company reeéigross proceeds of approximately $25.8 milliéfter deducting underwriting fees and
other offering expenses, the Company received appetely $24.7 million in net proceeds. The Compasgd the net proceeds from this
transaction to fund the purchase price for the s@tgpn of Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. in DecemB€10.

(b) Preferred Stock

On March 8, 2011, all of the 10,000 shares of tlezipusly issued and outstanding shares of Seriésr®ertible Preferred Stock
(“Preferred Stock”) were redeemed for 100,000 shafeeommon stock. Prior to the redemption, théePred Stock had a total liquidation
preference of $5.0 million . In accordance witbpic 260, the Preferred Stock was considered a particigataturity for purposes of computing
basic earnings per share prior to redemption.

(c) Stock Option Plans and Restricted Stock Unit Plar

The Company's board of directors (“Board”) may ¢jeguity-based awards to selected employees, digeahd consultants of the
Company pursuant to its existing equity incentilanp. In July 2004, the Board resolved that allfeitstock option grants under the Company's
equity incentive plans would be non-statutory stopkons, until such further determination by theaBl. In February 2005, the Board approved
the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“2005 Plan”). T2 Plan was subsequently approved by a majoritieoCompany's stockholders on May
18, 2005. In March 10, 2011, the Board approve®8iel Equity Incentive Plan (“2011 Plan”). The 2@&n was subsequently approved by a
majority of the Company's stockholders on May 2¥, 2 Each of the 2005 Plan and the 2011 Plan pethetBoard to issue a wide-variety of
awards, including restricted stock units, restdatock, stock appreciation rights, stock optioms deferred stock units. If any shares covered by
an award under the 2005 Plan or 2011 Plan areutohased or are forfeited, or if an award othenisderminated, canceled or retired, such
shares are again made available for awards und@05 Plan and 2011 Plan. As of December 30, 20#2e are approximately 452,000 and
1.5 million shares reserved for issuance for fugremt under the 2005 Plan and 2011 Plan, resjgdgctiVhe Board may amend or terminate the
2005 Plan or 2011 Plan at any time. Certain amenthniecluding an increase in the share reserggiine stockholder approval. Generally,
options and restricted stock units outstanding @est periods not exceeding ten years . If the Gomgpvere to grant stock options, they would
be granted with a per share exercise price nothessthe fair market value of the Company's comstook on the date of grant, and generally
would be exercisable for up to ten years from ttamgdate.

Integral Stock Option Plangll outstanding options to purchase shares of hatecpmmon stock that were not canceled and exathng
for a cash payment upon completion of the Integradger, were assumed by the Company and convetttedptions to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock (with the number of sharbgst to each such option and the exercise pppécable to each such option adjusted
based on the applicable exchange ratio) (the “Assu@®ptions”). The Company assumed each such sfiidn accordance with the terms
and conditions of the applicable Integral optioarphnd stock option agreement, subject to the td@res described in the preceding sentence.
On February 20, 2012, the Board confirmed (i) theuanption of Integral's 2008 Stock Incentive Ptae (2008 Plan”), pursuant to NASDAQ
Rule 5635, which provides that shares availableeundrtain plans acquired in mergers and otherisitigns may be used for certain post-
transaction grants without further stockholder applr and (ii) an amendment to the 2008 Plan, irotd permit the future grant of awards,
including restricted stock unit awards, by the Camppursuant to the plan. The 2008 Plan was apgdroyéntegral's Board of directors in
December 2007 and by Integral's stockholders imugafp 2008. The terms and conditions of specifiar@s are set at the discretion of the
Board. As of December 30, 2012 , there are apprabdin 1.2 million shares of the Company's commouolsavailable for issuance under the
2008 Plan. The shares of common stock availablss$oiance under the 2008 Plan may be used to @namtls, including stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock and restlict®ck units, to any employee, director or comstiltvho was not an
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employee, director or consultant of the Compangrdo the consummation of the Integral merger. Bbard may amend or terminate the 2008
Plan at any time. However, certain amendmentsydict) an increase in the share reserve, would regtockholder approval.

Herley Stock Option Planall outstanding options to purchase shares of eztenmon stock that were not canceled and exchanged
for a cash payment upon completion of the Herleygere were assumed by the Company and converte@ptions to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock (with the number of sharbgst to each such option and the exercise pppéaable to each such option adjusted
based on the applicable exchange ratio). The Coynpssumed each such stock option in accordancethétterms and conditions of the
applicable Herley option plan and stock option agrent, subject to the adjustments described iprineeding sentence. On December 30,
2012 , the Board confirmed (i) the assumption ofiéies 2010 Stock Plan (the “2010 Plan”), pursuafiASDAQ Rule 5635, and (ii) an
amendment to the 2010 Plan, in order to permifuhee grant of awards, including restricted staokt awards, by the Company pursuant to the
plan. The 2010 Plan was approved by Herley's Boadirectors in January 2010 and by Herley's stotkrs in March 2010. The terms and
conditions of specific awards are set at the digoref the Board. As of February 20, 2012, theeapproximately 413,000 shares of the
Company's common stock available for issuance uthée2010 Plan. These shares are available to gweards, including stock options, shares
of common stock and restricted stock units, to @emyployee, director or consultant who was not anleyee, director or consultant of the
Company prior to the consummation of the HerleygaerThe Board of the Company may amend or termitiegt 2010 Plan at any time.
However, certain amendments, including an incrgasiee share reserve, would require stockholdercayab.

Henry Bros. Electronics Stock Option PlaRBE's stock option and stock incentive plans agglin connection with the Company's
acquisition of HBE were terminated on December208,0, and no further grants may be made under filase after such date. Award grants
that were outstanding under these plans on Decebdh@010 will continue to be governed by theirséirg terms and may be exercised for
shares of the Company's common stock at any tiioe forthe expiration of the option term or anylieatermination of those options in
connection with the option holder's cessation ofise with the Company. Stock options granted utkdese plans were incentive stock options,
may generally be exercised from one to ten yeaes tife date of grant and generally vest ratabgr thwee to five years . Certain of these
options had change in control provisions that are¢td the vesting of the options.

Digital Fusion Inc. Stock Option and Stock InceatRlans DFI's stock option and stock incentive plans a@glin connection with the
Company's acquisition of DFI were terminated onddeloer 24, 2008, and no further grants may be maderuhese plans after such date.
Award grants that were outstanding under thesesglarDecember 24, 2008 will continue to be govelmetheir existing terms and may be
exercised for shares of the Company's common stbaky time prior to the expiration of the ten 4yeption term or any earlier termination of
those options in connection with the option hoklegssation of service with the Company. Stockooptgranted under these plans included
incentive stock options or non-statutory stock apdi All non-statutory options vest upon changeointrol and were 100% vested on December
24, 2008. With respect to incentive stock optidghe,qualified stock option plans provide that thereise price of each such option must be at
least equal to 100% of the fair market value oEdmmon stock on the date of grant. Stock optioastgd under these plans may generally be
exercised from one to ten years after the dateasftgCertain of these options had change in cbptavisions that extended the exercise period
for grants for two years from the transaction aigsilate. Awards granted under these plans genergdlyequally over three years ; however, in
connection with the Company's acquisition of DF filans were amended to include immediate vesfiafj onvested grants upon any future
change in control of the Company. DFI also hadaderptions granted outside of its qualified stopkion plans. These non-qualified “out of
plan” stock options expire 10 years from grant date

RSU Agreement&n January 10, 2007, the Compensation Committ#eedBoard approved a form of Restricted Stock Bgiteement
(an RSU Agreement) to govern the issuance of ostristock units (“RSUs”) to executive officers anthe Company's 2005 Plan. On
November 14, 2011, the Compensation CommitteeeoBttard approved a form of RSU Agreement to gotleerissuance of RSUs to execut
officers under the Company's 2011 Plan. Each R$kesents the right to receive a share of commarkge“Share”) on the vesting date.
Unless and until the RSUs vest, the Employee waillenno right to receive Shares under such RSUgr. ®ractual distribution of Shares purst
to any vested RSUs, such RSUs will represent aeaumsd obligation of the Company, payable (if Btaily from the general assets of the
Company. The RSUs that may be awarded to execoftiieers under an RSU Agreement will vest accordmgesting schedules specified in
notice of grant accompanying each grant. The Compagpgnizes compensation expense on a straighbhsis over the vesting periods based
on the market price of the Company's stock on thatglate. The awards granted in 2010 , 2011 2848 had vesting periods ranging from 5 to
10 years; 2 to 10 years, and 1 to 10 years, rasphctSome of the grants for these years havelaated vesting occurring upon change of
control or termination. Upon exercise of the RS\ €Company issues new shares of common stock.
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The Company records compensation expense for eepktpck options based on the estimated fair \@&ltlee options on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing maate the weighted average assumptions (annualizedrgages) included in the following
table. Awards with graded vesting are recognizéoiguthe straight-line method with the following asgptions:

2010 2011 2012
Expected life:(1)

Stock options 1.4 years 2.2 years 10 years
Risk-free interest rate(2) 0.1% - 3.6% 0.1% -3.4% 1.6% -2.3%
Volatility(3) 28.4% - 73.8% 29.3% - 65.3% 59.0% - 59.7%
Forfeiture rate(4) 16.3% 16.3% 16.3%
Dividend yield(5) —% —% —%

(1) In 2010, all unvested options related toabeuisition of HBE. HBE used the simplified metHodcalculating the
expected life of the option, and the Company ukeddrmethod for calculating the expected life of tigions assumed. In
2011 and 2012, no unvested options were grantdha@nexpected life was equal to the life of théap

(2) The risk-free interest rate is based on UrBa3ury yields in effect at the time of grant watterm equal to the expected
term of the options.

(3) In2010, 2011, and 201the Company estimated implied volatility basedruprailing volatility

(4) Forfeitures are estimated at the time of gbasted upon historical information. Forfeitured Wé revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffenfrestimates. In 2010 , the estimated forfeituresHe HBE options were
based upon the historical information of HBE optimiders.

(5) The Company has no history or expectation of paglimgiends on its common sto

A summary of the status of the Company's stocloaptian as of December 30, 2012 and changes iargptiutstanding under the plan
for the year ended December 30, 2012 is as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Number of Exercise Price Term Aggregate
Options per Share (in years) Intrinsic Value
(000's) (000's)
Options outstanding at December 25, 2011 1,771 $ 24.6¢ 2€ $ 21¢
Granted 8 9 5.22 — —
Exercised — 3 — — —
Forfeited or expired (64€) $ 19.2¢ — —
Options outstanding at December 30, 2012 1,13 ¢ 27.6¢ 2.8 $ 80.(
Options exercisable at December 30, 2012 1,112 $ 28.0¢ 28 § 80.C

As of December 30, 2012 , there was $0.1 milliototdl unrecognized stock-based compensation erpeteted to nonvested options
which is expected to be recognized over a remaiwigighted-average vesting period of 1.2 years .rpercise of an option, the Company
issues new shares of common stock.

During the years ended December 26, 2010 , DeceBihe@2011 , and December 30, 2012 the followingeslrelate to the grants and
exercises under the Company's option plans:
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2010 2011 2012
Weighted average grant date fair value of opticasigd $ 6.0¢ $ 2.3¢ $ 3.5¢€
Total intrinsic value of options exercised (in tsands) $ 8l¢ $ 1,83 $ —
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Additional information about stock options outstamydat December 30, 2012 with exercise pricestlees and greater than $4.80 per
share, the stock price at December 28, 2012 asitdrading day of the period, follows:

Exercisable Unexercisable Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise Shares Exercise

Stock Options (000's) Price (000's) Price (000's) Price
Less than $4.80 547 $ 10.3¢ 21 $ 6.91 56¢ $ 10.2¢
Above $4.80 56¢ $ 45.2( — $ — 56t $ 45.
Total outstanding 1,112 ¢ 28.0¢ 21 ¢ 691 1,13t ¢ 27.6¢

The following table summarizes the Company's Retstli Stock Unit activity:

Weighted-

Restricted Average

Stock Units Grant Date

(000's) Fair Value
Nonvested balance at December 25, 2011 1,211 % 11.4%
Grants 2,65: % 5.9¢
Vested (187 $ 10.4¢
Forfeitures 7 $ 7.71
Nonvested balance at December 30, 2012 367C ¢ 7.5¢

As of December 30, 2012 , there was $12.9 millibtotal unrecognized stock-based compensation esgpexiated to nonvested
restricted stock units which is expected to be gated over a remaining weighted-average vestinggef 4.1 years. The fair value of RSU
awards that vested in 2010 , 2011 , and 2012 wa&srillion , $0.8 million , and $1.9 million , resgtively.

(d) Employee Stock Purchase Ple

In August 1999, the Board approved the 1999 Em@g@&teck Purchase Plan (“Purchase Plan”). A total 6f3 thousand shares of
Common Stock have been authorized for issuancer tinedéurchase Plan. The Purchase Plan qualifies amployee stock purchase plan
within the meaning of Section 423 of the Internal/nue Service Code. Unless otherwise determingdeb§ompensation Committee of the
Board, all employees are eligible to participatéhe Purchase Plan so long as they are employ#teb@ompany (or a subsidiary designated by
the Board) for at least 20 hours per week and westomarily employed by the Company (or a subsidi@signated by the Board) for at least 5
months per calendar year.

Employees who actively participate in the Purchis@ are eligible to have up to 15% of their eagsifor each purchase period
withheld pursuant to the Purchase Plan. The ambanis withheld is used at various purchase daitbén the offering period to purchase sh:
of Common Stock. The price paid for Common Stookaath such purchase date is equal to the lowes%f& the fair market value of the
Common Stock at the commencement date of thatindfereriod or 85% of the fair market value of then@non Stock on the relevant purchase
date. Employees are also able to end their paaticip in the offering at any time during the offeyiperiod, and participation ends automatically
upon termination of employment. From the Purchdae'®inception through December 30, 2012 , theutative number of shares of Common
Stock that have been issued under the PurchasesPan,000 and approximately 1,189,000 shares asaiable for future issuance. During
fiscal 2011 , approximately 93,196 shares weresigsunder the plan at an average price of $9.4%inPfiscal year 2012, approximately
781,000 shares were bought in the market at armgedrice of $5.19 .
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The fair value of Kratos' Purchase Plan share20@f was estimated using the Black-Scholes optimmg model. The assumptions
and resulting fair values of options granted fot2@nd 2012 were as follows:

Offering Offering
Periods Periods
January 1 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31
2011 2012
Expected term (in years)(1) 0.5 0.5
Risk-free interest rate(2) 0.10% - 0.19% 0.16% - 0.06%
Expected volatility(3) 28.5% -43.6% 49.7% - 65.73%
Expected dividend yield(4) 0% 0%
Weighted average grant-date fair value per share $3.05 $1.93

(1) The expected term is equivalent to the offeringqak
(2) The riskfree interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yielé$fect at the time of grant with a term equaltte expected ter
(3) The Company estimated implied volatility based upaiing volatility.
(4) The Company has no history or expectation of paglimglends on its common sto
As of December 30, 2012 , there was no materiaaognized compensation expense related to the egplBtock Purchase Plan.
(e) Stockholder Rights Agreemen

On December 16, 2004, the Company entered intockiSolder Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreemenifder the terms of the
Rights Agreement, initially, the rights (“Rightsijill attach to all certificates representing shasksutstanding Company common stock and no
separate rights certificates will be distributedbj@ct to the provisions of the Rights Agreemem, Rights will separate from the Company
common stock and the distribution date will occpomi the earlier of (i) tehusiness days following a public announcementalgsrson or grot
of affiliated or associated persons has acquirezbtained the right to acquire beneficial ownergifift5% or more of the then-outstanding
common stock (an Acquiring Person), or (ii) tenibass days (or such later date as may be deterrbinadtion of the Board) prior to such time
as any person becomes an Acquiring Person follotiieagommencement of a tender offer or exchange tft would result in a person or
group becoming an Acquiring Person. An Acquirings®a does not include certain persons specifigdarRights Agreement. The Rights
Agreement was amended on May 14, 2012 to, amorgy timgs, redefine the term Acquiring Person tdwe a newly defined term Exempt
Person from the definition of Acquiring Person. Taen Exempt Person is defined to include: (A)@menpany; (B) any subsidiary of the
Company; (C) any employee benefit plan maintainethb Company or any of its subsidiaries; (D) amgtee or fiduciary with respect to such
employee benefit plan acting in such capacity wstée or fiduciary holding shares of Company Com@itmtk for the purpose of funding any
such plan or employee benefits; (E) Oak Investriantners X, L.P., Oak IX Affiliates Fund, L.P., OB Affiliates Fund-A, L.P., Oak X
Affiliates Fund, L.P., Oak Investment Partners X® L Oak Investment Partners XlliI, L.P., or theffillates and Associates (collectively, the
“Oak Parties) as long as the Oak Parties, indiVigwa in the aggregate, are not the beneficial exaf more than 25% of the outstanding shares
of Company stock (other than pursuant to a traf@aealthorized in writing in advance by the Boafdaectors) and certain specified criteria
are met.

On December 16, 2004, the Board authorized anduwsth dividend of one right (a Right) to purchase one-hundredth of a share of
the Company's Series C Preferred Stock (Serieefered) for each outstanding share of common sfakvalue $0.001 , to stockholders of
record as of the close of business December 27. Z¥rh Right entitles the registered holder, suligethe terms of the Rights Agreement, to
purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of@ sif Series C Preferred Stock at a purchase @fi$84.00 , subject to adjustment.
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The Rights are not exercisable until the distritmutiiate and will expire at the close of businestherten th anniversary of the Rights
Agreement unless earlier redeemed or exchangedaeb@dampany.

Note 12. Retirement Plans

The Company provides eligible employees the oppdstio participate in defined-contribution savinqgans (commonly known as 401
(k) plans), which permit contributions on a beftew-basis. Generally, salaried employees and oentairly employees are eligible to particip
in the plans. Under most plans, the employee matriboite to various investment alternatives. Irtaearplans, the Company matches a portion
of the employees' contributions. The Company'srdmrtions to these defined-contribution plans &da$5.9 million in 2010 , $7.3 million in
2011 and $5.1 million in 2012 .

Note 13. Significant Customers

Revenue from the U.S. Government (which include=iga Military Sales) includes revenue from contsgor which Kratos is the
prime contractor as well as those for which the @any is a subcontractor and the ultimate custosirel U.S. Government. The KGS segment
has substantial revenue from the U.S. Governmeaitgés3o the U.S. Government amounted to approxiyndgs4.0 million , $534.5 million ,
and $627.8 million or 87% , 75% , and 65% , ofltotaenue for the years ended December 26, 20B2ember 25, 2011 , and December 30,
2012 , respectively.

The U.S. Government continues to focus on devegpaird implementing spending, tax, and other imitéegt to reduce the deficit, create
jobs, and stimulate the economy. Although defepsading is expected to remain a national prioriihin future federal budgets, the Bud:
Control Act of 2011 (“Budget Control Act”) committehe U.S. Government to reduce the federal defi@tr the next ten years. Under the
Budget Control Act, the Bi-Partisan CongressiowaitlSelect Committee on Deficit Reduction (“thénid&Committee”) was responsible for
identifying $1.2 to $1.5 trillion in deficit reduons by November 30, 2011. The Joint Committee uveble to identify the reductions by this
deadline and thereby triggered a provision of thedd®t Control Act called “sequestration,” whichuigs very substantial automatic spending
cuts that will start in 2013 and be split betweefedse and non-defense programs and continue aweegear period. The Congressional
budget process to finalize FY 2013 defense spertitisgoeen marked by continued uncertainty andfgignt debate and increased, as of
December 30, 2012, the possibility of sequestratimrurring. There continues to be uncertainty iw lsequestration would be implemented and
there are many variables in how the law could h@ieg that make it difficult to determine the sgiecimpacts. Any automatic reductions in
national defense programs could impact the Compaighificant customers.

Note 14. Segment Information

The Company operates in two principal business setgnKratos Government Solutions and Public Sa&&eBecurity. The KGS
segment provides products, solutions and servidesgly for mission critical national security prities. KGS customers primarily include
national security related agencies, the DoD, iigtefice agencies and classified agencies. The Rf#&saé provides independent integrated
solutions for advanced homeland security, publietgacritical infrastructure, and security andwaillance systems for government and
commercial applications. PSS customers are inritieat infrastructure, power generation, powensport, nuclear energy, financial, IT,
healthcare, education, transportation and petrmate industries, as well as certain governmentrailiiary customers.

The Company organizes its business segments badéd oature of the products and services offéreghsactions between segments
are generally negotiated and accounted for understand conditions similar to other government emmimercial contracts. This presentation is
consistent with the Company's operating structuréne following table, total operating income bétbusiness segments is reconciled to the
corresponding consolidated amount. The reconciterg “corporate activities” includes costs for eémtstock-based compensation programs
(including stock-based compensation costs for stptions, employee stock purchase plan and resdrgtibck units), the effects of items not
considered part of management's evaluation of segoperating performance, merger and acquisitigqerges, corporate costs not allocated to
the operating segments, and other miscellaneop®iEe activities.
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Revenues, operating income (loss) and assets sigtlmelow provided by the Company's segments éoyelars ended December 26,
2010, December 25, 2011 , and December 30, 28423s follows (in millions):

2010 2011 2012
Revenues:
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues $ 248t $ 238¢& $ 264.(
Product sales 123.5 362.¢ 519.2
Total Kratos Government Solutions 372.2 601.7 783.Z
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 36.8 1122 186.(
Product sales — — —
Total Public Safety & Security 36.8 1122 186.(
Total revenues $ 408t $ 713¢ $ 969.
Depreciation and amortization:
Kratos Government Solutions $ 122§ 457 % 54.t
Public Safety & Security 0.€ 2.3 3L
Total depreciation and amortization $ 12¢  $ 480 % 58.C
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations:
Kratos Government Solutions $ 251 % 354 $ (419
Public Safety & Security 1.8 9.¢ (2.5)
Corporate activities (3.8 (15.9) (5.7
Total operating income (loss) from continuing opierss $§ 231 § 298 § (49

Revenues from foreign customers were approxim&®dy3 million or 8% and $116.2 million or 12% ofdbrevenue for the years
ended December 25, 2011 and December 30, 201@ectesely. There were no revenues from foreignamustrs for the year ended
December 26, 2010 .

Amounts related to corporate activities were impddiy the following items in 2010 , 2011 and 2012 .

In 2010 , the Company reached a settlement withobits directors' and officers' insurance carriersover costs related to its
completed stock options and DOJ investigations. Setement received, net of legal expenses, viidsdamillion benefit.

In 2012, the Company recorded an impairment of gdlbend intangible assets of $83.7 million relatedhe KGS segment and an
impairment of intangible assets of $12.9 milliofated to the PSS segment. See Note 2.

In 2010 and 2011 , the Company had merger and sitiqniexpenses of approximately $3.1 million ad@.$ million , respectively,
and in 2012 had a benefit from merger related itefi®2.7 million due to a reduction in contingenhsideration, settlement of a dispute on fees,
and a change in estimate of indemnity obligati@hated to former directors and officers of Integral

Segment assets are as follows (in millions):
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December 25, December 30,
2011 2012
Assets:

Kratos Government Solutions $ 1,028.¢ $ 1,104.(
Public Safety & Security 88.¢€ 106.¢
Discontinued operations 12.1 7.t
Corporate activities 86.5 65.7
Total assets $ 1,216.( $ 1,284.(

The increases in the assets in the KGS and PSSeségare primarily attributable to the acquisitioh€EI on July 2, 2012 and the
Critical Infrastructure Business on December 30,22@\ssets of foreign subsidiaries were $47.2 ariliand $90.0 million as of December 25,
2011 and December 30, 2012 , respectively.

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies

In addition to commitments and obligations in theimary course of business, the Company is subjegarious claims, pending and
potential legal actions for damages, investigatieteting to governmental laws and regulations @theér matters arising out of the normal
conduct of our business. The Company assessesigenties to determine the degree of probabilityrande of possible loss for potential
accrual in its Consolidated Financial Statementsestimated loss contingency is accrued in its Glaeted Financial Statements if it is
probable that a liability has been incurred andam@unt of the loss can be reasonably estimatezhuBe litigation is inherently unpredictable
and unfavorable resolutions could occur, assedsiggtion contingencies is highly subjective amdjuires judgments about future events. When
evaluating contingencies, the Company may be unialjeovide a meaningful estimate due to a numb&ators, including the procedural
status of the matter in question, the presencemfptex or novel legal theories, and/or the ongaiisgovery and development of information
important to the matters. In addition, damage anwdiaimed in litigation against it may be unsupedy exaggerated or unrelated to possible
outcomes, and as such are not meaningful indicafats potential liability. The Company regulargviews contingencies to determine the
adequacy of its accruals and related disclosutes.amount of ultimate loss may differ from thesingtes. It is possible that cash flows or
results of operations could be materially affegtedny particular period by the unfavorable resolubf one or more of these contingencies.
Whether any losses finally determined in any claotion, investigation or proceeding could reasgnhlve a material effect on the Company's
business, financial condition, results of operationcash flows will depend on a number of varighiecluding: the timing and amount of such
losses; the structure and type of any remediesnthreetary significance of any such losses, damagesmedies may have on our Consolidated
Financial Statements; and the unique facts andristances of the particular matter that may gise to additional factors.

(@) Legal and Regulatory Matters.

Integral Indemnification Obligation . Integral, which was acquired on July 27, 2011s weeviously the subject of a SEC investiga
On July 30, 2009, the SEC and Integral each anmzuti@t an administrative settlement had been egbcbncluding the SEC's investigation. In
conjunction with its announcement of the admintsteasettiement, the SEC disclosed that it wastuistg separate civil actions against three
former officers of Integral, Steven R. Chamberl@iow deceased), Elaine M. Brown and Gary A. Princ case filed July 30, 2009 captioned
United States Securities and Exchange CommissiSteven R. Chamberlain, Elaine M. Brown, and GarlPrice,Case No. 09-CV-01423,
pending in the United States District Court for Bistrict of Columbia. The SEC's complaint allegfegt from 1999 through August 2006,
Chamberlain, Brown and Prince made materially fatsg misleading statements and omitted materiatrimdition in various filings with the SE
by failing to disclose the role of Prince, who Hmebn convicted of engaging in securities fraud evatlanother company, at Integral and his |
background in its filings. The SEC sought permaignonctions against each defendant, as well ag coders imposing officer and director b
and civil penalties. Integral has indemnificatidsligations to these individuals, as well as to ofoemer directors and officers of Integral who
may incur indemnifiable costs in connection withgl actions, pursuant to the terms of separatenimifieation agreements entered into with
each of them effective as of December 4, 2002. Aesalt of the acquisition of Integral, the Compaag assumed these indemnification
obligations. The indemnification agreements eaclvide, subject to certain terms and conditiong, tttia Company shall indemnify the
individual to the fullest extent permissible by Miand law against judgments, penalties, fines|esatints and reasonable expenses actually
incurred in the event that the individual is madgeety to a legal proceeding by reason of his ompinesent or prior service as an officer or
employee of Integral, and shall also advance redseritigation expenses actually incurred subjecamong other conditions, receipt of a
written undertaking to repay any costs or expeasganced if it shall ultimately be determined tth&t individual has not met the standard of
conduct required for indemnification under Maryland
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law. Certain costs and expenses were previouslgreowunder Integral's applicable directors andatef§ liability insurance policy. The policy
limits were exhausted in December 2011, and thepg2omis advancing payment of indemnifiable costsyant to the indemnification
agreements. On November 26, 2012, the SEC annotimaeid had finalized a settlement with Elaine BAown, resulting in a final judgment tt
resolved the SEC's matter against Brown. The SE&3s against Gary A. Prince proceeded to a beiatintDecember 2012, which trial
concluded in January 2013. As of this filing, tleeid has not issued a decision in the SEC's matf@inst Prince. Either party may appeal the
court's decision, which would require the Compangdntinue to advance payment of indemnifiablesost

U.S. Government Cost Claims The Company's contracts with the Department débse are subject to audit by the Defense Contract
Audit Agency (“DCAA"). As a result of these audifspm time to time, the Company is advised of ckitoncerning potential disallowed,
overstated or disputed costs. For example, duhiegourse of its current audits, the DCAA is clpglamining and questioning certain of its
established and disclosed practices that it hadqurgly audited and accepted. In addition, based DCAA audit, the U.S. Department of
Justice is currently investigating whether onewf subsidiaries violated the federal False Clairasby overstating its labor and material cos
a contract with the Department of Defense priagheoCompany's acquisition of the subsidiary. UniderFalse Claims Act, the Department of
Justice can seek civil penalties plus treble damabee Company intends to defend itself in thesttersaand to work to resolve or settle any
disputed contract costs. When appropriate, the @ampecords accruals to reflect its expected expasuthe matters raised by the U.S.
Government, and it reviews such accruals on a gdpthasis for sufficiency based on the most reaggntmation available. Based on its
assessment, it has accrued an amount in its fialesteitements for contingent liabilities associatéth these matters that it considers to be
immaterial to its overall financial position. Thetter that is currently being investigated was iified during the acquisition process and was
taken into consideration in the purchase pricecation of this subsidiary. Contract disputes wihtd U.S. government, however, are inherently
unpredictable, and unfavorable resolutions couttlincAs a result, assessing contingencies is higliyective and requires judgment about
future events. The amount of ultimate loss may estdee Company's current accruals, and it is piesgihat its cash flows or results of
operations could be materially affected in anyipalar period by the unfavorable resolution of @nenore of these contingencies.

Other Litigation Matters . The Company is subject to normal and routine litaqaarising from the ordinary course and condtct o
business, and, at times, as a result of acquisitiod dispositions. They include, for example, cemuial, employment, intellectual property,
environmental and securities matters.

The aggregate amounts accrued related to thesermate not material to the total liabilities of t@ompany.
(c) Warranty

Certain of the Company’s products, product finistaesl services are covered by a warranty to befifoee defects in material and
workmanship for periods ranging from one to terrge@ptional extended warranty contracts can atspuschased with the revenue deferred
and amortized over the extended warranty period. Jompany accrues a warranty liability for estirdatests to provide products, parts or
services to repair or replace products in satigfaaf warranty obligations. Warranty revenuesteslao extended warranty contracts are
amortized to income, over the life of the contrasing the straight-line method. Costs under exddniarranty contracts are expensed as
incurred.

The Company'’s estimate of costs to service its aveyrobligations is based upon historical expegesud expectations of future
conditions. To the extent that the Company expedsrany changes in warranty claim activity or cassociated with servicing those claims, its
warranty liability is adjusted accordingly.

The changes in the Company's aggregate producamgriabilities, which are included in other currdiabilities and other long term-
liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balankee$s, were as follows (in millions):
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Year Ended
December 25, December 30,
2011 2012
Balance, at beginning of the period $ 11 $ 3.8
Costs accrued and revenues deferred 1.€ 1.8
Warranty liabilities assumed from acquisitions 2.t 0.4
Adjustments to preexisting warranties (0.9 (0.7)
Settlements made (in cash or kind) and revenuegnézed (0.6) (0.2
Balance, at end of period 3.8 5.2
Less: Current portion 3.8 4.€
Non-current accrued product warranty and deferradamty revenue $ — 3 0.2
Total warranty $ 38 % 5.2

(d) Selfdnsured Health and Workers' Compensation Plan

The Company has health plans which are self-insanedalso has liabilities related to its saeured worker's compensation plans fc
discontinued wireless business. The liabilitieatedl to the health plans are a component of totalad expenses and the liabilities related t
workers' compensation plans are a component ouliabilities of discontinued operations in thenSolidated Balance Sheets. Management
determines the adequacy of these accruals basad evaluation of the Company's historical expeeeanad trends related to both medical and
workers' compensation claims and payments, infoomgtrovided to the Company by the Company's imstgdroker, industry experience and
the average lag period in which claims are paidutth information indicates that the Company'swadsirequire adjustment, the Company will,
correspondingly, revise the assumptions utilizethexCompany's methodologies and reduce or prdeidedditional accruals as deemed
appropriate.

As of December 25, 2011 , and December 30, 2012 a¢crual for the Company's partial self-insurgrograms approximated $0.2
million and $0.1 million for its health insuranceda$0.3 million and $0.2 million for its workergimpensation insurance, respectively. The
Company also carries stop-loss insurance that gesvioverage limiting the Company's total exposeleged to each medical and workers'
compensation claim incurred, as defined in theiegple insurance policies. The medical annual claimts are $50,000 - $85,000 and the
workers' compensation claim limits are $250,00850000 depending upon the plan year. In 20101 2@hd 2012 , no claims exceeded the
limits for workers' compensation. In 2010, 20114 2012 , the Company had four , eight , and nordarespectively, which exceeded the limits
for medical insurance.

Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following financial information reflects all moal and recurring adjustments that are, in thaiopiof management, necessary for a
fair statement of the results of the interim pesidBummarized quarterly data for the years endegmber 25, 2011 and December 30, 2012 , is

as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Quarterly Results in 2011

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal year 2011
Revenues $ 122¢ $ 17171 $ 206 $ 213«
Gross profit $ 2742 $ 454 $ 59.C $ 594
Operating income from continuing operations $ 14 $ 87 $ 9.7 % 9.7
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (12 $ 0c $ 1€ $ 0.€
Net loss $ (BH $ (B2 $ 69 $ (8.
Net loss per common share:
Basic $ (0179 $ (022 $ (029 $ (0.2
Diluted $ (0179 $ (022 $ (029 $ (0.2

The quarterly increases in revenues and expensesrasult of the Company's acquisitions. See Blote
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During the first , second , third and fourth questéhe Company incurred $5.8 million , $1.8 millip$3.7 million and $1.2 million ,
respectively, of expenses related to the Compamygsisitions during those quarters. Also includethe firs t, second , third , and fourth quarter
is amortization of purchased intangibles of $3.4iom , $9.2 million , $11.9 million and $13.5 mdh , respectively. Certain of the lives of the
intangible assets are relatively short in natuaaging from 10 to 16 months . See Note 3.

As a result of the impact of the issuance of 4.8ianishares in February 2011 for the Herley adtjois and 10.4 million shares in July
2011 for the Integral acquisition, and the buybaiR.0 million shares in November 2011 on the Comyfsaquarterly and yearly weighted
average basic and diluted shares outstandingutheo§2011 quarterly loss per share does not égeaCompany's 2011 loss per share. See
3and 11.
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Quarterly Results in 2012

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter

Fiscal year 2012

Revenues $209.8 $219.t $276.. $263.¢
Gross profit $57<4 $577 $ 741 $68.C
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations $ 91 $ 74 $ 141 $(80.9
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $(41) $ 6€ $ 12 $ (549
Net loss $ 30 $(1729 $ (4.2 $(90.0
Net loss per common share:

Basic $(0.09 $(0.41) $(0.07) $(1.59
Diluted $(0.09 $(0.41) $(0.079) $(1.59

The quarterly increases in revenues and expenshs third and fourth quarter are a result of thenPany's acquisition of CEIl. See
Note 3.

In the fourth quarter the Company incurred an immpant of goodwill and intangible assets of $96.8iom . See Note 2.

During the first , second , and third quarters,@eenpany incurred $0.9 million , $1.5 million , add.3 million , respectively, of
expenses related to the Company's acquisitionsglthibse quarters and during the fourth quarte€tmapany had a benefit of $2.7 million
related to acquisition items. Also included in eatkhe first, second, third and fourth quarteansortization of purchased intangibles of $10.5
million , $8.9 million , $13.0 million and $11.5 Hidn , respectively.

Note 17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statemtn

The Company has $625.0 million in outstanding NoBes Note 5. The Notes are guaranteed by aleo€tdmpany's 100% owned
domestic subsidiaries (the "Subsidiary Guarant@st) are collateralized by the assets of all ofGbmpany's 100% owned subsidiaries. The
Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed goiret and several basis by each guarantor sulrgidiad the Company. There are
contractual restrictions limiting cash transfexsfrguarantor subsidiaries by dividends, loans gaades to the Company. The Notes are not
guaranteed by the Company's foreign subsidiates“{ton-Guarantor Subsidiaries”).

The following tables present condensed consoligdtimancial statements for the parent companySihiesidiary Guarantors and the
Nor-Guarantor Subsidiaries, respectively, for 2011 20iR. In 2010, all Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries weigor and as a result condensed
consolidating financial statements are not requioe@010. The consolidating financial informatibelow follows the same accounting policies
as described in the Consolidated Financial State&snercept for the use of the equity method of anting to reflect ownership interests in
wholly-owned subsidiaries, which are eliminated mponsolidation.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 25, 2011

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 526 $ 28 % 14z $ — $ 69.€
Accounts receivable, net — 225.¢ 19.€ — 245.%
Amounts due from affiliated companies 446.2 — — (446.2) —
Inventoried costs — 64.2 12.4 — 76.€
Other current assets 6.7 18.4 4.4 — 29t
Total current assets 505.5 310.¢ 50.¢ (446.2) 421.(
Property, plant and equipment, net 1.2 62.2 9.1 — 72.5
Goodwill — 550.2 21.¢ — 571.¢
Intangible assets, net — 119.¢ 4.8 — 124.€
Investment in subsidiaries 460.1 20.t — (480.€) —
Amounts due from affiliated companies — 26.C — (26.0) —
Other assets 21.7 4.C 0.€ — 26.2
Total assets $ 988.f $ 1,093 $ 86.6 $ (952.§) $ 1,216.(
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8E % 378 % 28 % — 8 48.¢
Accrued expenses 2.3 45.1 3 — 50.7
Accrued compensation 3.7 33.2 2.8 — 39.¢
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on
uncompleted contracts — 34.2 1.¢ — 36.2
Deferred tax liability — 8.5 — — 8.5
Amounts due to affiliated companies — 414.F 31.7 (446.2) —
Other current liabilities 5.9 21.7 2.2 — 29.¢
Total current liabilities 20.4 594.¢ 447 (446.2) 213.¢
Long-term debt, net of current portion 647.¢ — 5.8 — 653.€
Deferred tax liability — 2.E — — 2.E
Amounts due to affiliated companies — — 26.C (26.0) —
Other long-term liabilities 7.7 23.¢ 2.C — 33.t
Total liabilities 675.¢ 621.2 78.t (472.9) 903.£
Total stockholders' equity 312.¢ 472.% .2 (480.¢) 312.€
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 988.t $ 1,093¢ $ 86 $ (952.9 $ 1,216.(
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 30, 2012

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 376 % 4.0 $ 15.2 — 8 49.C
Accounts receivable, net — 253.t 18.4 — 271.¢
Amounts due from affiliated companies 480.2 — — (480.2) —
Inventoried costs — 75.4 18.¢ — 94.:
Other current assets 9.1 28.C 3.1 — 40.2
Total current assets 527.1 352.¢ 55.€ (480.2) 455.¢
Amounts due from affiliated companies, long-term — 24.C — (24.0) —
Property, plant and equipment, net 1.3 74.7 9.€ — 85.€
Goodwill — 574.¢ 21.% — 596.t
Intangible assets, net — 103.¢ 2.7 — 106.1
Investment in subsidiaries 439.¢ 28.¢ — (468.6) —
Other assets 17.€ 224 0.4 — 40.4
Total assets $ 985.¢ $ 1,181.( $ 90.C (972.) $ 1,284.(
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 28 $ 752 $ 5.€ — 8 83.€
Accrued expenses $ 7C $ 42 % 34 — 8 52.7
Accrued compensation 2.8 41.¢ 3.1 — 47.¢
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on
uncompleted contracts — 40.t 3.2 — 43.7
Deferred income tax liability — 28.¢ — — 28.¢
Amounts due to affiliated companies — 455.1 25.1 (480.2) —
Other current liabilities 11 19.: 1.6 — 22.:
Total current liabilities 13.¢ 703.1 422 (480.2) 279.(
Long-term debt, net of current portion 643.€ — 4.8 — 648.4
Amounts due to affiliated companies — — 24.C (24.09 —
Other long-term liabilities 4.3 26.1 2.1 — 32.t
Total liabilities 661.7 729.2 73.2 (504.2) 959.¢
Total stockholders' equity 324.1 451.¢ 16.€ (468.€) 324.1
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 985 $ 1181 % 90.C (9729 $ 1,284.(
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations andomprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended December 25, 2011

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated

Service revenues $ — 3 349.. % 17 $ — 3 351.(
Product sales — 327.¢ 46.C (11.9 362.¢

Total revenues — 676.7 48.€ (11.9 713.¢
Cost of service revenues — 259.2 1.t — 260.%
Cost of product sales — 242.F 30.€ (11.9 262.(

Total costs — 501.% 324 (11.9 522.7

Gross profit — 175.( 16.2 — 191.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses 15.¢ 122.: 14.¢€ — 153.1
Research and development expenses — 7.S 0.7 — 8.€

Operating income (loss) from continuing operagion (15.9 44.¢ 0.€ — 29t
Other income (expense):

Interest expense, net (50.¢) 0.1 (0.9 — (51.)

Other income, net 0.2 0.4 (0.7) — —

Total other income and expense, net (50.5) 0.t 1.3 — (51.)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes (66.9 452 (0.5 — (21.¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgiin
operations — 3.C (1.7 — 1.¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations (66.9) 425 0.€ — (23.5)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — (0.8) 0.1 — (0.7)
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries 42.2 0.t — (42.7) —
Net income (loss) $ (242) % 420 % 07 $ 427 $ (24.2)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (249 $ 417 $ 0.6 $ (42.5) $ (24.9
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations andomprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Ended December 30, 2012

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated

Service revenues $ — 3 448.8 3 1t § —  $ 450.(
Product sales — 470.( 64.t (15.9) 519.2

Total revenues — 918.t 66.C (15.9) 969.2
Cost of service revenues — 350.( 0.8 — 350.¢
Cost of product sales — 333.¢ 427 (15.9) 361.2

Total costs — 683.¢ 43t (15.9 712.C

Gross profit — 234.% 22F — 257.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7.4 171.2 13.¢ — 192.t
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles — 96.€ — — 96.€
Research and development expenses — 16.¢ 0.€ — 17.¢

Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations (7.4 (50.0 7.7 — (49.7)
Other income (expense):

Interest expense, net (65.9 0.3 0.5 — (66.7)

Other income, net 0.2 0.1 0.€ — 1.3

Total other income and expense, net (65.€) 04 04 — (64.¢)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes (73.0 (49.6) 8.1 — (114.5
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from
continuing operations 20.¢ (22.¢) 04 — (1.€)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (93.9) (26.¢) 7.7 — (112.9
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.3 (2.2 0.8 — (1.5
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries (20.5) 8.3 — 12.2 —
Net income (loss) $ (1149 $ (20.7) $ 8t § 122 $ (114.9
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (1150 $ (209 % 94 ¢ 11§ (115.0
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 25, 2011

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites $ (55.) $ 60.E $ 0.2 $ —  $ 5.2
Investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (421.0 18.C 11.¢ — (391.0)
Decrease in restricted cash 1.4 1.€ — — 3.C
Capital expenditures (0.2 (6.9 (1.0 — (7.5)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifiesn
continuing operations (419.9 13.: 10.¢ — (395.6)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 61.1 — — — 61.1
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 4257 — — — 425.5
Debt issuance costs paid (22.) — — — (22.7)
Purchase of treasury stock (10.9 — — — (10.9
Repayment of debt — (2.€) (0.9) — (3.9)
Financing from affiliated companies 63.€ (68.6) 5.C — —
Other, net 2.C — — — 2.C
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn
continuing operations 519.¢ (71.9) 4.2 — 452.¢
Net cash flows of continuing operations 44.F 2.€ 14.¢ — 62.C
Net operating cash flows from discontinued operetio — (2.2 (0.5 — 2.7
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents — (0.9 (0.2 0.5
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 445§ 01 $ 142 8 —  § 58.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 30, 2012
(in millions)
Parent Guarantors on a Non-Guarantors on
Company Combined Basis a Combined Basis Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ (98.2) $ 144°% % 6.C $ — % 52.2

Investing activities: — —
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of

cash acquired 2.3 (151.9) — — (149.9
Decrease in restricted cash — 0.€ — — 0.€
Capital expenditures (0.5 (14.2) (1.9 — (16.€)
Other, net — 0.3 — — 0.3

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities from
continuing operations 1.8 (165.0 (1.9 — (165.])

Financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of

common stock 97.C — — — 97.C
Debt issuance costs paid 1.2 — — — (1.2
Repayment of debt — (0.5 (2.0 — (1.5
Financings from affiliated

companies (20.¢) 12.¢ (2.0) — —
Other, net (3.9 — — — (3.4)

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities from

continuing operations 81.¢ 12.2 (3.0 — 90.¢
Net cash flows of continuing

operations (14.¢) (8.2 11 — (21.9
Net operating cash flows from

discontinued operations — 1.3 — — 1.3

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents — — — —

Net increase (decrease) in cash
cash equivalents $ (149 % (6.9 $ 11 8 —$ (20.6)
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List of Subsidiaries

Exhibit 21.1

Ai Metrix, Inc. Delaware
Airorlite Communications, Inc. New Jersey
Avtec Systems, Inc. Virginia
Charleston Marine Containers, Inc. Delaware
Composite Engineering, Inc. California
CVG Incorporated Virginia
Dallastown Realty I, LLC Delaware
Dallastown Realty Il, LLC Delaware
Defense Systems, Incorporated Virginia
DEI Services Corporation Florida
Digital Fusion Solutions, Inc. Florida
Digital Fusion, Inc. Delaware
Diversified Security Solutions, Inc. New York
DTI Associates, Inc. Virginia

EW Simulation Technology Ltd.

United Kingdom

General Microwave lIsrael (1987) Ltd.

Israel

General Microwave Israel Corporation Delaware
General Microwave Corporation New York
Gichner Europe Limited United Kingdom
Gichner Systems Group, Inc. Delaware
Gichner Systems International, Inc. Delaware
Haverstick Consulting, Inc. Indiana
Haverstick Government Solutions, Inc. Ohio
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. California
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. Colorado
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. Delaware
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. New Jersey
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. Virginia
Henry Bros. Electronics, LLC Arizona
Herley GMI Eyal Ltd. Israel

Herley Industries, Inc. Delaware
Herley-CTl, Inc. Delaware
Herley-RSS, Inc. Delaware
HGS Holdings, Inc. Indiana

Integral Systems Europe Ltd.

United Kingdom

Integral Systems Europe S.A.S.

France

JMA Associates, Inc. Delaware
KPSS Government Solutions, Inc. Delaware
Kratos Defense & Rocket Support Services, Inc. alale
Kratos Integral Holdings, LLC Maryland
Kratos Integral Systems International, Inc. Catifa
Kratos Networks, Inc. Delaware

Kratos Public Safetv & Securitv Solutions. |i

Delaware



Kratos Southeast, Inc. Georgia
Kratos Southwest L.P. Texas
Kratos Technology & Training Solutions, Inc. Califiia
Kratos Texas, Inc. Texas
Kratos Unmanned Systems Solutions, Inc. Delaware
Lumistar, Inc. Maryland
LVDM, Inc. Nevada
Madison Research Corporation Alabama
Micro Systems, Inc. Florida

MSI Acquisition Corp. Delaware
National Safe of California, Inc. California
Polexis, Inc. California
Reality Based IT Services Ltd. Maryland
RealTime Logic, Inc. Colorado
Rocket Support Services, LLC Indiana
SAT Corporation California
SCT Acquisition, LLC Delaware
SCT Real Estate, LLC Delaware
Securelnfo Corporation Delaware
Shadow I, Inc. California
Shadow I, Inc. California
Stapor Research, Inc. Virginia
Summit Research Corporation Alabama
WFI NMC Corp. Delaware




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We have issued our reports dated March 12, 2018, respect to the consolidated financial statemamdisinternal control over
financial reporting included in the Annual Repdirkoatos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. on Fdr@iK for the year ended
December 30, 2012. We hereby consent to the incatipn by reference of said reports in the Regiigtn Statements of Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. on Forms S-3(No. 333-161340, effective August 21, 2009, RNite 333-172103, effective
February 8, 2011 and File No. 333-173099, effectipal 15, 2011), on Forms S-4 (File No. 333-1678dffective July 12, 2010,
File No. 333-174745, effective June 20, 2011, Rite 333-174760, effective June 28, 2011 and File388-177493, effective
November 1, 2011) and on Formr-8 (File No. 333-90455, effective November 5, 19918 No. 333-54818, effective February 1,
2001, File No. 333-71702, effective October 17,2(le No. 333-91852, effective July 2, 2002, File. 333-116903, effective
June 28, 2004, File No. 333-124957, effective M&y2D05, File No. 333-127060, effective August02, File No. 333-155317,
effective November 12, 2008, File No. 333-15782f&ative March 10, 2009, File No. 333-167839, efifex June 28, 2010, File
No. 33171257, effective December 17, 2010, File No. 333383, effective April 8, 2011 and File No. 333F494, effective
October 25, 2011, File No. 333-333-179977, effecMarch 8, 2012, and File No. 333-182910, effeciivly 27, 2012).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric M. DeMarco, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual report on FormKLof Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, It

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and céiais of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgmiisclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardniat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

@)

(b)

©
(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proesder caused such disclosure controls and proesdobe designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;
Designed such internal control over finaneggdorting, or caused such internal control oveafitial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallyedeaccounting principles;
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psent based on such evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in ttgisteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registranthost recer
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal cpeain the case of an annual report) that has nadi{eaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comtweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@tuaf internal control over financial reporting, the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons petfiog the equivalent functions):

@)
(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have ais@ntifole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2013

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/sl ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. DeMarco
Chief Executive Officer, President
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Deanna H. Lund, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual report on FormK@f Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, I

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances unwlieeh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ctsivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aredriat control over financial reporting (as defined&Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

@ Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallyedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’'sld&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regrgts internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the registrastnost recer

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal cggain the case of an annual report) that has nadl{eaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohiweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial reporting, teet
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfog the equivalent functions):

€] All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamgiafmation; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéenin the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2013

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND

Deanna H. Lund

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKatos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (theof@pany”) on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 30, 2012 (the “Reportl) Eric M. DeMarco, Chief Executive Officer of ti@mpany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section0125 adopted pursui
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

2) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmisidition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2013

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/sl ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. DeMarco

Chief Executive Officer, President
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKatos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (theof@pany”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 30, 2012 (the “Report”), |, Deanna H. Lubbief Financial Officer of the Company, certifijyrsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnts
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20bat:t

2) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmisidition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2013

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND
Deanna H. Lund
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



